HSBC Uni-Folio ("Uni-Folio")



An umbrella unit trust comprising of the HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund and the following Unit Classes Fund:

US Dollar Class

Euro Hedged Class

R Classes (US Dollar, Euro Hedged and Sterling Hedged)

S Classes (US Dollar, Euro Hedged and Sterling Hedged)

Also known as The AdvantEdge Fund

Manager

HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited

Designated Administrator

HSBC Securities Services (Guernsey) Limited

Trustee

HSBC Custody Services (Guernsey) Limited

Investment Adviser

HSBC Alternative Investments Limited

Prospectus

3 September 2021

Contents

1.	Marketing and Distribution Restrictions	5
2.	Important Notes	8
3.	Organisational Structure	9
4.	Definitions	10
5.	Investment Objective	13
6.	Investment Adviser	14
7.	Manager Selection	15
8.	Strategy Allocation	16
9.	Portfolio Management	17
10.	Risk Management	18
11.	Alternative Investment Management	19
12.	Risk Warnings and Disclosures	21
13.	Additional Risk Factors Applicable to Swiss Registered Funds	32
14.	Fund Section for the HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund	35
15.	Constitution of HSBC Uni-Folio	40
15	5.1. Constitution of Uni-Folio and the AdvantEdge Fund	40
15	5.2. Authorisation of Uni-Folio	40
15	5.3. The Manager	40
15	5.4. Administrator; Designated Administrator	41
15	5.5. Transfer Agent	41
15	5.6. The Supervisory Committee	41

	15.7. The Local Management Committee and Risk Management Meeting	42
	15.8. The Trustee	43
	15.9. The Custodians	44
	15.10. The Investment Adviser	45
	15.11. The Distributors	46
	15.12. The Registrar and Register of Holders	46
	15.13. Auditor	46
	15.14. Conflicts of Interest	47
	15.15. Investment Objective, and Investment & Borrowing Limitations and Restrictions	47
	15.16. Indirect Payment for Services	47
	15.17. Hedging and Derivative Transactions	47
	15.18. Termination of Uni-Folio or a Fund	47
	15.19. Characteristics of a Unit in a Fund	48
	15.20. Meetings of Holders and Voting Rights	48
	15.21. Valuation of a Fund	49
	15.22. Fees and Expenses	50
	15.23. Application, Redemption and Transfer of Units	53
	15.24. Information to Holders	57
	15.25. Tax Considerations	57
	15.26. Data Protection	60
	15.27. General Information	60
	15.28. The Commission	61
1	6. AIFMD Investor Disclosure Statement	62

Application Form 3 September 2021	71
Appendix A	101
Appendix B	104
Application Form – Signature Page	105

1. Marketing and Distribution Restrictions

No person has been authorised to give any information or to make any representations, other than those contained in this Prospectus, in connection with the offering of Units in the Fund and, if given or made, such information or representations must not be relied on as having been authorised by the Manager, the Trustee or any other person. Neither the delivery of this Prospectus nor the issue of Units shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of Uni-Folio since the date hereof.

This Prospectus does not constitute, and may not be used for the purposes of, an offer or solicitation to anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorised or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation. The distribution of this Prospectus and the offering of Units in certain jurisdictions may be restricted and accordingly persons into whose possession this Prospectus comes are required to inform themselves about and to observe such restrictions. Prospective purchasers should inform themselves as to all legal and tax consequences, and any foreign exchange requirements, which may apply to them in their own countries relevant to their purchase, holding or disposal of Units in Uni-Folio.

A distributor shall only offer, sell or arrange the sale of Units, distribute or publish this Prospectus or carry out any type of solicitation or procurement in connection with the Units in accordance with all applicable laws, legal and regulatory requirements in the relevant jurisdictions (and in compliance with all applicable selling restrictions contained in this Prospectus) in which it directly or indirectly offers, sells or arranges the sale of Units, distributes or publishes this Prospectus or carries out any type of solicitation or procurement in connection with any Units.

The Units shall not be offered, sold, transferred, assigned or delivered, directly or indirectly, to an entity of the HSBC Group, unless such entity acts in a nominee capacity or is an affiliated insurance company of HSBC Holdings plc that will hold its interest in the Fund under the insurance exemption set out in section _.13(c) of the joint final regulations implementing the 'Volcker Rule' (section 619 of the U.S. Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010).

United States of America

None of the Units have been or will be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended, (the "1933 Act") and, except pursuant to an exemption available under the 1933 Act, none of the Units may be offered or sold, transferred, assigned or delivered, directly or indirectly, in the United States of America, its territories and possessions and all areas subject to its jurisdiction including the commonwealth of Puerto Rico and the District of Columbia ("United States") or to any US Person. For the purposes hereof, the term "US Person" shall mean the following:

- a. any natural person who is deemed a resident of the U.S. under any U.S. law or regulation;
- **b.** an entity:
- . that is a corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other business entity:
 - A. that was created or organized under U.S. federal or state law including any non-U.S. agency or branch of such entity; or
 - B. where regardless of place of formation or organization, was organized principally for passive investment (such as an investment company or fund or similar entity other than an employee benefit plan or employee pension scheme for the employees, officers, or principals of a non-U.S. entity having its principal place of business outside the United States)
 - and owned directly or indirectly by one or more US Persons, with respect to which such US
 Persons (unless defined as a Qualified Eligible Person under CFTC Regulation 4.7(a)) directly or
 indirectly hold in the aggregate 10% or greater beneficial interest; or
 - 2. where a US Person is the general partner, managing member, managing director or other position with authority for directing the entity's activities; or
 - 3. was formed by or for a US Person principally for the purpose of investing in securities not registered with the SEC; or
 - 4. where more than 50% of its voting ownership interests or non-voting ownership interests are directly or indirectly owned by US Persons; or
 - C. that is any agency or branch of a non-U.S. entity located in the U.S.; or
 - D. has its principal place of business in the U.S.; or

- ii. that is a trust created or organized under U.S. federal or state law or regardless of the place of creation or organization
 - A. where one or more US Persons has the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust; or
 - B. where the administration of the trust or its formation documents are subject to the supervision of one or more U.S. courts; or
 - C. where any settlor, founder, trustee, or other person responsible for decisions related to the trust is a US Person; or
- iii. that is an estate of a deceased person regardless of where the person resided while alive where an executor or administrator is a US Person
 - c. an employee benefit plan established and administered in accordance with the laws of the U.S.; or
 - **d.** a discretionary or non-discretionary investment account or similar account (other than an estate or trust) held by a non-U.S. or U.S. dealer or other fiduciary for the benefit or account of a US Person (as defined above)

For the purpose of this definition, the "**United States**" and "**U.S.**" means the United States of America (including the States and the District of Columbia), its territories, possessions and other areas of subject to its jurisdiction. If, subsequent to an investor's investment in the Fund, the investor becomes a US Person, such investor (i) will be restricted from making any additional investments in the Fund and (ii) as soon as practicable have its Units compulsorily redeemed (subject to the requirements of applicable law). The Manager may, from time to time, waive or modify the above restrictions.

In addition neither Uni-Folio nor any Fund has been or will be registered under the United States Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended. Neither the Manager nor the Investment Adviser is registered under the United States Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended.

United Kingdom

The promotion of interests in Uni-Folio is restricted under the UK Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 ("**FSMA**"). Consequently, this Prospectus is directed only at:

- **a. Investment Professionals,** being persons having professional experience in matters relating to investments and, in particular, of participating in unregulated collective investment schemes
 - b. High Net Worth Entities, being:
 - i. any body corporate which has, or which is a member of the same group as an undertaking which has, a called-up share capital or net assets of not less than: (a) £500,000, if the body corporate has more than 20 members or is a subsidiary undertaking of an undertaking which has more than 20 members; or (b) otherwise, £5 million;
 - ii. any unincorporated association or partnership which has net assets of not less than £5 million;
 - iii. the trustee of a high value trust, being a trust where the aggregate value of the cash and investments which form part of the trust's assets (before deducting the amount of its liabilities): (A) is £10 million or more; or (B) has been £10 million or more at any time during the year immediately preceding the date of receipt of this Prospectus, and those directors, officers and employees of any such entity who are involved in the entity's investment activity and, in particular, are responsible for the entity's participation in unregulated collective investment schemes, in their capacity as such; and
 - **c.** other persons to whom interests in Uni-Folio may lawfully be marketed under FSMA, i.e. certified High Net Worth/Sophisticated Investors under the Financial Conduct Authority's non-mainstream pooled investment rules.

Interests in Uni-Folio are available only to such persons, and no other person should rely on or act in accordance with this Prospectus. Recipients must not distribute, publish, reproduce, or disclose this Prospectus, in whole or in part, to any other person.

Any person who is in any doubt about an investment in Uni-Folio should consult a professional adviser specialising in advising on participation in non-mainstream pooled investments.

Singapore

Uni-Folio is not authorised or recognised by the Monetary Authority of Singapore ("MAS") and Units are not allowed to be offered to the retail public in Singapore.

This Prospectus constitutes an information memorandum under the Sixth Schedule of the Securities and Futures (Offers of Investments) (Collective Investment Schemes) Regulations of Singapore. It is not a 'prospectus' as defined under the Securities and Futures Act ("SFA"), and accordingly, statutory liability under the SFA in relation to the content of prospectuses does not apply, and any prospective investor or offeree should consider carefully whether the investment is suitable for him/her. Uni-Folio is a restricted scheme for the purposes of section 305 of the SFA. Units in such fund may not be offered or sold, or be made the subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase, whether directly or indirectly and material in connection with the offer or sale, or invitation for subscription or purchase, of such fund or any other products to which it relates may not be circulated or distributed, to persons in Singapore other than (i) to an institutional investor under section 304 of the SFA, (ii) to a relevant person, or any person pursuant to section 305(2) of the SFA, and in accordance with the conditions, specified in section 305 of the SFA or (iii) otherwise pursuant to, and in accordance with the conditions of, any other applicable provision of the SFA.

Where a fund is subscribed or purchased under section 305 of the SFA by a relevant person which is: (a) a corporation (which is not an accredited investor) the sole business of which is to hold investments and the entire share capital of which is owned by one or more individuals, each of whom is an accredited investor; or (b) a trust (where the trustee is not an accredited investor) whose sole purpose is to hold investments and each beneficiary is an accredited investor, shares, debentures and units of shares and debentures of that corporation, where the foregoing securities have an attached right of conversion into shares or debentures, the converted shares or debentures of that corporation or the beneficiaries' rights and interest in that trust shall not be transferable for 6 months after that corporation or that trust has acquired units in the fund under section 305 of the SFA except: (1) to an institutional investor or to a relevant person, or to any person pursuant to an offer that is made on terms that such rights or interest are acquired at a consideration of not less than S\$200,000 (or its equivalent in a foreign currency) for each transaction, whether such amount is to be paid for in cash or by exchange of securities or other assets; (2) where no consideration is given for the transfer; (3) by operation of law; or (4) where the securities of that corporation acquired are of the same class as other securities of the corporation an offer of which has previously been made in or accompanied by a prospectus and which are listed for quotation on a securities exchange.

Hong Kong

The contents of this Prospectus have not been reviewed by any regulatory authority in Hong Kong. You are advised to exercise caution in relation to this offer. If you are in any doubt about the contents of this Prospectus you should obtain independent professional advice.

This Prospectus is distributed on a private placement basis. No person in Hong Kong, other than the person to whom a copy of this Prospectus has been addressed, may treat the same as constituting an invitation to invest. The Prospectus may not be reproduced in any form or transmitted to any person other than the person to whom it is addressed. In particular, this Prospectus has not been approved by the Securities and Futures Commission or any other regulatory authority in Hong Kong and accordingly Units in the Fund may not be offered or sold in Hong Kong by means of the Private Offering Documents or any other document other than in circumstances which do not constitute an offer to the public for the purposes of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFO"), as may be amended from time to time.

Please note that the offering of Units of the Fund under this Prospectus is not available to investors in Hong Kong unless they qualify as professional investors as defined under the SFO and its subsidiary legislations.

The Prospectus may from time to time be updated and you should check with HSBC Investment Funds (Hong Kong) Limited for any subsequent updates to the documents.

2. Important Notes

This Prospectus is dated 3 September 2021 and supersedes the previous published version dated 1 May 2021. This Prospectus constitutes scheme particulars for the purposes of, and has been prepared in accordance with, the Authorised Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 2013 as issued by the Guernsey Financial Services Commission pursuant to the Protection of Investors (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 1987, as amended. This Prospectus will be revised at least once in every twelve months and prospective investors should enquire of the Manager whether this Prospectus has been revised or superseded.

All applications for Units in any of the Funds described herein are deemed to be on the basis of the terms of the latest issue of this Prospectus, the Trust Instrument, the relevant Fund Deed, the Application Form and the latest version of the audited reports and accounts. The Manager is responsible for the information contained in this Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Manager (who has taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

If you are in any doubt about the contents of this Prospectus you should consult a professional adviser. The value of Units in any of the Funds can go down as well as up and investors may not realise the value of their original subscription.

The Units in the Fund can only be marketed in the EEA by the Manager and other persons marketing on its behalf to an investor domiciled or with a registered office in an EEA Member State where the Fund has been registered with the national regulator. Such marketing may only be to professional investors (within the meaning of the Directive 2004/39/EC (MiFID)) or such other types of investor as may be allowed under national legislation in the relevant EEA Member State. The marketing of the Units in the Fund is prohibited to investors domiciled or with a registered office in all EEA Member States where the Fund has not been registered.

Investors domiciled or with a registered address in the EEA should refer to the AIFMD Investor Disclosure Statement which contains important information under the AIFMD.

3. Organisational Structure

Uni-Folio is a Guernsey unit trust scheme established as an umbrella fund, originally constituted by a trust instrument dated 23 July 1999 as replaced by a trust instrument dated 26 June 2014, as further replaced by a trust instrument dated 1 May 2021, as subsequently amended from time to time.

HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited ("**HMG**") is the Manager of Uni-Folio and HSBC Custody Services (Guernsey) Limited ("**HCS**") was appointed the Trustee of Uni-Folio with effect from 1 May 2021. Uni-Folio, HMG as Manager and HCS as Trustee are subject to the Class B Rules.

Uni-Folio currently comprises one Fund, permitting investment of its assets through various portfolio managers who generally utilise alternative investment strategies. To facilitate this, the Fund is authorised to invest in a wide variety of units, shares and other interests in funds. Such interests could include discretionary investment accounts or managed accounts, but the Fund is also permitted to invest in fixed income and debt, equity and other instruments including derivatives. The Fund invests through an underlying investment holding company formed for that purpose (each, an "SPV"). Such company may be incorporated in Guernsey or such other territory as the Manager or Trustee may deem appropriate bearing in mind any relevant double tax treaties as may be available.

At the date of this Prospectus, HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund is available in seven Unit classes. Reference should be made to the relevant Fund Section for further details of the risks and investment objectives of the HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund. Other Funds may hereafter be created in accordance with the Trust Instrument (each such sub-fund being referred to as a "Fund" and the sub-funds being collectively referred to as "Funds").

Details of other investment related matters in respect of each Fund are detailed in this Prospectus, including, but not limited to, fees and expenses, accounting dates, the Investment Adviser to each Fund, the hedging limits and the issue and redemption of Units.

4. Definitions

Words used in this Prospectus and not otherwise defined shall have where the context so requires the meanings ascribed to them in the Trust Instrument and, subject thereto, the following words and expressions shall have the meanings ascribed to them below:

"Accumulation Unit"	means a Unit in a Fund in respect of which income is reinvested;
"Application Form"	means the application form to be completed for subscription of Units in Uni-Folio;
"Approved Bank"	means any bank approved by the Manager applying an approval procedure used by members of the HSBC Group when determining their own credit lines for credit-related approvals of counterparties;
"Base Currency"	means the base currency of a Fund, as specified in the Fund Characteristics for that Fund;
"Borrowing"	means the borrowing of a Fund from an Approved Bank;
"Borrowing Costs"	means all costs, charges and expenses incurred in respect of Borrowing;
"Borrowing Limit"	means the Borrowing limit for a Fund specified in the Fund Section for that Fund;
"Business Day"	means any day normally treated as a business day in Guernsey and London;
"Class B Rules"	means the Authorised Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 2013 as issued by the Commission pursuant to the Law;
"Commission"	means the Guernsey Financial Services Commission;
"Convertible arbitrage"	means an investment strategy adopted by certain Hedge Funds: see details below under the section headed "Alternative Investment Management";
"Custodian"	means each of HSBC Bank plc, Guernsey Branch and HSBC Continental Europe (together the "Custodians");
"Dealing Day"	the dealing day for each Fund as given in the Fund Characteristics;
"Distressed Securities"	means an investment strategy adopted by certain Hedge Funds: see details below under the section headed "Alternative Investment Management";
"Due Diligence"	means an evaluation procedure used by the Investment Adviser to analyse, amongst other things, the operating structure, resources, risk factors and client service of the Portfolio Fund managers, further details of which are set out in the section headed "Manager Selection";
"Eligible Investor"	has the meaning ascribed to it in the section of this Prospectus headed "Eligible Investor";
"Euro"	refers to the unit of the single European currency and references to "Euro" should be interpreted similarly;
"Fixed income arbitrage"	means an investment strategy adopted by certain Hedge Funds: see details below under the section headed "Alternative Investment Management";
"Fund"	means a sub-fund of Uni-Folio and, except as otherwise provided in the Trust Instrument, includes all Unit classes of such sub-fund;
"Fund Characteristics"	means the paragraphs of each Fund Section which contain specific information concerning each Fund;
"Fund Deed"	means a supplemental deed to the Trust Instrument between the Manager and the Trustee whereby each Fund is established;
"Fund Section"	means each section of this Prospectus which contains information exclusive to a particular Fund;
"FX Hedging"	means the utilisation of forward foreign exchange contracts or options or equivalent derivative instruments to manage currency exposure to an asset or liability denominated in a base currency other than a Reference Currency by exchanging (either directly or indirectly) that exposure with exposure to the Reference Currency of a Unit;
"Global Macro"	means an investment strategy adopted by certain Hedge Funds: see details below under the section headed "Alternative Investment Management";

	means alternative investments the main feature of which is the considerable flevibility
"Hedge Fund"	means alternative investments the main feature of which is the considerable flexibility about instruments and strategies that the underlying managers may choose. Hedge
	funds frequently use derivative products, short sales and leverage;
"High Watermark"	means an expense calculation method designed to ensure that a performance fee is
	only paid on future profits once the previous losses have been fully recovered;
"Holder"	means a holder of Units;
"HSBC Group"	means any subsidiary or affiliate of HSBC Holdings plc, a company incorporated in the United Kingdom;
"Investment Adviser"	means HSBC Alternative Investments Limited;
"Investment strategy"	means an asset management method used by the Hedge Funds;
"Law"	means the Protection of Investors (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 1987, as amended;
"Leverage effect"	means an investment strategy consisting of pledging assets of a financial instrument in order to increase market exposure. Use of derivatives such as futures and options can have the same effect;
"Long"	means the position of an investor holding financial assets in order to profit from an increase in its value;
"Net Asset Value of a Fund"	means the net asset value of a Fund calculated in accordance with the valuation principles set out in section 15.21(a) of this Prospectus;
"Net Asset Value Per Unit"	has the meaning given to it in section 15.21(b) of this Prospectus;
"Performance Period"	means the relevant calendar year;
"Portfolio Fund"	means any underlying investment fund in which a Fund makes an investment or may make an investment (as the context admits);
"Reference Currency"	means the currency of issuance of a Unit class stated in a Fund Characteristics for that Unit class;
"Risk Free Rates"	means transaction based risk free reference rates, that are administrated by Central Banks and include SONIA (Sterling Overnight Index Average) for British Pound, ESTR (Euro Short-Term Rate) for Euro and SOFR (Secured Overnight Financing Rate) for US.
"Scheme Property"	has the meaning set out in the Trust Instrument;
"SFDR"	means Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 on sustainability-related disclosures in the financial services sector (as amended)
"Short"	means the position of an investor selling a borrowed asset with the intention to buy it back at a lower price and thereby to profit from its reduction in value;
"Short selling" or "short sales"	means the sale of a borrowed asset with the intention to buy it back at a lower price and thereby to profit from its reduction in value;
"Sustainability Factors"	means environmental, social and employee matters, respect for human rights, anti- corruption and anti-bribery matters
"Sustainability Risk"	means an environmental, social or governance event or condition that, if it occurs, could cause an actual or a potential material negative impact on the value of the investments made by a Fund
"3 Month Adjusted Term Risk Free Rates"	means the 3 Month Adjusted Term Risk Free Rates combining Risk Free Rates ("RFR's"), compounded 3 months in arrears, with a spread adjustment that reflects the historical difference between the 3 Month IBOR and the compounded 3 Month Risk.
	That are further defined by, amongst others, ISDA and Bloomberg and currently described within their jointly published IBOR Fallback Fact Sheet that can be found at "Factsheet-IBOR-Fallbacks.pdf".
"Transfer Agent"	means HSBC Securities Services (Ireland) DAC, to whom the Manager has delegated the transfer agency function;
"Trust Instrument"	means the unit trust instrument dated 23 July 1999 as amended and restated on 26 June 2014 and 1 May 2021 (as further amended from time to time) constituting the

	umbrella unit trust by the name "Republic Uni-Folio" which is now called "HSBC Uni-Folio";
"UK Accounting Standards"	means UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principles or "UK GAAP";
"UK RDR Rules"	means the Retail Distribution Review, being a set of consumer protection rules implemented in the United Kingdom by the Financial Conduct Authority with effect 31 December 2012 and forming part of the Handbook of Rules and Guidance of the Financial Conduct Authority;
"Uni-Folio"	means HSBC Uni-Folio
"Unit"	means one unit in a Fund (including any fraction of a unit);
"US Person"	has the meaning ascribed to it in the section of this Prospectus headed "Marketing and Distribution Restrictions"; and
"Valuation Point"	means the Business Day specified in this Prospectus as the applicable day for a valuation or other quantification or calculation to be made for the purpose specified in this Prospectus in connection with that Valuation Point.

5. Investment Objective

The investment objective of each Fund is to generate long term capital growth and is set out in the relevant Fund Section. The assets of each Fund shall be allocated to a number of Portfolio Funds, with a focus on Hedge Funds. Asset allocation combines both bottom-up manager selection and top-down strategy allocation, in order to meet the investment objectives of the Fund and subject to the investment restrictions listed in the relevant Fund Section.

The principle advantages of a fund of funds structure compared to direct investment may include the following:

- **a.** a diversified portfolio of Portfolio Funds, whose fund managers use different strategies, limits the specific risk resulting from any individual strategy;
- **b.** a diversified portfolio of Portfolio Funds, whose fund managers use the same strategy, limits the specific risk linked to any particular fund manager; and
- c. collective investment instruments may enable investors to invest in Portfolio Funds to which they would normally not have access because of the high minimum investments required or the availability of capacity.

The principal disadvantages are:

- a. each Portfolio Fund has its own cost structure to which must be added the costs of the Fund itself; and
- b. collective investments are subject to regular investor flows, which may impact position sizing.

6. Investment Adviser

Pursuant to an investment advisory agreement entered into between the Manager and the Investment Adviser (the "Investment Advisory Agreement"), the Manager has delegated certain portfolio management activities to the Investment Adviser, including with respect to the implementation and execution of each Fund's investments (provided that such investments are in accordance with the Class B Rules) and pursuant to the other restrictions set out in the Investment Advisory Agreement and this Prospectus. The Manager may also consider amendments to the investment objective and investment policy of each Fund further to recommendations provided by the Investment Adviser. Overall portfolio management and risk management responsibility for the Funds is retained by the Manager.

7. Manager Selection

The Investment Adviser shall, in accordance with the overall investment policy of the Funds prescribed by the Manager, locate, research and monitor fund managers with the aim of evaluating their ability to generate strong risk-adjusted returns versus peers. This involves both quantitative and qualitative analysis of the investment and operational aspects of Portfolio Funds. The Investment Adviser seeks to identify the most talented Portfolio Fund managers globally within each strategy, through on-going Due Diligence and monitoring. In addition to the evaluation of a Portfolio Fund's ability to generate risk-adjusted returns, analysis of the risks associated with leverage and liquidity are of particular importance.

8. Strategy Allocation

The Investment Adviser shall also, in accordance with the overall investment policy of the Funds prescribed by the Manager, recommend a top-down strategy allocation. Forward-looking views on the different Hedge Fund strategies are based on a combination of macro-economic and market inputs, together with insights on the current investment opportunity sets gained from the Hedge Fund research process.

9. Portfolio Management

Overall portfolio management responsibility for each Fund is retained by the Manager.

Portfolios are constructed and managed on an on-going basis to meet each Fund's investment objectives, and subject to the investment restrictions listed in the relevant Fund Section. Only those Portfolio Funds that meet the criteria of the Due Diligence process (referred to above in the section headed "Manager Selection") will be considered for investment, and portfolio construction will take into account top-down strategy views (referred to below in the section headed "Strategy Allocation"). In addition, portfolios are constructed with reference to investor flows and available capacity in Portfolio Funds. Qualitative and quantitative analysis, including both returns and exposure-based techniques, is used to assess the level of portfolio diversification and its suitability in the context of each Fund's investment policy.

10. Risk Management

Risk management responsibility for Uni-Folio is performed by the Manager.

The Manager takes a multi-tiered approach to risk management, with the understanding and management of risk embedded in the manager selection and portfolio management processes, together with portfolio oversight and monitoring in accordance with Fund investment restrictions, as listed in the relevant Fund Section.

In manager selection, due diligence revolves around understanding whether the risks a Portfolio Fund manager takes in the pursuit of returns are appropriate and controlled. Complementing this investment focused due diligence, the operational due diligence team evaluates the business and operational (non-investment) risks of a Portfolio Fund and seeks to avoid Portfolio Funds where there is the potential that inadequate structure or process could compromise an investment.

In portfolio management, ensuring that portfolios are appropriately diversified is paramount. In order to assess risk and portfolio diversification, both qualitative and quantitative techniques are used, including returns and exposure-based analysis.

The Manager regularly monitors each Fund's compliance with the investment restrictions detailed in this Prospectus, and retains responsibility for all aspects of the risk management process.

11. Alternative Investment Management

The Manager considers the key exponent of alternative investment management programs to be Hedge Funds. These seek to generate absolute returns, in all market conditions, through active portfolio management by skilled managers. The scope of investments and techniques available to Hedge Funds are highly diverse, and though managers can invest in traditional long equities and bonds positions, there are broader strategies and securities which can be applied. Opportunities arise for managers to utilise leverage and derivatives to take advantage of market conditions and to manage risk. Hedge Funds can take on varying risk/return profiles which can complement an existing portfolio. Its performance is typically marked against a benchmark of a similar risk/return profile or a given hurdle. Performance is thus measured against a relative base.

A leading financial markets academic, Alexander Ineichen, defined a Hedge Fund as an "investment program whereby the managers or partners seek absolute returns by exploiting investment opportunities while protecting principal from potential financial loss". The first Hedge Fund is believed to have been launched by Alfred Winslow Jones in the United States in 1949. Since then both the number of Hedge Funds and the strategies that they employ have increased dramatically. This growth has been a result of a desire by investors to improve the diversification of returns within a portfolio and provide returns that can complement the traditional allocations to equities and fixed income. Whilst the Hedge Fund industry consisted of some USD450 billion of assets in 1999, as at the date of this Prospectus the industry manages over USD3 trillion of assets. Hedge funds are active in almost every investment market in the world, adopting strategies that include:

a. General Arbitrage

General arbitrage includes Hedge Funds that, at their own discretion, allocate capital among various arbitrage strategies that aim to exploit and profit from price movements and market inefficiencies of associated or analogous instruments. The logic behind arbitrage transactions lies in the eventual convergence between a market price and a known, theoretical or equilibrium position. The specific assets traded and the different ways prices are set means that the procedures applied vary widely depending on the assets being traded. Securities such as convertible bonds, equities or fixed income securities are among the assets most commonly handled in this way. A return is earned by partially or completely eliminating price differentials and it is equally possible to profit by financing transactions with debt. A typical transaction involves small differentials and yield, which is often amplified through the use of leverage in order to achieve an attractive level of return, especially when there is relatively low risk that values will fall. Given that many Hedge Funds rely on borrowing, solid sources of finance and major lines of credit are essential to make use of this procedure.

b. Fixed Income Arbitrage

Fixed income arbitrage aims to profit from pricing differentials or inefficiencies between fixed income securities. This includes arbitrage on interest rate swaps, US Treasury bills and non-governmental US bonds, arbitrage on the forward yield curve of government bond futures and mortgage rate arbitrage. Managers typically purchase a fixed income security whilst selling short another position.

c. Statistical Arbitrage

This strategy exploits temporary price mis-matches by finding pricing anomalies which are believed to correct over time. Fund managers apply an analytical strategy that carries low risk and has little market correlation. The approach makes it possible to benefit from momentary differentials in prices under analysis.

d. Event Driven

This strategy concentrates on the current or future occurrence of corporate events such as mergers and acquisitions, restructurings or bankruptcies. The managers skill lies in successfully recognising both the probability of such an event occurring and the timing of its realisation, as well as analysis into the quality of the transaction. Opportunities of event driven investing are higher when markets are performing well due to higher volumes of corporate activity. The strategy's correlation with traditional markets is typically low. Classic underlying strategies typically include merger arbitrage, distressed securities and strategies based on "special situations".

e. Distressed Securities

This strategy is based on the purchase of heavily marked down equities, debt securities or debt of companies in financial difficulties. The distressed securities are sold at a discount and can appear attractive. Purchasers take on the view that the company issuing the distressed securities has potential for recovery and therefore profit from the transaction in time. Knowledge and skill is applied to assess and evaluate whether the distressed seller can successfully improve operations to generate positive returns.

f. Equity Long/Short

The strategy consists of buying under-valued and selling over-valued equities, profiting from price increases in the long positions and decreases in the short positions, whilst managing market risk. The selection of equities bought or sold is usually based on quantitative models and research. Fund managers will have differing approaches to the levels of long and short positions to be held (long or short bias) and the methods of managing these to eliminate market risk.

g. Market Neutral

Similar to the equity long/short strategy, however there is no long or short bias. Long and short positions are held at equal monetary amounts.

h. Convertible Arbitrage

A sub-strategy of Equity Long/Short that involves a simultaneous purchase (or short sale) of a convertible security and the short sale (or purchase) of the underlying asset against which the security is convertible. These transactions aim to cover the risk inherent in the securities.

i. Credit Long/Short

The strategy involves taking long and short positions in credit sensitive securities to exploit market opportunities. Positions are based on credit analysis of issuers, securities and market views.

i. Global Macro

The strategy aims to predict and benefit from underlying changes in global economic variables, such as changes in government interest rates, which have onward impact on currency markets, stock exchanges and the bond markets. Global macro managers may invest in all the principal markets, or specialise in stock index strategies, currency strategies or interest rate strategies. Use of leverage and derivatives is allowed, and can increase the effect of market movements. Derivatives are used for hedging purposes, taking bets on the effect of leverage, which can often be the greatest influence on performance.

k. Commodity Trading Advisers (CTA) / Managed Futures

This strategy historically focused on commodity derivatives investing (futures contracts, options on futures contracts), however more recently this has moved to futures across all markets, such as equities and currencies (FX forwards). Long and short strategies are applied and there can be use of leverage. Traders can be described as systematic or trend followers. Their skill lies in exploiting large volumes of data to identify trading patterns and global demand/supply imbalances. Computer systems and quantitative models are used for forecasting and go beyond rule-based trading systems.

I. Multi-Strategy

Offering the most flexibility in terms of capital allocation, it can consist of many or as few different Hedge Fund strategies that the manager chooses, based on their skill and expertise.

12. Risk Warnings and Disclosures

The below list of risk warnings and disclosures is not an exhaustive list of possible risks. Potential investors are invited to read the entire Prospectus and to fully evaluate any other information that they judge necessary before deciding whether or not to invest in a Fund. An investment in the Units of any of the Funds comprising Uni-Folio is suitable solely for those investors who are ready to accept the risks and rewards resulting from the approach described below. Potential investors must ensure that they fully understand the contents of this Prospectus.

There can be no assurance that the Funds will achieve their investment objectives and past performance should not be seen as a guide to future returns. The value of investments and any income from them can go down as well as up and investors may not get back the amount originally held. An investment may also be affected by any changes in exchange control regulation, tax laws, withholding taxes and economic or monetary policies.

General Risk Considerations

a. General Market Risk

Investment in any market may be extremely volatile and subject to sudden fluctuations of varying magnitude due to a wide range of direct, and indirect, influences. Such influences include, but are not limited to, local and foreign government intervention and interference in domestic trade, fiscal, and monetary policies, the imposition of exchange control restrictions, international political events, changes in interest rates, and traders' inherent confidence in current indicators and the outlook for the future. All these variables inject into such markets a degree of volatility and sentiment which at times, can make it almost impossible to predict or anticipate fluctuations in values and rates. Such characteristics can lead to considerable losses being incurred by those exposed to such markets.

b. Hedge Fund Strategies

Investors should be aware that there are certain risks associated with investing in Hedge Fund strategies. For example, some strategies may utilise leverage and other speculative investment practices that may increase the risk of investment loss, may be less liquid than for example equities, may not be required to provide immediate or on demand pricing or valuation information to investors, may involve complex tax structures, are not subject to the same regulatory requirements as mutual funds, and often charge high fees.

c. Portfolio Funds

Although the Investment Adviser will seek to monitor investments and trading activities of the Portfolio Funds to which a Fund's assets will be allocated, investment decisions are made at the level of such Portfolio Funds and it is possible that the managers of such Portfolio Funds will take positions or engage in transactions in the same securities or in issues of the same asset class, industry or country or currency at the same time. Consequently there is a possibility that one Portfolio Fund may purchase an asset at about the same time as another Portfolio Fund may sell it. There can be no assurance that the selection of the managers of the Portfolio Funds will result in an effective diversification of investment styles and that positions taken by the Portfolio Funds will always be consistent. The selection of the Portfolio Funds will be made in a manner to secure the opportunity to have the shares or units in such Portfolio Funds redeemed within a reasonable time frame. There is, however, no assurance that the liquidity of the Portfolio Funds will always be sufficient to meet redemption requests as and when made.

d. Valuation Risk

The Funds may be subject to valuation risk due to the manner in which the Funds' underlying investments are valued. Some Portfolio Funds may be valued by fund administrators affiliated to fund managers, or by the fund managers themselves, resulting in valuations which are not verified by an independent third party on a regular or timely basis. Accordingly there is a risk that the valuations of the Fund may not reflect the true value of such Portfolio Fund holdings at a specific valuation point, which could result in significant losses for the Fund.

e. Estimated Pricing

Certain Portfolio Funds within a Fund's underlying portfolio may be valued based on an estimate provided by the manager or adviser of such Portfolio Fund. Accordingly, the Net Asset Value Per Unit which is applicable to subscription and redemption requests in a Fund may reflect an element of estimated pricing. The rationale for this

pricing policy is to speed up the process by which the Fund issues dealing prices whilst maintaining sufficient accuracy in the pricing to meet the requirements of investors.

f. Custody, Settlement and Counterparty Risk

The assets of the Funds may be safeguarded by a custodian or sub-custodian on the Trustee's behalf. There is a risk that a custodian or sub-custodian may not properly segregate the assets of the Funds or prove to be uncreditworthy or be responsible for errors or omissions which may result in considerable losses for a Fund. Settlement risk occurs when a transaction is not completed as duly agreed between the parties. This may be due to an error or omission in the necessary settlement, clearing or registration processes or due to the lack of creditworthiness of one of the parties to the transaction. Counterparty risk occurs when a party to a contract fails to honour and defaults on its obligations there under. Funds which are party to these risks can incur considerable losses.

g. Performance Fee

Investors should note that any Performance Fee payable will be based on net realised and net unrealised gains and losses at the end of each performance fee calculation period and consequently Performance Fees may be paid on unrealised gains which may subsequently never be realised.

h. Liquidity Risk

Fixed income securities and fixed income derivatives, instruments involving currencies and related derivative instruments and equities and equity related derivative instruments are not always subject to some kind of governmental regulation or control. Trading counterparties may from time to time refrain from making a market in a particular contract or instrument, with the result that those persons already holding such a contract or instrument are unable to liquidate their exposure. Such characteristics can lead to considerable losses being incurred by those exposed to such instruments. If a Fund were forced to liquidate all of its assets at short-notice, it is likely that certain assets would not be capable of liquidation immediately and the Fund may at its discretion and subject to the consent of the relevant Holders distribute such assets to Holders pro-rata to their holding of Units. Portfolio Funds may hold back a percentage of redemption proceeds until audited accounts for the relevant financial year have been completed. This may result in a delay in Holders receiving the entirety of their redemption proceeds until such time as the accounts of the Portfolio Funds for the relevant financial year have been completed.

i. Leverage Risk

Where a Fund permits leverage, the underlying volatility of the Fund will be significantly greater than would otherwise have been the case without the permitted leverage. Whilst this gives a Fund the ability to participate in higher returns associated with greater exposure, it also gives a Fund exposure to increased losses where markets in general, and a Fund in particular, invest in assets where prices suffer declines.

j. Currency Exposure

The value of investments, as measured in the base currency of the investment, can be subject to both gains and/or losses arising from fluctuations in exchange rates. These fluctuations can lead to considerable losses being incurred by those exposed to currency markets.

k. Side Pocketing

Funds may be subject to risks associated with Portfolio Funds utilising side pockets to hold any illiquid investments. The use of side pockets by the Portfolio Funds may restrict the ability of a Fund or its Holders to fully redeem out of the Portfolio Fund until such investments have been removed from the side pocket. Accordingly Funds may be exposed to the performance of a Portfolio Fund's investment for an indefinite period of time until such investment is liquidated.

I. Less Freely Traded Currencies Risk

The risks associated with an investment in a Fund hedged into a less freely traded currency, while not unique to such currencies, may include but are not limited to:

- Costs Holders of the relevant class of Units will bear the costs of hedging between the Fund's Base Currency
 and the Reference Currency of the class of Units, and these costs are typically greater for less freely traded
 currencies. The cost of such hedging could have a significantly negative impact on the performance of a
 Holder's investment.
- 2. In the event that it is not possible to directly access such currencies' foreign exchange market at a cost deemed reasonable by the Manager, then the Manager may, at its absolute discretion, undertake FX Hedging by alternative means, such as exchange contracts or derivatives.

- 3. Liquidity the foreign exchange market for such currencies may be less liquid in comparison with open international exchange markets.
- 4. Regulatory/policy change any changes in regulatory or foreign exchange policy may have a significant impact on the management of the currency hedging capability for such currencies

m. Legislative Risk

The investment strategies of the Portfolio Funds may be affected by the actions of governments and regulatory bodies. Legislation could be imposed retrospectively or may be issued in the form of internal regulations which the public may not be aware of. Legislation or regulation may be introduced which inhibits any of the Portfolio Funds from pursuing their strategies or which renders an existing strategy less profitable than anticipated. Such actions may take any form, for example nationalisation of any institution or restrictions on investment strategies in any given market sector (for example restrictions on short selling in the financial sector) or changing requirements (for example increased disclosure to market) and imposed without prior warning by any regulator.

n. HSBC Group Disclosure

Cash held by a Fund may be retained and deposited with any bank that is a part, subsidiary, or an affiliate of the HSBC Group. Funds that are entitled to borrow may borrow from HSBC or elsewhere provided a Fund is not in breach of its borrowing limitations or restrictions.

By virtue of its main business being commercial and private banking, HSBC may from time to time have a direct or indirect material (or non-material) interest in, or related to, any of the investment activities of a Fund, but shall not be liable in any way for, nor obligated to account for, any of these interests to investors in a Fund or to Uni-Folio. The Manager will seek to act in the best interests of Uni-Folio.

o. Investment Adviser and Investment Restrictions

While the Manager will retain overall portfolio and risk management responsibilities in respect of each Fund, it may delegate certain portfolio management activities to the Investment Adviser, including with respect to implementation and execution of investments and any relevant compliance checks. In addition, the Manager may choose to amend the investment objectives and strategy of a Fund on the basis of advice and recommendations received from the Investment Adviser. In this event, Holders will be notified prior to any material changes to the investment limits or restrictions coming into effect to allow them to redeem Units if they wish, this Prospectus will be amended or supplemented and the Commission's prior notification will be required. The investment restrictions documented in this Prospectus shall remain as the "lowest common denominator" in relation to limitations and restrictions and it is envisaged that the Investment Adviser will generally be constrained to a greater degree than is outlined in these limitations. Details of the Investment Adviser's specific contractual obligations in relation to investment limitations and restrictions will be provided by the Manager upon written request by Holders of Units in the relevant Fund.

The Manager will review and monitor the performance of the Investment Adviser and will make such changes to the composition of investment advice given to the Funds as the Manager in its sole discretion may determine. Any changes in the Investment Adviser to a Fund will be notified to Holders of Units in the relevant Fund but they will not be entitled to vote in respect thereof.

Unit Holders do not make decisions with respect to the management, disposition or other realisation of any Portfolio Funds held by the Funds, or other decisions regarding a Fund's business and affairs. Consequently, the success of a Fund's investments depends, in large part, upon the skill and expertise of the Manager and the Investment Adviser and its affiliates. Although the Manager believes that the success of the Fund is not dependent upon any individual, there can be no assurance that any of the current officers and employees of the Manager or Investment Adviser will continue to serve in their current positions or continue to be employed by the Manager or Investment Adviser. Departures of such persons may have a materially adverse impact on the performance of the Funds.

p. Ring-fencing

Pursuant to the Trust Instrument, the liabilities of a particular Fund shall be met out of the assets of the same Fund and shall in no way attach to or become a liability of any other Fund. Each Fund's assets are therefore "ring-fenced" or "reserved". This means they are not available to cover the liabilities of another Fund belonging to Uni-Folio.

q. Cross-class Liability

Pursuant to the Trust Instrument, the Scheme Property of each Fund shall be constituted out of the proceeds of the creation by the Manager of Units of that Fund. Each Fund has multiple classes and further classes may be created in the future. Whereas the liabilities of a particular Fund shall be met out of the assets of the same Fund and shall in no way attach to or become a liability of any other Fund, the same does not apply with respect to the liabilities of a particular Unit class of a particular Fund vis-à-vis other Unit classes of the same Fund (i.e. the "ring-fencing"

described in the immediately preceding paragraph does not apply as between unit classes within a Fund). Thus all of the assets of the Fund may be available to meet all of its respective liabilities, regardless of the separate classes or portfolios to which such assets or liabilities are attributable. In practice, cross class or portfolio liability will usually only arise where any class or portfolio becomes insolvent or exhausts its assets and is unable to meet all of its liabilities. In this case, all of the assets of the Fund attributable to the other classes may be applied to cover the liabilities of the insolvent class or portfolio.

r. Use of companies domiciled in offshore locations (including Guernsey)

The Fund invests via a wholly owned subsidiary registered in Guernsey. The Manager or Trustee may deem another territory appropriate bearing in mind any relevant double tax treaties as may be available. All investments made on behalf of each Fund are held by the relevant subsidiary.

If a subsidiary has entered into a prime brokerage agreement with a prime broker approved by the Trustee, the Trustee shall not be the custodian of the assets of a subsidiary nor shall the Trustee be bound or so required to interfere in the management or conduct of the business of the subsidiary so long as the Trustee shall have no notice of any act of dishonesty or misappropriation of monies on the part of the directors of the subsidiary. The Trustee shall be at liberty to leave the conduct of the subsidiary's business wholly unto such directors.

s. Global Financial Market Crisis and Governmental Intervention

The global financial markets have in recent years recently undergone pervasive and fundamental disruptions and dramatic instability. The extent to which the underlying causes of instability are pervasive throughout global financial markets and have the potential to cause further instability is not yet clear but these underlying causes have led to extensive and unprecedented governmental intervention. Regulators in many jurisdictions have implemented or proposed a number of wide-ranging emergency regulatory measures, and restrictions on the short selling of financial and other stocks in many jurisdictions. Such intervention has in certain cases been implemented on an "emergency" basis without much or any notice with the consequence that some market participants' ability to continue to implement certain strategies or manage the risk of their outstanding positions has been suddenly and/or substantially eliminated. In addition, due to the uncertain stability of global financial institutions, the security of assets held by any financial institution cannot be guaranteed, notwithstanding the terms of any agreement with such institution. Given the complexities of the global financial markets and the limited time frame within which governments have been able to take action, these interventions have sometimes been unclear in scope and application, resulting in confusion and uncertainty which in itself has been materially detrimental to the efficient functioning of such markets as well as previously successful investment strategies.

It is impossible to predict with certainty what additional interim or permanent governmental restrictions may be imposed on the markets and/or the effect of such restrictions on the Portfolio Fund's investment manager's ability to implement a Portfolio Fund's investment objective. However, increased regulation of the global financial markets could be materially detrimental to the performance of a Portfolio Fund's portfolio.

t. Legal Risk

A Portfolio Fund may be subject to a number of unusual risks, including inadequate investor protection, contradictory legislation, incomplete, unclear and changing laws, ignorance or breaches of regulations on the part of other market participants, lack of established or effective avenues for legal redress, lack of standard practices and confidentiality customs characteristic of developed markets and lack of enforcement of existing regulations. Furthermore, it may be difficult to obtain and enforce a judgment in certain of the emerging markets in which assets of a Portfolio Fund may be invested. There can be no assurance that this difficulty in protecting and enforcing rights will not have a material adverse effect on a Portfolio Fund and its operations.

Regulatory controls and corporate governance of companies in emerging markets confer little protection on minority shareholders. Anti-fraud and anti-insider trading legislation is often rudimentary. The concept of fiduciary duty to shareholders by officers and directors is also limited when compared to such concepts in developed markets. In certain instances management may take significant actions without the consent of shareholders and anti-dilution protection also may be limited.

u. Market Disruptions

A Fund may incur major losses in the event that disrupted markets and/or other extraordinary events affect markets in a way that is not consistent with historical pricing relationships. The risk of loss from the disconnection from historical prices during periods of market disruption is compounded by the fact that in disrupted markets many positions become illiquid, making it difficult or impossible to close out positions against which the markets are moving. The financing available to a Portfolio Fund from its banks, dealers and other counterparties is typically

reduced in disrupted markets. Such a reduction may result in substantial losses to a Portfolio Fund. In 1994, in 1998 and again in the "financial crisis" of 2007-2009, a sudden restriction of credit by the dealer community resulted in forced liquidations and major losses for a number of investment vehicles focused on credit-related investments. However because market disruptions and losses in one sector can cause ripple effects in other sectors, many investment vehicles suffered heavy losses even though they were not heavily invested in credit-related investments.

In addition, the global financial markets may undergo further fundamental disruptions in the future, which could result in renewed governmental interventions which may be materially detrimental to the performance of a Portfolio Fund. Furthermore, market disruptions caused by unexpected political, military and terrorist events may from time to time cause dramatic losses for any Fund and such events can result in otherwise historically low-risk strategies performing with unprecedented volatility and risk. A financial exchange may from time to time suspend or limit trading. Such a suspension could render it difficult or impossible for a Portfolio Fund to liquidate affected positions and thereby expose it to losses. There is also no assurance that off-exchange markets will remain liquid enough for a Portfolio Fund to close out positions.

v. Volcker Rule

On 10 December 2013, the five US federal financial regulators (the "Agencies") approved joint final regulations (the "Final Regulation") implementing section 13 of the US Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (the "Volcker Rule"). The Volcker Rule generally prohibits a "banking entity," including the HSBC Group, from engaging in proprietary trading and from acquiring or retaining an ownership interest in, sponsoring or having certain relationships with any "covered fund" unless an exemption applies. The Volcker Rule also generally prohibits the HSBC Group from extending credit to, purchasing assets from, or otherwise engaging in any transaction that would be a "covered transaction" within the meaning of section 23A of the US Federal Reserve Act with a covered fund that is sponsored, advised, or organised and offered by an HSBC Group affiliate. Any transaction between the HSBC Group and such a fund that is not prohibited must be conducted on "market terms." All subsidiaries and affiliates of the HSBC Group, including the Manager and the Investment Adviser, are "banking entities" within the meaning of the Volcker Rule and the Final Regulation.

The Fund does not, and will not, constitute a 'covered fund' under the Final Regulation. Although the Fund may be deemed to be a "banking entity" (and, therefore, subject to the Volcker Rule), section 10(a)(2)(iv) of the Final Regulation provides that a banking entity may hold ownership interests in covered funds as a trustee, or in another similar fiduciary capacity, on behalf of customers that are not themselves covered funds.

The Manager therefore believes that the Fund is in compliance with the Volcker Rule.

w. Potential implications of Brexit

The United Kingdom ("**UK**") left the European Union ("**EU**") on 31 January 2020 at 11pm and the transition period ended on 31 December 2020 at 11pm. Therefore, the Treaty on the European Union and the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union have ceased to apply to the UK.

On 24 December 2020, an agreement in principle was reached in relation to the EU-UK Trade and Cooperation Agreement (the "Trade and Cooperation Agreement"), to govern future relations between the EU and the UK following the end of the transition period. The Trade and Cooperation Agreement was signed on 30 December 2020. The Trade and Cooperation Agreement has provisional application from 1 January 2021 until the European Parliament gives its consent, such that formal ratification can take place. The timeline for the European Parliament to ratify has since been extended to 30 April 2021 but the European Parliament has not yet ratified the Trade and Cooperation Agreement, creating greater political and legal uncertainty regarding the future relationship between the EU and the UK.

The Trade and Cooperation Agreement contains limited provisions in relation to financial services and does not create a detailed framework to govern the cross-border provision of regulated financial services from the UK into the EU and from the EU into the UK. It is therefore currently unclear as to how this aspect of the UK-EU relationship will be dealt with.

The precise impact on the Fund and its investments of the UK's withdrawal from the EU, the implementation of the Trade and Cooperation Agreement and how those areas of the UK-EU relationship which the Trade and Cooperation Agreement does not address, including in particular EU financial market access, are dealt with in the future is difficult to determine. The withdrawal of the UK from the EU could have a material impact on the UK's economy and its future growth, adversely impacting the Fund's investments. The continued uncertainty is likely to generate further global currency and asset price volatility, which could adversely impact the general economic outlook and as such, this may impact negatively on the ability of the Fund and its investments to execute their

strategies effectively, and may also result in increased costs to the Fund. The continued uncertainty could also lead to increased illiquidity of investments located, listed or traded within the UK, the EU or elsewhere and may also result in changes in legal and regulatory regimes to which the Fund, the Manager, certain of the Fund's assets and/or service providers are or become subject.

Any of these events could have a material adverse effect on the Fund and the value of its investments. As such, no assurance can be given that such matters would not adversely affect the Fund in a variety of ways.

x. Potential implications of interest rate benchmark reform.

London Inter-Bank Offered Rates ("**LIBOR**") are forward looking or 'term' interest rate that are quoted in US Dollars, Euros, Swiss Francs, Pound Sterling and Yen. LIBOR, also simply referred to as IBOR rates are used widely to determine the amounts payable under, or the value of, a broad range of financial instruments such as loans, bonds and derivatives.

Following the Financial Crisis International regulatory authorities determined that LIBOR should be discontinued with effect 31 December 2021 and that alternative interest rate benchmarks ("Alternative Benchmarks") should be developed across the industry.

Changing to Alternative Benchmarks will impact both the operation and management of Uni-Folio as well as the investment markets traded by Portfolio Funds. In particular, the adoption of Alternative Benchmarks will impact the existing Hurdle Rates that are part of the Indices used to calculate Performance Fees of Uni-Folio. The Manager also expects that future borrowing arrangements entered into by the Funds will be priced by reference to the new, alternative interest rate benchmarks.

The Manager believes that the adoption of the 3 Month Adjusted Term Risk Free Rates as Alternative Benchmarks within performance fee calculations of relevant share classes will have the same or similar economic effects to 3 Month IBOR. The Manager also believes that these new rates have industry wide recognition and, finally, will be calculated and published by industry third parties.

For the purposes of consistency, 3 Month Adjusted Term Risk Free Rates will replace relevant currency IBOR's with effect 1 January 2022 and that, as a result, the 3 Month Adjusted Term Risk Free Rates will be adopted as the Alternative Benchmark in relevant performance fee calculations from that date.

In order to reduce any uncertainty in relation to performance fee calculations prior to 31 January 2021, and with the aim of reducing any potential disadvantage that may occur during the transition phase to the Alternative Benchmark, the Manager will, up until 31 December 2021, run a parallel performance fee calculation using both existing 3 Month IBOR and 3 Month Adjusted Term Risk Free Rates. Following each of these parallel calculations investors will benefit from the calculation that is most favourable to their interests.

It is important to note that there can be no guarantee that 3 Month Adjusted Term Risk Free Rates will replicate precisely the characteristics or performance of the existing IBOR based benchmarks and that as a result there is a risk that the adoption of 3 Month Adjusted Term Risk Free Rates, beyond 31 December 2021, may give rise to unforeseeable additional costs or expenses for the Funds or the Investors in the future.

It is also possible that the adoption of any wider alternative interest rate benchmarks, across the industry, may cause uncertainty, volatility and disruption to investment markets in a way that may reduce the ability of Portfolio Funds to implement and execute their strategies effectively. As a result, returns derived from Portfolio Funds may be reduced or may lead to losses.

y. Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive

The EU Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive (the "AIFMD") regulates the activities of certain private fund managers undertaking fund management activities or marketing fund interests to investors domiciled or with a registered address within the European Economic Area ("EEA"). In circumstances where any Fund is actively marketed to investors domiciled or having their registered office in the EEA: (i) the relevant Funds will potentially be subject to certain reporting, disclosure and other compliance obligations under the AIFMD, which may result in the Funds incurring additional costs and expenses; (ii) the Funds and/or the Manager will potentially become subject to additional regulatory or compliance obligations arising under national law in certain EEA jurisdictions, which may result in the Funds incurring additional costs and expenses or otherwise affect the management and operation of the Funds; and (iii) the Manager may be required to make detailed information relating to the Funds and the Scheme Property available to regulators and third parties.

z. Notice to investors domiciled or with a registered address in the European Economic Area ("EEA")

Uni-Folio is a non-EEA Alternative Investment Fund ("AIF") managed by a non-EEA Alternative Investment Fund Manager ("AIFM"). Accordingly, only certain provisions of the AIFMD relating to disclosure to investors, reporting to regulators and annual reports apply. Such investors will therefore not benefit from the full provisions envisaged by the AIFMD as would be the case if Uni-Folio were an EEA AIF managed by an EEA AIFM.

Investors domiciled or with a registered address in the EEA should refer to the AIFMD Investor Disclosure Statement which contains important information required to be disclosed under the AIFMD.

aa. Public Health Risk - COVID-19

The Uni-Folio Fund could be adversely affected by the effects of a widespread outbreak of contagious disease, such as the recent outbreak of a novel coronavirus ("COVID-19"). Public health crises can develop rapidly and unpredictably, which may prevent governments, operating companies or others (including the Uni-Folio Fund) from taking timely or effective steps to mitigate or reduce any adverse impact to the Uni-Folio Funds and/or its investments. The extent of any such impacts will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted at this time, including new information which may emerge concerning the severity of COVID-19 and containment efforts.

Any outbreak of contagious diseases and other adverse public health developments, together with any resulting travel disruptions or restrictions, social distancing policies and/or quarantines imposed or recommended by the UK or foreign governments (together "Isolation Measures") may result in the reduced usage of some or all of the assets held by the Uni-Folio Fund and, therefore, result in a corresponding reduction in revenues. Alternatively, a significant outbreak of contagious diseases and consequential imposition of Isolation Measures may result in a surge in demand for certain types of assets (for example, technology assets), of which the relevant operating companies may not be able to sustain. Such surges in usage may ultimately lead to the periodic break down of such technology assets, and the services which they provide. Any such breakdown, for any period of time, may lead to a loss of revenue and/or attract prolonged negative publicity which may have a long term, materially adverse impact on such technology assets.

Furthermore, significant outbreaks of contagious diseases in the human population, and any Isolation Measures imposed, may result in a widespread health crisis that could severely disrupt global, national and/or regional economies and financial markets and cause an economic downturn. This could result in a global, national and/or regional liquidity crisis such that financing to acquire investments may not be obtainable. The inability to secure financing on favourable terms may adversely affect the Uni-Folio Fund.

Isolation Measures may negatively impact the ongoing management and operation of the Uni-Folio Fund's assets and/or impede the ability for such assets to satisfy their contractual obligations owed to third parties. Any failure of an asset to satisfy its contractual obligations may result in contractual counterparties pursuing claims for damages.

Specific Risk Considerations relevant to Portfolio Fund Strategies

The nature of the Funds' underlying Portfolio Funds involves certain risks. The Portfolio Funds utilise investment techniques (such as leverage, short selling and the use of derivatives) which may carry additional risks. An investment in Units therefore carries substantial risk and is suitable only for persons which can assume the risk of losing their entire investment. Prospective investors should consider, among others, the following factors before subscribing for Units:

a. Derivatives

The Portfolio Funds may utilise both exchange-traded and over-the-counter derivatives, including, but not limited to, futures, forwards, options and contracts for differences, as part of its investment policy and for hedging purposes. These instruments can be highly volatile and expose investors to a high risk of loss. The low initial margin deposits normally required to establish a position in such instruments permit a high degree of leverage. As a result, depending on the type of instrument, a relatively small movement in the price of a contract may result in a profit or a loss which is high in proportion to the amount of funds actually placed as initial margin and may result in unquantifiable further loss exceeding any margin deposited. In the event that a call for further margin exceeds the amount of cash available in a Portfolio Fund, the Portfolio Fund will be required to close out the relevant contract. In addition, daily limits on price fluctuations and speculative position limits on exchanges may prevent prompt liquidation of positions resulting in potentially greater losses. Further, when used for hedging purposes there may be an imperfect correlation between these instruments and the investments or market sectors being hedged. Transactions in over-the-counter contracts may involve additional risk as there is no exchange market on which to close out an open position. It may be impossible to liquidate an existing position, to assess the value of a position or to assess the exposure to risk. Contractual asymmetries and inefficiencies can also increase risk, such as break

clauses, whereby a counterparty can terminate a transaction on the basis of a certain reduction in net asset value, incorrect collateral calls or delays in collateral recovery. The Portfolio Funds may also sell covered and uncovered options on securities and other assets. To the extent that such options are uncovered, the Portfolio Funds could incur an unlimited loss.

b. OTC Financial Derivative Transactions

In general, there is less governmental regulation and supervision of transactions in the OTC markets (in which currencies, forward, spot and option contracts, credit default swaps, total return swaps and certain options on currencies are generally traded) than of transactions entered into on organized exchanges. In addition, many of the protections afforded to participants on some organized exchanges, such as the performance guarantee of an exchange clearing house, may not be available in connection with OTC financial derivative transactions. Therefore, a Portfolio Fund entering into OTC financial derivative transactions will be subject to the risk that its direct counterparty will not perform its obligations under the transactions and that a Portfolio Fund will sustain losses. A Portfolio Fund may reduce the exposure incurred in connection with such transactions through the receipt of letters of credit or collateral from certain counterparties. Regardless of the measures a Portfolio Fund may seek to implement to reduce counterparty credit risk, however, there can be no assurance that a counterparty will not default or that a Portfolio Fund will not sustain losses as a result. From time to time, the counterparties with which a Portfolio Fund effects transactions might cease making markets or quoting prices in certain of the instruments. In such instances, a Portfolio Fund might be unable to enter into a desired transaction in currencies, credit default swaps or total return swaps or to enter into an offsetting transaction with respect to an open position, which might adversely affect its performance. Further, in contrast to exchange-traded instruments, forward, spot and option contracts on currencies do not provide the Investment Adviser with the possibility to offset a Portfolio Fund's obligations through an equal and opposite transaction. For this reason, in entering into forward, spot or options contracts, a Portfolio Fund may be required, and must be able, to perform its obligations under the contracts.

c. Investment in Commodity Linked Financial Derivative Instruments

A Portfolio Fund may have exposure to commodities markets. This type of exposure generally entails greater volatility than investments in traditional securities, such as stocks and bonds. The commodities markets may vary widely based on a variety of factors. These include changes in overall market movements, domestic and foreign political and economic events and policies, war, acts of terrorism, changes in domestic or foreign interest rates and/or expectations concerning interest rates, domestic and foreign inflation rates and/or investor expectations concerning inflation rates and investment and trading activities of mutual funds and commodities funds. Prices of various commodities may also be affected by factors such as droughts, floods, weather, livestock disease, embargoes, tariffs and other regulatory developments. Many of these factors are very unpredictable. The prices of commodities can also fluctuate widely due to supply and demand disruptions in major producing or consuming regions. Certain commodities may be produced in a limited number of countries and may be controlled by a small number of producers. As a result political, economic and supply related events in such countries could have a disproportionate impact on the prices of such commodities.

d. Counterparty Risk

In entering into futures contracts and options on futures contracts, there is a risk – a credit risk – that the counterparty will not be able to meet its obligations to a Portfolio Fund. The counterparty for futures contracts and options on futures contracts traded on many international exchanges is the clearinghouse associated with such exchange. In general, clearinghouses are backed by the corporate members of the clearinghouse who are required to share any financial burden resulting from the non-performance by one of its members and, as such, should significantly reduce this credit risk. In cases where the clearinghouse is not backed by the clearinghouse members, it is normally backed by a consortium of banks or other financial institutions. There can be no assurance that any counterparty, clearinghouse members or any clearinghouse will be able to meet its obligations to a Portfolio Fund.

e. Leverage, Borrowings and Creditors

A Portfolio Fund may employ leverage (including through borrowings) for the purpose of making investments. The use of leverage creates special risks and may significantly increase a Portfolio Fund's investment risk. Leverage creates an opportunity for greater yield and total return but, at the same time, will increase a Portfolio Fund's exposure to capital risk and interest costs. Any investment income and gains earned on investments made through the use of leverage that are in excess of the interest costs associated therewith may cause the net asset value of the Portfolio Fund to increase more rapidly than would otherwise be the case. Conversely, where the associated interest costs are greater than such income and gains, the net asset value of the Portfolio Fund may decrease more rapidly than would otherwise be the case.

f. Liquidity and Valuation of Investments

A Portfolio Fund may invest in securities or derivatives which are unlisted or for which there is no active market. For example, a Portfolio Fund may invest in securities or derivatives with direct or indirect exposure to different markets including emerging markets and such investments may be subject to increased political risk or adverse currency movements than securities traded in more developed markets in North America and Europe. In addition, a Portfolio Fund may acquire investments which are only traded over the-counter. Accurately valuing and realising such investments, or closing out positions in such investments at appropriate prices, may not always be possible.

g. Volatility Generally

A Portfolio Fund may invest in instruments that can be extremely volatile. If the investments to which a Portfolio Fund is exposed are significantly more volatile than expected, this may lead to large and sudden fluctuations in the net asset value of a Portfolio Fund and very significant losses.

The positions taken by the Portfolio Fund's investment manager may well be based upon their expectations of price movements over a period of several months following the trade. In the meantime, the market value of the investments may not increase, and, indeed, may decrease, and this will be reflected in the net asset value of a Portfolio Fund.

h. Reliance on Models/Information Technology

A Portfolio Fund's investment approach may be based on mathematical models, which are implemented as automated computer algorithms that the Portfolio Fund's investment manager has developed over time. The successful operation of the automated computer algorithms on which a Portfolio Fund's investment approach is based is reliant upon the information technology systems of the Portfolio Fund's investment manager and its ability to ensure those systems remain operational and that appropriate disaster recovery procedures are in place. Further, as market dynamics shift over time, a previously highly successful model may become outdated, perhaps without the Portfolio Fund's investment manager recognising that fact before substantial losses are incurred. There can be no assurance that the Portfolio Fund's investment manager will be successful in maintaining effective mathematical models and automated computer algorithms.

i. Short Selling

Short selling involves trading on margin and accordingly can involve greater risk than investments based on a long position. A short sale of a security involves the risk of a theoretically unlimited increase in the market price of the security, which could result in an inability to cover the short position and a theoretically unlimited loss. There can be no guarantee that securities necessary to cover a short position will be available for purchase.

Due to regulatory or legislative action taken by regulators around the world as a result of recent volatility in the global financial markets, taking short positions on certain securities has been restricted. The levels of restriction vary across different jurisdictions and are subject to change in the short to medium term. These restrictions have made it difficult and in some cases impossible for numerous market participants either to continue to implement their investment strategies or to control the risk of their open positions. Accordingly, the Portfolio Fund's investment manager may not be in a position to fully express its negative views in relation to certain securities, companies or sectors and the ability of the Portfolio Fund's investment manager to fulfil the investment objective of a Portfolio Fund may be constrained.

j. Foreign Exchange Risk

Because a Portfolio Fund's assets and liabilities may be denominated in currencies different to the base currency of that Portfolio Fund, the Portfolio Fund may be affected favourably or unfavourably by exchange control regulations or changes in the exchange rates between the base currency and other currencies. Changes in currency exchange rates may influence the value of a Portfolio Fund's shares, the dividends or interest earned and the gains and losses realised. Exchange rates between currencies are determined by supply and demand in the currency exchange markets, the international balance of payments, governmental intervention, speculation and other economic and political conditions. If the currency in which a security is denominated appreciates against the base currency, the value of the security will increase. Conversely, a decline in the exchange rate of the currency would adversely affect the value of the security. A Portfolio Fund may engage in foreign currency transactions in order to hedge against currency exchange risk, however there is no guarantee that hedging or protection will be achieved. This strategy may also limit the Portfolio Fund from benefiting from the performance of a Portfolio Fund's securities if the currency in which the securities held by the Portfolio Fund are denominated rises against the base currency.

k. Emerging Markets Risk

Because of the special risks associated with investing in emerging markets, Portfolio Funds which have exposure to such securities should be considered speculative. Economies in emerging markets generally are heavily dependent upon international trade and, accordingly, have been and may continue to be affected adversely by trade barriers, exchange controls, managed adjustments in relative currency values and other protectionist measures imposed or negotiated by the countries with which they trade. These economies also have been and may continue to be affected adversely by economic conditions in the countries in which they trade. Brokerage commissions, custodial services and other costs relating to investment in emerging markets generally are more expensive than those relating to investment in more developed markets. Lack of adequate custodial systems in some markets may prevent investment in a given country or may require a Portfolio Fund to accept greater custodial risks in order to invest. In addition, such markets have different settlement and clearance procedures. In certain markets there have been times when settlements have been unable to keep pace with the volume of securities transactions, making it difficult to conduct such transactions. The inability of a Portfolio Fund to make intended securities purchases due to settlement problems could cause the Portfolio Fund to miss attractive investment opportunities. Inability to dispose of a portfolio security caused by settlement problems could result either in losses to a Portfolio Fund due to subsequent declines in value of the portfolio security or, if a Portfolio Fund has entered into a contract to sell the security, could result in potential liability to the purchaser. The risk also exists that an emergency situation may arise in one or more developing markets as a result of which trading of securities may cease or may be substantially curtailed and prices for a Portfolio Fund's securities in such markets may not be readily available. Investors should note that changes in the political climate in emerging markets may result in significant shifts in the attitude to the taxation of foreign investors. Such changes may result in changes to legislation, the interpretation of legislation, or the granting of foreign investors the benefit of tax exemptions or international tax treaties. The effect of such changes can be retrospective and can (if they occur) have an adverse impact on the investment return of shareholders in any Portfolio Fund so affected.

I. Interest Rate Risk

A Portfolio Fund that has exposure to bonds and other fixed income securities may fall in value if interest rates change. Generally, the prices of debt securities rise when interest rates fall, whilst their prices fall when interest rates rise. Longer term debt securities are usually more sensitive to interest rate changes.

m. Credit Risk

A Portfolio Fund which has exposure to bonds and other fixed income securities is subject to the risk that issuers may not make payments on such securities. An issuer suffering an adverse change in its financial condition could lower the credit quality of a security, leading to greater price volatility of the security. A lowering of the credit rating of a security may also offset the security's liquidity, making it more difficult to sell. Portfolio Funds investing in lower quality debt securities are more susceptible to these problems and their value may be more volatile.

n. Downgrading Risk

Investment grade bonds may be subject to the risk of being downgraded to non-investment grade bonds. In the event of downgrading in the credit ratings of a security or an issuer relating to a security, a Portfolio Fund's investment value in such security may be adversely affected. If downgrading occurs, the non-investment grade debt risk outlined in the paragraph below will apply.

o. Non-Investment Grade Debt

Credit risk is greater for investments in fixed-income securities that are rated below investment grade or which are of comparable quality than for investment grade securities. It is more likely that income or capital payments may not be made when due. Thus the risk of default is greater. The amounts that may be recovered after any default may be smaller or zero and a Portfolio Fund may incur additional expenses if it tries to recover its losses through bankruptcy or other similar proceedings. The market for these securities may be less active, making it more difficult to sell the securities. Valuation of these securities is more difficult and thus a Portfolio Fund's price may be more volatile.

13. Additional Risk Factors Applicable to Swiss Registered Funds

As a result of the authorisation of the HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund in Switzerland, in addition to the information given under the section headed "Risk Warnings and Disclosures" above, investors should pay attention to the additional information given under the section headed "Additional Risk Factors Applicable to Swiss Registered Funds" below. Furthermore, they should be aware that each Fund generally involves a higher investment risk and it is only designed for informed investors. Investors should not invest a large proportion of their assets in the Funds.

a. General risks

Potential investors must be aware that an investment in Uni-Folio involves a high degree of risk, including the risk of losing the entire amount invested. Funds are liable to invest and trade in high risk instruments, including such risks as the volatility of securities, financial futures, derivative products, exchange and interest rate risks, leverage effects from trading in these markets and instruments and potential exposure to losses due to counterparty defaults. There is no guarantee that the investment programme will meet with success, nor that the investment objectives will be achieved. The price and value of Units in Uni-Folio may vary, and the value of Units may fall below the amount initially invested.

In spite of rigorous Due Diligence during the selection and supervision of the Portfolio Funds in which the Fund invests, the past performances of these Portfolio Funds can in no way be considered a guarantee of their future performances (whether in terms of profitability or correlation). It is possible that on redemption of Units or if UniFolio is wound up, an investor may not to recover the whole of the amount invested.

Each Fund aims to invest in Portfolio Funds pursuing a speculative investment policy. These Portfolio Funds generally fall into the category known as "hedge funds" or "alternative investments". Similarly, the panoply of investments may include funds investing in futures contracts and options on commodities, and futures contracts on the currencies or financial instruments concerned. Such Portfolio Funds are liable to use specialised investment and trading techniques such as option rights, futures contracts or short sales of securities. Each Fund will try to diversify the risk by selecting Portfolio Funds managed by different fund managers with different investment styles, or by investing in different sectors.

b. Absence of a controlling body

Each Fund is authorised to invest in funds constituted in jurisdictions where controlling bodies exercise no or little supervision over Portfolio Funds. Although in such cases each Fund ensures that other guarantees are provided to protect Unit Holders' interests, this protection is liable to be less effective than supervision by a controlling body. Furthermore, any supervision or protection may suffer from a lack of precision in directives concerning investment risks and the diversification of risks applicable to Portfolio Funds, or from a lack of flexibility in the latter's investment policies. In order to minimise these risks, a Due Diligence procedure for selection criteria of the Portfolio Funds has been established.

c. Portfolio Funds' lack of cash

Although the Manager makes every effort to choose Portfolio Funds offering the possibility of redemption of shares or units within a reasonable period, it is possible that the investments made by Portfolio Funds become insufficiently liquid to allow redemption requests to be honoured immediately as and when desired. Any lack of cash may affect the liquidity of Units in a Fund and on the value of its investments.

For these reasons, the treatment of redemption requests may be deferred under exceptional circumstances, including in cases where lack of liquidity makes it difficult to determine the Net Asset Value of a Fund, subsequently resulting in the suspension of Unit issues and redemptions (see "Application, redemption and transfer of Units").

d. Performance fee

Part of the commission paid to the Manager is based on the performance of Uni-Folio. The Manager will make a capital gain, realised or not, if the value of Uni-Folio increases.

In addition, because of the specific nature of the Portfolio Funds in which a Fund is liable to invest, many Portfolio Funds, if not the majority, pay performance bonuses to their fund managers. As part of these arrangements, fund managers benefit from a capital gain, whether realised or not, if the value of the assets in their care increases, without their being penalised in the event of realised losses or decreases in the value of these assets.

e. Commission structure

Each Fund incurs the costs of its own management and of the commissions paid to the Manager, the Investment Adviser and the Trustee and of the pro rata cost of commissions paid to fund managers and other service suppliers by the Portfolio Funds in which a Fund has invested. As a result the operating costs of a Fund may represent a higher percentage of the net asset value than that found in other investment plans. In addition certain strategies used by Portfolio Funds require frequent changes in positions and heavy churning of the portfolio. This may create much higher brokerage fees than are found in other investment plans of comparable size.

Potential investors must be aware that on top of the commissions paid to the Manager, the Investment Adviser and the Trustee there are commissions paid by the Portfolio Funds to the fund managers resulting in double counting commissions.

There will be no double counting of commissions when a Fund invests in Portfolio Funds managed by the HSBC Group.

f. Leverage effect

Certain Portfolio Funds in which a Fund may invest may use substantial amounts of leverage and are not limited in either their borrowing capacity nor in their level of margin commitment. The total value of positions held by these funds may exceed their net asset value. The leverage acquired offers the possibility of achieving a much greater overall return, but also increases the Fund's volatility and carries the risk of total loss of the amount invested.

g. Short selling

A Fund may invest in Portfolio Funds that carry out short sales of securities, thus exposing the assets committed to unlimited risk because of the absence of any upper limit fixing the maximum price which a security may theoretically reach. When a Fund makes use of short selling through a Portfolio Fund, the Fund's own losses will be limited to the amount invested in the Portfolio Fund in question.

h. Absence of custodian banks

Certain Portfolio Funds that receive the assets of a Fund use a broker in place of a bank. It is possible that in some cases these brokers may not have the same notion of creditworthiness as a bank. Furthermore, contrary to a custodian bank, which operates in a regulated environment, brokers only act as depositories without being subject to legal surveillance requirements.

i. Conflicts of interest

Conflicts of interest may occur between the Fund and the persons or companies involved as advisers in the management of the Fund and/or the fund managers of the Portfolio Funds used by the Fund. The fund managers of Portfolio Funds normally manage the assets of other clients, who make investments similar to those made on behalf of funds in which a Fund has invested. These clients could therefore be in competition for the same contracts or investments, and although the investments or available opportunities for each client are normally allocated in an equitable fashion, certain allocation procedures can produce a negative effect on the price paid or obtained for investments bought or sold or on the volume of positions obtained or sold.

In addition, the other services offered by the HSBC Group, which is authorised to provide advisory, custodial and other services to the Fund, to other clients and to a number of Portfolio Funds in which a Fund may invest, may themselves represent a source of conflicts of interest.

In the same vein, certain fund managers have holdings in the capital of their own Portfolio Funds. Ipso facto, conflicts of interest in Portfolio Funds cannot be excluded.

j. The nature of a Fund's investments

The investment decisions are normally taken independently by the Portfolio Funds. It is therefore possible for fund managers to take positions in the same security or issues in the same industry or in the same country or in the same currency or commodity at the same time. Consequently it is also possible for one Portfolio Fund to decide to buy an instrument at almost the same moment as another Portfolio Fund decides to sell it. There is no guarantee that the choice of fund managers will result in the real diversification of management styles or the systematic treatment of positions taken by the Portfolio Funds.

The assets of any Fund can also be distributed in Portfolio Funds whose initial investment strategies include speculation with future contracts in commodities and/or financial futures or currencies. The prices of futures contracts in commodities and currencies can be very volatile because of the low margin levels required. Futures contract accounts typically include an extremely high leverage. As a result, a relatively small price movement in a

futures contract can result in substantial losses or gains for the investor. Similarly, certain Portfolio Funds can put the majority of their assets in option rights and other leveraged instruments, where a relatively small movement in shares or underlying commodities can cause large losses or gains.

The strategies and techniques authorised for managers of Portfolio Funds have very few constraints.

By reason of its diversified investments a Fund is liable to incur other risks, including the exchange risks associated with assets held in other currencies, fiscal risks associated with assets invested in other jurisdictions, political, social and economic risks that could affect the assets of funds in which the Fund could invest and which are held in countries liable to economic or political difficulties, or social troubles.

k. Use of subsidiaries (special purpose vehicles)

A Fund's assets may be held in a separate legal structure (the "Subsidiary") in which the Fund holds 100% of the equity; and whose management is assured by a Portfolio Fund manager. The Subsidiary is currently constituted in Guernsey. The law applicable in such jurisdictions recognises the principal of total legal separation between the Subsidiary and its shareholders as regards commitments by the Subsidiary to third parties. In exceptional cases there nevertheless exists a risk that the Fund be held responsible for commitments made by the Subsidiary. The Manager makes every effort to limit this residual risk through the inclusion of specific contractual clauses in the agreements reached with Portfolio Fund managers.

I. Investments through managed accounts

The Funds' assets may be invested in managed accounts, provided such investments are managed exclusively through wholly-owned subsidiaries of such Fund (each, a "Subsidiary" and together, the "Subsidiaries"). A majority of the directors of the Subsidiaries must be directors of the Manager. One or more portfolio managers may be appointed with discretionary investment authority over such Subsidiary's assets. The names of such portfolio managers will be disclosed in the periodical reports published by Uni-Folio from time to time and Holders may enquire at any time at the registered office of the Manager to obtain such information. Portfolio managers will generally be entitled to receive a fixed management fee and a variable performance fee. The Manager may use Subsidiaries organised with limited liability in seeking to, for example, insulate the Uni-Folio's assets from the creditors of a Subsidiary, claim tax benefits which would not otherwise be available to Uni-Folio, or allocate assets to a manager whose hedge fund is closed to new participants or which has an investment policy which is not consistent with the investment objectives and policies of the Fund concerned. The investments of each Subsidiary must be made in compliance with the investment restrictions and the investment objective of the Fund concerned. If a Fund conducts a portion of its investment operations through one or more Subsidiaries, its assets may include securities and other financial instruments held directly and indirectly through such Subsidiaries. Uni-Folio will use part of the available assets of the Fund to subscribe on its behalf to all shares or units issued by such Subsidiaries. The securities issued by one or more Subsidiaries and owned by a Fund are not considered to be investments of such Fund for regulatory investment restriction purposes. Consequently, when preparing Uni Folio's audited annual and unaudited semi-annual reports, the financial results of each such Subsidiary will be consolidated with the financial results of the related Fund which will be audited by Uni-Folio's auditors. The Subsidiaries' activities may only consist of holding assets in the manner described above. Further, the Trustee will ensure that all measures will be taken in order to comply with its legal and statutory obligations.

14. Fund Section for the HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund

Investment Objective:	To provide a total return from selective investment in a number of Hedge Funds which utilise predominantly commodity trading adviser and managed futures strategies.
Current Investment Policy:	To provide a level of return commensurate with the risks associated with investment in Hedge Funds which utilise predominantly commodity trading adviser and managed futures strategies as measured in Index terms. At all times, at least two-thirds of the Fund's total assets (less the liquid assets which comprise bank credit balances and claims arising from repurchase agreements at sight or on demand with maturities of up to twelve months) shall, on a consolidated basis, be invested directly or indirectly in commodity trading adviser and managed futures strategies.

Unit classes:	Hurdle Rate (each the "Index"):
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund – US Dollar Class	3 Month Adjusted Term SOFR plus 3.5% per annum
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund – Euro Hedged Class	3 Month Adjusted Term ESTR plus 3.5% per annum
(together the "Currency Hedged Classes")	
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund – US Dollar R Class	3 Month Adjusted Term SOFR plus 3.5% per annum
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund – Sterling Hedged R Class	3 Month Adjusted Term SONIA plus 3.5% per annum

(together the "R Classes")	
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund – S Class (US Dollar)	3 Month Adjusted Term SOFR plus 3.5% per annum
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund – S Class (Euro Hedged)	3 Month Adjusted Term ESTR plus 3.5% per annum
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund – S Class (Sterling Hedged)	3 Month Adjusted Term SONIA plus 3.5% per annum
(together the "S Classes")	

Important note with regards to LIBOR as used to calculate the Hurdle Rate.

As described with the General Risk Considerations, LIBOR will be demised with effect 31 December 2021. In the light of which the Manager will adopt 3 Month Adjusted Term Risk Free Rates as Alternative Benchmarks for the purposes of performance fee calculation. This change will take effect 1 January 2021.

In order to reduce any uncertainty and with the aim of reducing any potential disadvantage that may occur prior to the permanent adoption of 3 Month Adjusted Term Risk Free Rates the Manager will, up until 31 December 2021, run a parallel performance fee calculation using both existing LIBOR benchmarks as well as 3 Month Adjusted Term Risk Free Rates. Following each of these parallel calculations investors will benefit from the calculation that is most favourable to their interests.

Fund Characteristics:

Initial Unit Price:	USD100.00, Euro100.00 orGBP100.00 depending on the Reference Currency of the Unit class
Base Currency:	US Dollar
Reference Currency of Unit class:	As stated in the name of the Unit class
Type of Units to be issued:	Accumulation
Dividend Policy:	All income will be "rolled-up"

	S Classes: Only available to institutional investors who have negotiated terms of investment with the HSBC Group.	
	For applications for Units instructions must be received before 11:59 p.m. (Guernsey time) on the 5th Business Day prior to the last Business Day of each calendar month, with the relevant Valuation Point being 5:00 p.m. (Guernsey time) on the last Business Day of such calendar month.	
Dealing Days:		
	For redemption of Units:	
	All Unit classes:	
	 instructions must be received before 11:59 p.m. (Guernsey time) on the 5th Business Day prior to the last Business Day of the previous calendar month, with the relevant Valuation Point being 5:00 p.m. (Guernsey time) on the last Business Day of the following calendar month. 	
Minimum Holding and Transaction Size:	HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund - US Dollar Class: USD25,000	
	HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund - Euro Hedged Class: EUR25,000	
	HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund - US Dollar R Class: USD25,000	
	HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund - Sterling Hedged R Class: GBP15,000	
	HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund - S Class (US Dollar) – USD1,000	
	HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund - S Class (Euro Hedged) – EUR1,000	
	HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund - S Class (Sterling Hedged) – GBP1,000	
	or such amount as the Manager in its discretion may determine. The R Classes are only available for investment by persons who can demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the Manager, that they are impacted by the UK RDR Rules or other equivalent local judgements, regulations or similar which prohibit the payment of retrocessions or in the opinion of the Manager make the payment of retrocessions illegal, impracticable or inadvisable.	
Accounting Date:	Last Business Day in July annually.	
Set-up Costs:	Will not exceed USD5,000 or currency equivalent per Unit class. No set-up costs shall be payable by the S Classes.	
Fees:	All Unit classes except R and S Classes:	
	 Annual fees: Management Fee Rate 1.75%. Performance Fee will be 10% of new "excess" value over the Index of the applicable Unit class 	
	R Classes:	
	 Annual fees: Management Fee Rate 0.75%. Performance Fee will be 10% of new "excess" value over the Index of the applicable Unit class 	
	S Classes:	
	 Annual fees: Management Fee Rate: 0.15%. Performance Fee will be 10% of new "excess" value over the Index of the applicable Unit class. 	

Investment Limitations and Restrictions

- **a.** The Fund will acquire direct interests or shares in Portfolio Funds operated by selected managers where each such Portfolio Fund has substantial interests in all asset classes including, but not limited to, investment in currencies, fixed term securities, equities, futures, options, warrants and any other instruments considered appropriate.
- **b.** The Fund may also have cash, near cash equivalent instruments and other short-term instruments.
- **c.** Any cash held pending investment or held to meet Unit redemption payments or operational expenses or otherwise held, may be deposited with an Approved Bank or HSBC so that the total aggregate exposure to any one bank does not exceed 20% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund provided that this restriction shall not apply

- if the application of the restriction would result in an exposure of less than USD5 million or currency equivalent per institution.
- d. At each Valuation Point, (a) a minimum of 40% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund will be held in Portfolio Funds with a monthly dealing frequency or less; (b) a further 40% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund will be held in Portfolio Funds with a quarterly dealing frequency or better; and (c) not more than 20% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund shall be held in Portfolio Funds with a dealing frequency in excess of quarterly (including side pocket holdings) or otherwise be held in shares or interests in Portfolio Funds that are closed-ended funds, for which no established market for the sale of such shares or interests exists.

e. FX Hedging:

- i. HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund US Dollar Class: Assets and liabilities expressed in currencies other than the Reference Currency of the Unit class may, or may not, be hedged back to the relevant Reference Currency.
- ii. All other Unit classes: Assets may be denominated in currencies other than the Reference Currency of each Unit class and it is anticipated that such currency exposure will be hedged back to the relevant Reference Currency. Hedging for this purpose may be by means of forward foreign exchange contracts or options on such contracts or by using such other derivative instruments as may be available and having the same or similar effect. The Manager retains the right to vary the policy on currency hedging at its absolute discretion.
- iii. All costs of such hedging will be met by the Holders of the relevant Unit class but may be reflected in the Net Asset Value of the Fund as a whole and may, therefore, also be reflected in the performance of that Unit class and also of other Unit classes.
- f. If an interest is acquired in a Portfolio Fund via any form of mutual fund or investment syndicate which is managed or operated by the Manager, an affiliate of the Manager or the Trustee, the Manager shall procure that all fees accruing to it or any such affiliate shall be refunded to this Fund in respect of such interest acquired so that any possible double-charging of fees is negated.
- **g.** The Fund shall not sell short any asset provided however that the Portfolio Funds in which the Fund invests may carry out such short sales.

Authorisation of the Fund in Switzerland

As a result of the authorisation of the Fund in Switzerland, the following investment limitations and restrictions also apply:

- a. The Fund shall not purchase or own more than 20% of the securities issued by any single Portfolio Fund.
- b. An investment in any one Portfolio Fund shall not exceed 20% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.
- **c.** The Fund shall not invest in Portfolio Funds whose investment objective is to invest primarily in other Portfolio Funds.
- **d.** The Fund shall not invest more than 30% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund in Portfolio Funds managed by the same manager
- e. The Fund shall not invest more than 30% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund in (i) Portfolio Funds which are managed directly or indirectly by the Fund, by the Manager and/or by an affiliate of the Manager, or (ii) Portfolio Funds affiliated with the Manager. For the purposes of paragraph (ii), a Portfolio Fund will be affiliated with the Manager if it is managed by a company to which the Fund and/or the Manager is linked in the following manner (A) they are associated through common management or control, or (B) they are associated through holdings of more than 10% of the capital or voting rights. In addition, investments of up to 30% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund into Portfolio Funds managed by the Manager or by an affiliate of the Manager, into affiliated Portfolio Funds are subject to the following conditions:
 - i. no subscription fee or redemption fee may be paid by the Fund to such affiliated Portfolio Funds;
 - ii. no "kick-back" may be received by Uni-Folio, the Manager or the Investment Adviser from such affiliated Portfolio Fund; and
 - the Management Fee owed to the Manager will be reduced by an amount equal to the management fee received by the affiliated Portfolio Fund for the assets managed by, or invested in, such affiliated Portfolio Fund and in no event shall exceed 0.25%.
- f. The Fund shall not invest more than 20% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund in closed-ended Portfolio Funds whose shares or units are neither listed on a stock exchange nor traded on another regulated market open to the public. In addition, the Fund shall at all times ensure that it manages its portfolio of Portfolio Funds in a manner that enables sufficient liquidity to meet its redemption obligations.
- g. The Fund shall not make any investment which exposes the Fund to unlimited liability

- h. The Fund shall not issue warrants or other rights to subscribe for Units in the Fund.
- i. The Fund shall not acquire real estate.
- j. The Fund shall not grant loans or guarantees in favour of third parties (including other Funds).
- **k.** The Fund shall not invest in, or in Portfolio Funds whose purpose is to invest in, commodities, antiques or art, provided that the Portfolio Funds may, under exceptional circumstances and for a limited period of time, be compelled to acquire physical commodities positions.
- I. The Fund shall not invest in managed accounts, except in the manner set out in the section headed "Investments through managed accounts".

Rules of the Japan Securities Dealers Association

As a result of the rules of the Japan Securities Dealers Association, the following additional investment limitations and restrictions apply:

- **a.** Not more than 50% of the total number of the outstanding shares of stock of any one target investment or not more than 50% of the total voting rights of any one company may be acquired on behalf of all funds managed by the Manager. This percentage may be computed either at the time of the purchase or at the market price.
- **b.** Not more than 15% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund may be invested in any investments without liquidity, such as shares of stock privately placed or unlisted shares of stock, which cannot be readily realised.
- **c.** The Manager shall not carry out any transactions that would be deemed to be against the protection of the interest of any Fund's Holders or to impair the appropriate management of the Fund's assets, such as transactions that would be carried out for its own benefit or the benefit of any third parties other than Holders of any Fund.

Limits on Hedging and Derivative Transactions

The Fund may utilise derivative transactions for the purposes of hedging only. The Fund shall not invest in derivative instruments for speculative purposes. Where the Fund utilises derivatives, no more than 15% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund may be utilised as margin or premium to effect these transactions, which may also be facilitated by Borrowing.

Borrowing Limits

The Fund may Borrow up to a total of 25% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund as follows:

- **a.** For a period of up to one month to cover a cash shortfall caused by mismatched settlement dates on purchase and sale transactions of shares or other participating interests in Portfolio Funds.
- **b.** For a period of up to three months, to fund redemption payments to Holders of Units.
- **c.** For a period of up to three months for the purpose of FX Hedging (including to fund related currency hedging cash flows).
- **d.** For investment purposes, subject to a maximum of 10% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund, to facilitate additional investment in Portfolio Funds.

Borrowing Limits are calculated by reference to the Net Asset Value of the Fund taking into account all accepted subscriptions and redemptions at the relevant Valuation Point. Any Borrowing and any Borrowing Costs incurred will be taken into account and included in the calculation of the Net Asset Value of the Fund as a whole.

Limits on Redemptions

The Manager may limit the number of Units in the Fund which may be redeemed on any Dealing Day to not more than 10% of the total number of Units in issue immediately before such date. Such 10% limit shall be calculated in respect of the Fund as a whole and not in respect of each individual Unit class. Any Units failing to be redeemed upon the exercise of this discretion by the Manager will be carried forward to the next Dealing Day and shall be redeemed pro rata in priority to any other Units in respect of which a Redemption Notice has subsequently been received.

TA SPV

The Fund invests via HSBC Trading Advantedge Investments Ltd, a non-cellular company registered in Guernsey with company registration number 68640 whose registered office address is at Arnold House, St Julian's Avenue, St Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 1WA (the "**TA SPV**").

The TA SPV is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Fund through which all investments made on behalf of the Fund are held either by the TA SPV or by the Custodians on its behalf. The Manager acts as corporate director and investment manager of the TA SPV.

Risk Warnings and Disclosures

Please refer to sections headed "Risk Warnings and Disclosures" and "Additional Risk Factors Applicable to Swiss Registered Funds".

In addition to the above risk warnings and disclosures, investors should note that this Fund carries a greater investment risk generally and should be for experienced investors only. An investment in this Fund should not represent a large part of an investor's assets.

15. Constitution of HSBC Uni-Folio

15.1. Constitution of Uni-Folio and the AdvantEdge Fund

The umbrella unit trust known by the name of "Republic Uni-Folio" was created by a unit trust instrument dated 23 July 1999. The Trust Instrument has subsequently been updated to comply with developments in the Class B Rules and was replaced on 26 June 2014. The unit trust instrument was further amended and restated on 1 May 2021 following the appointment of HSBC Custody Services (Guernsey) Limited as Trustee.

The original trustee of Uni-Folio was HSBC SFT (C.I.) Limited) ("**HSFT CI**"). Pursuant to an instrument of retirement and appointment dated 1 May 2021, HSFT CI retired as trustee of Uni-Folio and HSBC Custody Services (Guernsey) Limited was appointed Trustee.

With effect from 31 January 2002 the name of the umbrella unit trust was changed to HSBC Republic Uni-Folio and from 1 January 2004 the name was changed to HSBC Uni-Folio.

Under the terms of the Trust Instrument, the Manager and the Trustee may, from time to time, establish one or more Funds and, in respect of each such Fund, the Manager may offer Units for sale.

Uni-Folio and every Fund will terminate on or before 2099.

15.2. Authorisation of Uni-Folio

Uni-Folio has been authorised by the Commission as a Class B Collective Investment Scheme under the Law and the Class B Rules. It must be distinctly understood that in giving this authorisation the Commission does not vouch for the financial soundness or the correctness of any of the statements made or opinions expressed with regard to Uni-Folio or the AdvantEdge Fund. Investors in Uni-Folio and the AdvantEdge Fund are not eligible for the payment of any compensation under the Collective Investment Schemes (Compensation of Investors) Rules 1988 made under the Law.

15.3. The Manager

The Manager of Uni-Folio is HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited, a company incorporated with limited liability in Guernsey on 25 September 1986 with registered number 15988 and having its registered office at Arnold House, St Julian's Avenue, St Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 1WA, Channel Islands and is regulated by the Commission.

The Manager is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC Global Asset Management Limited, a company incorporated in the United Kingdom. The directors of the Manager are:

Carl Rosumek (chartered accountant) (non-executive director). Mr Rosumek was previously Director of Investment Supervision and Policy at the Guernsey Financial Services Commission, prior to which he worked for KPMG and its predecessor firms.

Isabel Robins (BSc Hons MRICS) (non-executive director). Ms Robins is a Chartered Surveyor having previously run the Real Estate team at Crestbridge trust company, and acted as fund manager at Schroders in Jersey. Prior to moving to Jersey in 1997 her career was in property investment in London.

Tony Corfield (Chairperson; non-executive director). Mr Corfield is the Chief Operating Officer of HSBC Global Asset Management with responsibility for operational, risk and IT issues across the private client, institutional and wholesale businesses in the UK and Jersey as well as certain Luxembourg and Dublin fund ranges. Prior to that Mr Corfield worked in the public service with HM Customs and in the internal audit department of a bank and was a Fellow of the Institute of Internal Auditors (UK).

Raj Grewal. Mr Grewal joined HSBC in 2011 and has over 20 years of experience in the financial services industry. Previous roles include Head of Performance Analytics at Morgan Stanley's PWM business as well as Senior Performance Analyst and Quant Desk analyst roles at Threadneedle Investments. Mr Grewal holds an MSc in International Securities and Investment Banking from Henley Business School and is a CIPM certificate holder.

Stephen Rouxel (executive director). Mr Rouxel is the "Head of Business" of the Manager. Mr Rouxel joined HSBC in 2015. Prior to joining HSBC, Mr Rouxel worked at State Street, Butterfield Fulcrum Group and Anson Fund Managers in Guernsey in a variety of senior roles. Mr Rouxel is a member of the Guernsey Investment Fund

Association Executive Committee, is the Guernsey Chamber of Commerce Finance and Accounting lead and holds diplomas in Governance Risk and Compliance and Anti Money Laundering with the International Compliance Association.

Jason Liddy (executive director) (chartered accountant, FCA, and Fellow of the Chartered Securities Institute, FCSI). Mr Liddy is the Head of Alternative Operations of the Manager. Mr Liddy has seventeen years' offshore experience specialising in funds and investments, most recently with Kleinwort Benson. Mr Liddy has also held non-executive directorships on investment funds, both listed and unlisted, in previous roles and has had responsibility for running a client accounting department and management of a team of accountants for a local fund administration company.

Daniel de Lisle (alternate executive director) (BSc, ACA chartered accountant). Mr de Lisle is the Business Manager of the Manager. Mr de Lisle joined HSBC in 2016. Prior to joining HSBC he worked as a Director at Rothschild Trust and as a Management Consultant within the Finance industry helping to turn around various businesses including the International Stock Exchange. Mr de Lisle is a Chartered Accountant (ICAEW) and LSE Economics graduate with over 20 years' offshore experience in fiduciary, insurance, funds and investments.

The Manager shall have the exclusive right to create and cancel Units subject to prior notification to be given to the Trustee, who shall have ultimate discretion at all times to prevent or approve such creation and cancellation, which approval may be tacit. The Manager has the right to sell Units to investors and repurchase Units from investors as at each Dealing Day and to trade in Units between itself and investors so that any profits derived by it from such trading activity shall accrue to it for its own account. The Manager may deal in Units without accounting for any profits to investors or the Trustee.

The Manager is responsible for the overall portfolio management activities of Uni-Folio and its risk management activities. For the purposes of the foregoing, the Manager may delegate certain implementation and execution activities to the Investment Adviser, and may act on advice and recommendations received from the Investment Adviser. The Manager has arrangements in place for the risk management of assets within the fund of hedge fund sphere, which is key in the active handling of multi-manager funds.

15.4. Administrator; Designated Administrator

Pursuant to the terms of the Trust Instrument and in accordance with the Class B Rules, the Manager has entered into an administration agreement with HSBC Securities Services (Guernsey) Limited (the "Administrator") of Arnold House, St. Julian's Avenue, St Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 3NF pursuant to which the Manager has delegated certain administration functions to the Administrator who, for the purposes of the Law and the Class B Rules, is the designated administrator of Uni-Folio. All fees payable by the Manager to the Administrator under the administration agreement are payable by the Manager out of the Management Fee.

15.5. Transfer Agent

The Manager has delegated transfer agency functions to HSBC Securities Services (Ireland) DAC, of 1 Grand Canal Square, Grand Canal Harbour, Dublin 2, Ireland, as Transfer Agent. The Transfer Agent is responsible for providing all necessary transfer agency functions, including application and transaction processing and services related to these functions.

15.6. The Supervisory Committee

In accordance with Swiss regulation regarding the distribution of the AdvantEdge Fund in Switzerland, a supervisory committee has been constituted.

The Manager has charged the Supervisory Committee (in conjunction with the Local Management Committee where applicable) with the responsibility of identifying, measuring, managing, monitoring and overseeing (as applicable) (i) the risks applicable to the Manager and Uni-Folio and its investment strategy, (ii) Uni-Folio's compliance with the Investment Restrictions, (iii) the daily management of Uni-Folio's assets and (iv) the Investment Adviser's activities. The task of the Supervisory Committee is to ensure that the Manager, the Investment Adviser and the various suppliers of services comply at all times with applicable Guernsey regulations and laws, the Trust Instrument and this Prospectus.

The Supervisory Committee is responsible, in conjunction with the Local Management Committee where required, for supervising compliance with investment restrictions, day-to-day asset allocation and the Investment Adviser's activities.

The Supervisory Committee's tasks will include supervising implementation of the investment strategies and investment policy of Uni-Folio, and will check all portfolio transactions made by the Investment Adviser under its delegated authority from the Manager.

The members of the Supervisory Committee are Mr Stephen Rouxel, Mr Jason Liddy and Dennis Stoller.

The biographies of Mr Rouxel and Mr Liddy are set out at section 15.3 (The Manager).

Dennis Stoller. Mr Stoller is the Head of Investment Oversight for the Manager. Mr Stoller has ten years' experience in science, followed by twenty years' experience in investments. His experience spans the Insurance, Corporate Treasury, Banking and Asset Management sectors, covering Equities, Fixed Income, Currencies, Commodities, Derivatives, Private Equity, Real Estate/Infrastructure and Fund of Funds through at least two major global cycles (the 2000 technology crash and the 2008 global financial crisis). Dennis is fluent in several computer languages with expertise in derivatives and asset valuation, time series analysis, systematic trading, portfolio construction and market risk management. Dennis holds a PhD in Physics, CISI Level 4 Investment Advice Diploma, and ICA Postgrad Diploma in Governance Risk and Compliance, and has held Executive and Non-Executive Directorships including Investment Committee Chair responsibilities.

15.7. The Local Management Committee and Risk Management Meeting

Local Management Committee

HMG, the Manager of the AdvantEdge Fund, has established the Local Management Committee. The Local Management Committee is a management forum established to provide recommendations and advice as required by the Head of Business of the Manager ("**HMG Head of Business**") to assist him/her in the discharge of his/her responsibilities.

The scope and remit of the Local Management Committee extends to the entire business of HMG, including the investment vehicles which HMG manages including the AdvantEdge Fund.

The HMG Head of Business is accountable to HMG Board and is responsible to the HMG Board for the day to day management of HMG. The HMG Head of Business has the delegated authority and powers to provide business oversight, monitoring and stewardship for HMG. The HMG Head of Business has the power to:

- approve and deal with any formal matters on behalf of the HMG Board which, in the opinion of the HMG Head of Business, are of a routine or technical nature and relate to matters in the ordinary course of business; and
- consider and in exceptional circumstances take decisions on matters, which in the opinion of the HMG Head of Business, are of an urgent nature but do not justify the convening of a special HMG Board meeting.

The members of the Local Management Committee are Mr Stephen Rouxel (Chairperson), Mr Jason Liddy, Mr Daniel de Lisle and Mr Raj Grewal.

The biographies of Mr Rouxel, Mr Liddy Mr Grewal and Mr de Lisle are set out at section 15.3 (The Manager).

Risk Management Meeting

The Manager, HMG, has also established the Risk Management Meeting to provide monitoring and control services with respect to the risk exposures of certain of the funds managed by the Manager, including HSBC Uni-Folio. The overall purpose of the Risk Management Meeting is to provide recommendations and advice as required by the HMG Chief Risk Officer ("**HMG CRO**") to assist him/her in the discharge of his role and responsibilities.

The HMG CRO is responsible for setting, within the context of HSBC Global Asset Management ("**AMG**") and HSBC Group direction, the HMG risk management strategy and appetite, policies and control standards for HMG and to monitor implementation. In this regard the HMG CRO reviews the material risks affecting the HMG business and is responsible for the oversight of its risk and internal control environment.

The members of the Risk Management Meeting are Mr. Raj Grewal (Chairman), Mr. Stephen Rouxel (Deputy Chairman), Mr. Daniel de Lisle, Mr. Jason Liddy, Ms Stella Fallaize and Mr. David Isley.

The biographies for Mr. Raj Grewal (Chairman), Mr. Stephen Rouxel (Deputy Chairman), Mr. Daniel de Lisle and Mr. Jason Liddy are provided at section 15.3 (*The Manager*) and section 15.7 (*Local Management Committee*). The biographies for Ms Stella Fallaize and Mr. David Isley are provided below:

Stella Fallaize. Ms. Fallaize is the Head of Regulatory Compliance of the Manager. Ms. Fallaize has worked in the funds industry in Guernsey within the HSBC Group since 1994, and has acted as the Compliance Officer for HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited since January 2005. She has more than 40 years overall service with the HSBC Group.

David Isley. Mr. Isley is the Money Laundering Compliance Officer for HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited. Mr. Isley has joined HSBC from RBS International, where he fulfilled numerous roles in retail and wealth management banking spanning a 33-year career.

15.8. The Trustee

HSBC Custody Services (Guernsey) Limited was incorporated with limited liability in Guernsey on 25 August 1992 with registered number 25799. Its registered office is at Arnold House, St Julian's Avenue, St Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 3NF, Channel Islands. HSBC Custody Services (Guernsey) Limited is regulated by the Commission.

HSBC Custody Services (Guernsey) Limited has issued share capital of GBP 4 million (all fully paid up).

HSBC Custody Services (Guernsey) Limited is part of the HSBC Group. HSBC Custody Services (Guernsey) Limited's principal business activity is the provision of custodian and trustee services.

For the purpose of the Law and the Class B Rules the Trustee is the designated trustee of Uni-Folio. Under the terms of the Trust Instrument, the Trustee, with the prior consent of the Manager and the Commission, has the power to appoint another body corporate to be a trustee of a particular Fund so as to act jointly and severally as a co-trustee with the Trustee in respect of such Fund.

The Trustee may delegate its safekeeping functions subject to the terms of the Trust Instrument.

From time to time actual or potential conflicts of interest may arise between the Trustee and the Custodians (defined below) and their delegates, for example, where an appointed delegate is an affiliated group company and is providing a product or service to the Fund and has a financial or business interest in such product or service or where an appointed delegate is an affiliated group company which receives remuneration for other related products or services it provides to the Fund. The Trustee and Custodians maintain a conflict of interest policy to address this.

In addition, actual or potential conflicts of interest may also arise between the Fund, the Holders and the Manager on the one hand and the Trustee and Custodians on the other hand. For example, such actual or potential conflict may arise because the Trustee is part of a legal entity or is related to a legal entity which provides other products or services to Fund or the Manager and from which fees and profits in relation to the provision of those products or services may arise and from which the Trustee and Custodians may benefit directly or indirectly. In addition, the Trustee and Custodians may have a financial or business interest in the provision of such products or services, or receives remuneration for related products or services provided to the Fund, or may have other clients whose interests may conflict with those of Fund, the Holders or the Manager.

In particular, HSBC Bank plc may provide foreign exchange services to the Fund for which they are remunerated out of the property of Fund. HSBC Bank plc or any of its affiliates or connected persons may also act as market maker in the investments of Fund; provide broking services to Fund and/or to other funds or companies; act as financial adviser, banker, derivatives counterparty or otherwise provide services to the issuer of the investments of the Fund; act in the same transaction as agent for more than one client; have a material interest in the issue of the investments of Fund; or earn profits from or have a financial or business interest in any of these activities.

The Trustee and the Custodians will ensure that any such additional services provided by it or its affiliates are on terms which are not materially less favourable to the Fund than if the conflict or potential conflict had not existed.

The Trustee and Custodians have a conflicts of interest policy in place to identify, manage and monitor on an ongoing basis any actual or potential conflict of interest, and have separated the performance of their tasks from their

other potentially conflicting tasks. The system of internal controls, the different reporting lines, the allocation of tasks and the management reporting allow potential conflicts of interest and the Trustee's and Custodians' issues to be properly identified, managed and monitored.

15.9. The Custodians

a. HSBC Continental Europe

Pursuant to an agreement dated 1 May 2021(the "HBCE Custody Agreement"), HSBC Continental Europe, acting through its branch in Ireland, has been appointed as custodian of certain assets belonging to HSBC Trading Advantedge Limited (the "TA SPV"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Fund, as are delivered to the Custodian and accepted by the Custodian under its control and in accordance with the HBCE Custody Agreement.

HSBC Continental Europe is a subsidiary of HSBC Holdings plc. It is incorporated under the laws of France as a société anonyme (registered number 775 670 284 RCS Paris), having its registered office at 38, avenue Kléber, 75116 Paris, France.

HSBC Continental Europe is based in Paris and supervised by the European Central Bank (ECB), as part of the Single Supervisory Mechanism, the French Prudential Supervisory and Resolution Authority (l'Autorité de Contrôle Prudentiel et de Résolution) (ACPR) as the French National Competent Authority and the French Financial Markets Authority (l'Autorité des Marchés Financiers) (AMF) for the activities carried out over financial instruments or in financial markets.

HSBC Continental Europe is also subject to the local supervision of the Central Bank of Ireland and is lawfully established in Ireland as a branch and is duly registered with the Companies Registration Office with number 908966.

HSBC Continental Europe is authorised to delegate any of its duties under the HBCE Custody Agreement to subcustodians, agents or delegates ("Correspondents"), on the terms set out in the HBCE Custody Agreement, which shall not include clearing or settlement systems, selected by the Custodian.

HSBC Continental Europe will not be liable or responsible to TA SPV for any acts or omissions of any delegate other than any liability to the TA SPV which is caused directly by the fraud, negligence or wilful default of HSBC Continental Europe and will not be liable or responsible for any losses suffered by TA SPV or any investor by reason only of the liquidation, bankruptcy or insolvency of any Correspondent howsoever appointed.

HSBC Continental Europe will not be liable or responsible for the loss of or damage to any assets, documents of title or other property of TA SPV or for any failure to fulfil its duties under the HBCE Custody Agreement if such loss, damage or failure is caused (inter alia) by the failure of any relevant exchange, Clearing System (as such term is defined in the HBCE Custody Agreement) (including central securities depository) and/or broker to perform its obligations for any reason.

HSBC Continental Europe is a service provider to TA SPV and has no responsibility or authority to make investment decisions, or render investment advice, with respect to the assets of the Fund or TA SPV. HSBC Continental Europe is not responsible for, and accepts no responsibility or liability for, any losses suffered by the TA SPV, Fund or any investors in the Fund as a result of any failure by the TA SPV, Fund or the Investment Manager to adhere to the investment objective, policy, investment restrictions, borrowing restrictions or operating guidelines.

The appointment of HSBC Continental Europe may be terminated without cause by not less than 90 days' notice.

HSBC Continental Europe is a service provider to the TA SPV and is not responsible for the preparation of this Prospectus or for the activities of the Fund and TA SPV and therefore accepts no responsibility for any information contained in this Prospectus.

Please see the section entitled "FEES AND EXPENSES" below for a description of the fees payable to HSBC Continental Europe pursuant to the HBCE Custody Agreement.

b. HSBC Bank plc, Guernsey Branch

HSBC Bank plc, Guernsey Branch is a subsidiary of HSBC Holdings plc. It is licensed by the Commission (Commission reference number 7) for banking, insurance and investment business. Its principal place of business is Arnold House, St Julian's Avenue, St Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 3NF.

HSBC Bank plc is registered in England and Wales, number 14259, and its registered office is 8 Canada Square, London, E14 5HQ. HSBC Bank plc is authorised by the Prudential Regulation Authority (the "**PRA**") and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority (the "**FCA**") and the PRA in the UK.

Pursuant to the terms of a custodian agreement entered into between HSBC Bank plc, Guernsey Branch (HSBC Bank plc, Guernsey Branch and HSBC Continental Europe each a "Custodian" and together the "Custodians") and the TA SPV (the "HSBC Guernsey Custodian Agreement") HSBC Bank plc, Guernsey Branch is appointed to provide certain custody functions to the TA SPV. Under the terms of the HSBC Guernsey Custodian Agreement, HSBC Bank plc, Guernsey Branch is authorised, at its own discretion, to further delegate such of the custody functions as defined therein to other custody services providers as it deems appropriate. HSBC Bank plc, Guernsey Branch has accordingly entered into a sub-custodian agreement with HSBC Private Bank (Suisse) SA (the "HSBC Guernsey Branch sub-delegates custody functions to HSBC Private Bank (Suisse) SA. Under the terms of the HSBC Guernsey Sub-Custodian Agreement, HSBC Private Bank (Suisse) SA is authorised, at its own discretion, to further delegate such of the custody functions as defined therein to other third party custody services providers as it deems appropriate

All fees payable to HSBC Bank plc, Guernsey Branch under the HSBC Guernsey Custodian Agreement shall be paid by the Manager out of the Management Fee. All fees payable by HSBC Bank plc, Guernsey Branch to HSBC Private Bank (Suisse) SA under the HSBC Guernsey Sub-Custodian Agreement, and all fees payable by HSBC Bank plc, Guernsey Branch and HSBC Private Bank (Suisse) SA pursuant to any further delegation agreement entered into by either of them, are payable out of the fees paid to HSBC Bank plc, Guernsey Branch under the HSBC Guernsey Custodian Agreement.

15.10. The Investment Adviser

Pursuant to the Investment Advisory Agreement, the Manager has appointed HSBC Alternative Investments Limited, a company incorporated with limited liability in the United Kingdom which is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority in the conduct of designated investment business and having its principal address at 8 Canada Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 5HQ, as Investment Adviser to each of the Funds.

The Investment Adviser is wholly owned by parties that are affiliated with the Manager and the Trustee and has been appointed by the Manager to provide, inter alia, certain advisory and transaction-related services, including certain implementation and execution activities relating to each Fund's investments, in each case subject to the overall supervision of the Manager in relation to portfolio management activities. In addition the Manager has delegated certain portfolio management activities to the Investment Adviser, including the implementation and execution of the Fund's investments provided that such investments are in accordance with the Trust Instrument, the Class B Rules and the other restrictions set out in the Investment Advisory Agreement and in this Prospectus. The Manager may also consider amendments to the investment objective and investment policy of a Fund further to recommendations provided by the Investment Adviser. Overall portfolio management and risk management responsibility for the Fund is retained by the Manager.

The Investment Adviser carries out regular Due Diligence examinations of the fund managers of the Portfolio Funds, and is subject to the overall supervision of the Manager.

The activities of the Investment Adviser are handled by a group of specialists in alternative investment, among them, Richard Berger and William Benjamin.

Richard Berger is the Global Head of Hedge Funds at HSBC Alternative Investments Limited, leading the investment teams that are focused on hedge funds strategies deployed via third party managers, across liquid alternatives and hedge funds. He co-chairs the Alternative Investment Committee. Richard holds a Masters Degree in Finance from ESSEC, Graduate School of Management.

Prior to this role at HSBC Alternative Investments Limited, Richard was with Pioneer Investments in London from 2006 to 2017, where he was Chief Investment Officer of the Alternative Multi Asset business, overseeing the portfolio management, research and communication with clients. From 2002 to 2006, Richard was Head of Hedge Fund Research and member of the Investment Committee at Olympia Capital Management in Paris. Before that, Richard was an equity derivatives trader from 1993 to 2002, at BNP Arbitrage in Paris and Credit Suisse First Boston (CSFB) in London. At CSFB, he was more specifically in charge of the proprietary correlation arbitrage in Europe.

William Benjamin is the Chief Investment Officer for Alternative Investments at the Investment Adviser in which capacity he is responsible for leading the investment teams that are focused on alternative strategies deployed via third party managers, across liquid alternatives, hedge funds, private debt and private equity. He chairs the Alternative Investment Committee. Prior to this role at HSBC, William worked at Goldman Sachs Asset Management where he was responsible for the Alternatives Advisory platform in EMEA as well as co-management of the firm's UCITS alternatives fund. William initially joined the Investment Adviser in 2001 as a Research Analyst and was appointed Head of European Research in 2007. In 2012 William was named Global Head of Hedge Fund Research and assumed responsibility for the team of hedge fund research professionals located in Europe, the US and Asia that continues to have responsibility for the research, operational due diligence, selection and monitoring of hedge funds with HSBC client portfolios. William holds an honours degree in Economics from University College London and the Chartered Financial Analyst designation.

The Investment Advisory Agreement is terminable by either the Manager or the Investment Advisor giving not less than ninety days' written notice to the other, such termination to take effect upon the date specified in such notice or, if no date is specified, ninety days after the date that the notice is served on the other party.

The Investment Advisory Agreement may be terminated by either the Manager or the Investment Adviser immediately upon the other party going into liquidation or becoming insolvent or if the other party has committed a material breach of the Investment Advisory Agreement and such breach has not been remedied after one month.

The Investment Adviser may terminate the Investment Advisory Agreement immediately by written notice if the Manager requests re-categorisation under FSMA or if the Manager ceases to be the manager of Uni-Folio.

The Manager may terminate the Investment Advisory Agreement immediately by written notice if the Investment Adviser ceases to be authorised under FSMA, if any change in tax law or practice of the place of operation of the Investment Adviser would materially prejudice the tax status of Uni-Folio or if a Fund is to be liquidated in accordance with the terms of the Trust Instrument.

The Investment Adviser may only transfer or delegate its rights and obligations under the Investment Advisory Agreement with the prior written consent of the Manager and the Trustee.

15.11. The Distributors

The Manager has appointed various distributors as non-exclusive distributors of the Units in each of the Funds. Each distributor shall use reasonable endeavours to procure subscribers of the Units in accordance with the terms and conditions of their respective distribution agreement and in accordance with applicable laws, the Trust Instrument, any Fund Deed and this Prospectus and subject always to the overall policies, orders, instructions, direction and control of the Manager until its appointment shall be terminated pursuant to the terms of the distribution agreement.

Under the terms of its appointment a distributor may be entitled to receive fees from the Manager, payable by the Manager out of its own remuneration, for distributing the Funds. A distributor may, according to its own client arrangements, apply initial charges (for example front end load, advisory or up-front fees) to subscriptions into the Fund. Historic distributors who currently no longer act as distributors may also be receiving fees relating to Units in the Funds that they have previously distributed. Please see section 15.22 for disclosure of fee arrangements to distributors.

The Swiss representative is HSBC Global Asset Management (Switzerland) AG.

15.12. The Registrar and Register of Holders

The Manager has been appointed as Registrar of Uni-Folio and each Fund. The Register of Holders of each Fund is maintained by the Transfer Agent under delegation from the Registrar (who retains the responsibility for such maintenance) and is available for inspection at the registered office of the Registrar.

15.13. Auditor

The Auditor of Uni-Folio is PricewaterhouseCoopers CI LLP, PO Box 321, Royal Bank Place, 1 Glategny Esplanade, St Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 4ND, Channel Islands. The Auditor shall be appointed and removed by the Manager with the approval of the Trustee.

15.14. Conflicts of Interest

No director of the Manager, the Trustee, the Investment Adviser or the Auditor has any interests in the Units.

A list of any directorships which are currently held or which have been held in the past five years by each director of the Manager is available to Holders on request at the office of the Manager.

15.15. Investment Objective, and Investment & Borrowing Limitations and Restrictions

The Investment Objective, Investment Limitations and Restrictions and Borrowing Limits applicable to a Fund are set out in each Fund Section.

The Borrowing Limits set out in each Fund Section are to be calculated by reference to the Net Asset Value of the Fund at each Valuation Point, taking into account all accepted subscriptions and redemptions at the relevant Valuation Point. Similarly, Investment Limits are to be calculated by reference to the Net Asset Value of the Fund at each Valuation Point.

15.16. Indirect Payment for Services

The Manager has no arrangements in place with any other person whereby that person will provide to, or procure for, the Manager services or other benefits the nature of which are such that their provision results or is designed to result in an improvement of the Manager's performance in providing its services hereunder and for which the Manager receives no direct payment but instead undertakes to place business with that person.

15.17. Hedging and Derivative Transactions

At the Manager's discretion and in accordance with the hedging powers set out in each Fund Section, a Fund may, from time to time, enter into derivative transactions for the purposes of both hedging and active portfolio management. The hedging transactions may cover any aspect of risk control, reduction or elimination (including FX Hedging). For example, any derivative instrument may be used to alter the nature of an existing transaction on the basis that historical evidence would show that a correlation in risk or return existed between the hedge and the underlying transaction. Consequently, the Manager may determine that any transaction(s) (that has a relationship with any other transaction(s) in the portfolio that is capable of identification) may be considered a hedge, provided that the intentions on entering the transaction(s) were:

- a. not overtly speculative in nature; and
- **b.** to control, reduce or eliminate some element(s) of risk in the portfolio.

15.18. Termination of Uni-Folio or a Fund

Any or all of the Funds may be terminated by the Trustee if: (i) the Manager shall go into liquidation (except a voluntary liquidation previously approved by the Trustee) or if a receiver is appointed over any of the Manager's assets or if the Manager ceases business; or (ii) the Manager becomes incapable of performing or fails to perform its duties satisfactorily or does anything calculated to bring Uni-Folio or a Fund into disrepute or to be harmful to the interests of Holders; or (iii) the Trustee wishes to retire and no new Trustee has been appointed within six months of the Manager being notified of the Trustee's wish.

A Fund may be terminated by the Manager if it becomes illegal, impracticable or inadvisable to continue the Fund or if it is no longer in the best interest of investors.

In addition a Fund may be terminated in accordance with the Class B Rules:

- **a.** when the authorisation in respect of Uni-Folio is revoked or, in the case of any Fund, when the authorisation of that Fund is revoked, where there is a separate authorisation for that Fund, or when the authorisation of Uni-Folio is amended to refer only to the other Funds, where there is not a separate authorisation for those Funds (unless the Commission in any particular case otherwise directs);
- **b.** when a resolution passed by the Holders determines that Uni-Folio shall be wound up;

- **c.** where this Prospectus so provides, when the date for the termination of Uni-Folio is reached without a resolution being passed by the Holders postponing the termination; or
- **d.** where this Prospectus so provides, when the value of the Scheme Property falls below the value prescribed in the Prospectus for the requisite period (if any) and the Manager elects to wind up Uni-Folio.

Uni-Folio Fund cannot be terminated until all Funds have been terminated.

Upon the termination of a Fund the Trust Instrument provides that the Manager on behalf of the Trustee will realise all investments, repay all borrowings outstanding, and determine the amount per Unit of such Fund available for distribution to its Holders. The Trustee shall as soon as is practicable thereafter distribute to such Holders such net proceeds pro rata to their respective holding of Units in such Fund and any monies remaining unclaimed by Holders six years thereafter shall be treated as abandoned and paid to the Manager for its own account. The Trust Instrument also provides that upon a Fund being terminated the Manager and the Trustee shall determine the amount (if any) of money to be set aside by the Trustee as a provision for meeting any vested or contingent liabilities of the Fund concerned before the amount of the final distribution to all Holders is effected.

15.19. Characteristics of a Unit in a Fund

Units will be issued as Accumulation Units unless where issued at the Manager's discretion (and indicated in the applicable Fund Characteristics) as Units in respect of which income is to be distributed ("**Distribution Units**"). A Distribution Unit or Accumulation Unit represents one undivided share of the Scheme Property of a Fund. Fractions of Distribution Units and Accumulation Units may be issued to two decimal places.

Title to Units will be as inscribed in the Register of Holders and no certificate will be issued. The nature of the right of a Holder as represented by a Unit or fraction thereof is that of a beneficial interest under a trust.

The type of Unit to be issued for each Fund is noted in the Fund Characteristics.

15.20. Meetings of Holders and Voting Rights

The following provisions shall apply only to those Holders of a Fund who are entitled to attend and vote at a meeting of a Fund or Uni-Folio. If a Holder is not entitled to vote in respect of a Fund, this will be noted in the relevant Fund Characteristics.

The Trustee or the Manager may at any time subject to applicable Guernsey law convene a meeting of Holders of a Fund or as appropriate a meeting of all Holders on such day, and at such time and place, as may be thought fit. Meetings of Holders are expected to be held in Guernsey with a minimum of ten days' notice (or any longer period of notice specified for the purpose in the Trust Instrument or the relevant Fund Deed or by Guernsey law), inclusive of the day on which the notice is served and of the day on which the notice is given, in the manner provided for in the Class B Rules. No meetings will be held in the United Kingdom. The Trustee shall convene such a meeting when obliged to do so by the provisions of the Trust Instrument for the purpose of obtaining the approval of a simple majority for the matters described in (i) to (v) below or at the written request of at least five Holders carrying in aggregate at least ten per cent of the aggregate voting rights of all Units of the relevant Fund or for Uni-Folio as a whole deemed to be in issue on the day such request is delivered to the Manager. At any such meeting the quorum shall be those Holders present in person or by proxy as specified in the Trust Instrument, the relevant Fund Deed and applicable Guernsey law.

A meeting of Holders of a Fund or Uni-Folio, as the case may be, duly convened and held shall be competent by resolution: (i) to sanction any modification, alteration or addition to the provisions of the Trust Instrument or a Fund Deed, to the extent that such modifications are outside the scope of the powers of the Trustee and the Manager as set out in the Trust Instrument; (ii) to give authorisation or directions to the Trustee in accordance with the Class B Rules in respect of the winding up of a Fund; (iii) to approve an arrangement for the reconstruction or amalgamation of a Fund with another body or scheme whether or not that scheme is a collective investment scheme; (iv) to remove the Manager; (v) to approve any changes in the investment objective, investment restrictions and borrowing limits of a Fund.

At any such meeting a poll may be demanded by the chairman or any Holder present in person or by proxy.

On a show of hands every Holder present in person or by proxy, or, if a corporation, present by an officer or agent, has one vote. On a poll every Holder present in person or by proxy has the same number of votes as the number of

undivided Units in the Scheme Property of a Fund or Uni-Folio, as the case may be, as represented by their holding of Units.

A resolution passed at a meeting on a show of hands is passed by a simple majority of: (i) the Holders who, being entitled to do so, vote in person on the resolution; and (ii) the persons who vote on the resolution as duly appointed proxies of Holders entitled to vote on it. A resolution passed on a poll taken at a meeting is passed by simple majority if it is passed by Holders representing a simple majority of the total voting rights of Holders who, being entitled to do so, vote in person or by proxy on the resolution.

A written resolution is passed by Holders representing a simple majority of the total voting rights of Holders eligible to vote

Where one Fund invests in the Units of another Fund, the investing Fund shall waive its voting rights in respect of that Fund.

15.21. Valuation of a Fund

a. Net Asset Value of a Fund

The Dealing Day for each Fund is given in the Fund Characteristics. The Manager may, in its discretion, specify such other days as Dealing Days which would be in addition to the Dealing Days specified in the Fund Characteristics for such purposes as the Manager may determine.

For each Dealing Day the Net Asset Value of a Fund is calculated and is determined by deducting the total liabilities of the Fund from the total assets of the Fund as at the Valuation Point. Total assets of a Fund are the sum of all cash, accrued interest and dividends entitled to be received by the Fund as at the Valuation Point and the values (taken as below) of all investments held by the Fund. Total liabilities of a Fund include all accrued liabilities (including Management Fees, leverage fees, Borrowing and Borrowing Costs).

Investments which are quoted and dealt with on a securities market will be valued on a bid basis on the principal market for the asset concerned. Where the relevant prices or quotations are not available or, in the opinion of the Manager, are not reflective of fair market value, investments will be valued at what the Manager considers to be a fair value, such value being determined by the Manager with due diligence on the basis of the price that would probably be obtained in a prudent sale at the time of appraisal. Other investments will be valued in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Instrument or the relevant Fund Deed, as the case may be. Where the Manager determines to value certain types of investment using prices or interest rates quoted or available at different times the Manager may do so provided such methodology remains constant from one Valuation Point to the next in respect of the relevant Fund. The Manager is entitled to exercise its reasonable judgement in determining the values to be attributed to assets and liabilities and provided that it is acting bona fide in the interests of the Fund as a whole, such valuation will not be open to challenge by current or previous Holders of the Fund.

The Net Asset Value Per Unit which is applicable to redemption and subscription requests will be based on an estimate of the net asset value of the interest held by the Fund in the Portfolio Fund provided by the manager or adviser of the Portfolio Fund investments ("Estimated Pricing"). The Manager is entitled to exercise its reasonable judgement in determining the Estimated Pricing and provided that it is acting bona fide in the interests of the Fund as a whole, the valuation will not be open to challenge by current or previous Holders of Units in the Fund and no further payments or adjustments will be made by the Manager in respect of those Units. The rationale for this pricing policy is to speed up the process by which the Manager issues monthly dealing prices for Units whilst maintaining sufficient accuracy in the pricing of Units to meet the requirements of investors. Investors should however note that despite the use of Estimated Pricing there will be a delay between the Valuation Point and the determination of the Net Asset Value Per Unit of up to 17 calendar days to allow a period to base the Net Asset Value Per Unit on actual net asset values rather than Estimated Pricing. The implication for investors subscribing for Units in a Fund is a delay in the final confirmation of the number of Units allotted to an investor, and for investors redeeming Units, it will delay the calculation of redemption proceeds from the redemption of those Units. Where the payment of redemption proceeds to an investor requires the utilisation of Borrowing, the associated Borrowing Costs to fund that redemption payment will not be deducted from the redemption payment to that investor, but rather the borrowing costs will included in the future calculation of the Net Asset Value of the Fund (and commensurately included in the calculation of the Net Asset Value Per Unit and as a deduction in subsequent payments to investors redeeming Units based upon the then Net Asset Value per Unit and so that all investors are treated in the same way in respect of the allocation

of Borrowing Costs and the costs of funding redemption payments). Contract notes will be issued within two Business Days of the Net Asset Value Per Unit being determined.

b. Net Asset Value Per Unit

The Net Asset Value of a Unit shall be determined by taking the Net Asset Value of the Fund and dividing it by the number of Units in the Fund in issue immediately preceding that Dealing Day, rounded to the nearest two decimal places (the "Net Asset Value Per Unit").

c. Possible Suspensions

The Manager may suspend the determination of the Net Asset Value of a Fund and related valuations for the whole or any part of any period: (i) in which trading is suspended or restricted on any market on which a substantial part of a Fund's investments are normally traded; or (ii) during the existence of any state of affairs which constitutes an emergency as a result of which valuation of assets of a Fund would, in the opinion of the Manager, be impractical; or (iii) in which the repurchase of Units from Holders would, in the opinion of the Manager, result in a violation of applicable law; or (iv) where there are circumstances which, in the opinion of the Manager, make it impracticable to realise any substantial portion of a Fund's investments or to effect such realisation without undue delay or, where applicable, at normal rates of exchange or otherwise to receive the cash proceeds of such realisation; or (v) there is a suspension of dealings in the Units or the calculation of the net asset value of any other fund in which such Fund is invested.

If it is expected that such a suspension will last more than five Business Days, all Holders of the Fund concerned will be notified of any such suspension and the termination of any such suspension by means of a written notice which may be published in La Gazette Officielle in Guernsey, the Wall Street Journal Europe, International Herald Tribune (European edition) and such other newspapers as the Manager may from time to time determine and other publications in which the price of such Units is normally published.

No issue or redemption of Units will take place during any period when the calculation of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Fund is suspended.

The Manager may at any time determine that the acceptance of subscriptions be suspended and no issuance of Units made.

15.22. Fees and Expenses

a. Initial Charge

The Manager is permitted upon the issue of Units in a Fund to deduct from the monies subscribed an Initial Charge at a percentage rate of such monies subscribed as set out in the Fund Characteristics. Whilst the Manager does not currently levy an Initial Charge, any introduction of or an increase in the current rate of the Initial Charge for a particular Fund shall first be notified to all new or pending applicants (if affected) and an updated Prospectus issued detailing the Initial Charge and/or new percentage rate.

b. Management Fee and Investment Adviser Fee

The Manager is entitled to receive a Management Fee payable out of the assets of each Fund. The Management Fee shall be calculated and accrue at each Dealing Day and in respect thereof the calculation shall be the Net Asset Value multiplied by the Management Fee Rate multiplied by the number of days elapsed since the last Dealing Day divided by 365 or 366 in the case of a leap year. The current Management Fee Rate for each Fund is as set out in the Fund Characteristics. Any increase in the Management Fee Rate up to the Maximum Management Fee Rate shall be notified to Unit Holders not less than thirty days before it takes effect. Any increase to the Maximum Management Fee Rate shall be approved by Unit Holders and shall not take effect until a minimum of ninety days after such approval has been given.

i. The Management Fee

Where one Fund invests in another Fund or Funds, the Manager shall procure that all fees accruing to the Manager shall be refunded in respect of such interest acquired so that any possible double-charging of management fees is negated.

With the exception of the R Classes, the Manager may in its absolute discretion, in relation to any Management Fee paid to it out of the Scheme Property, rebate all or any part of that Management Fee to an introductory party. In addition, the Manager may, in its absolute discretion, pay out of the Management

Fee a rebate to Unit Holders. Please see below a summary of disclosure of the fee arrangements currently in place

Fee Disclosures:

Certain historic and current distributors may share the fees they receive as distribution fees from the Manager with other intermediaries and/or their clients who may be direct or indirect Unit Holders in the Funds.

Under the terms of certain historic side arrangements, circa 2 Holders have been granted the right to receive a rebate of up to 100% of the management fees they pay with respect to a Fund in which they invest. This is payable by the Manager out of its own remuneration.

ii. The Administrator's Fee

The Manager shall pay out of the Management Fee the Administrator's fee.

iii. The Investment Adviser's Fee

The Manager shall pay out of the Management Fee the Investment Adviser's fee, save for the Management Fee of the S Classes, which does not include the Investment Adviser's fee (which will be paid to the Investment Adviser under separate arrangement with another entity of the HSBC Group (meaning, for the avoidance of doubt, that no amounts in respect of the Investment Adviser's fee shall be payable out of the assets of the S Classes).

iv. The Trustee's Fee; Custodian's Fee

The Manager shall pay out of the Management Fee the Trustee's Fee and each Custodian's Fee.

c. Performance Fee

Where permitted by the Fund Deed, the Manager at each Valuation Point will be entitled to accrue a Performance Fee (the "Fee") if the percentage increase in the Net Asset Value Per Unit at the relevant Valuation Point compared with the Net Asset Value Per Unit at the start of the current Performance Period (the "Increase") exceeds the calculated return on the relevant Index (the "Index Return") and the Net Asset Value per Unit at the start of the Performance Period is not less than the Net Asset Value per Unit at the end of any previous Performance Period. The Index Return is calculated as the percentage increase of an imputed investment in the Index over the Performance Period, including appropriate compounding effects where applicable, with the Index being updated in line with prevailing market interest rates as at the last Valuation Point in March, June, September and December.

The Fee is calculated on a High Watermark basis.

Should the Increase at a Valuation Point exceed the Index Return on such day, the Manager will be entitled to accrue a Fee calculated by applying the Performance Fee Rate to such excess multiplied by the number of Units in issue at that Valuation Point. The Performance Fee Rate for each Fund is detailed in the relevant Fund Deed. The Performance Period will commence at the close of the initial launch period and end at the 31 December that is at least six months after the close of the initial offer period, and each calendar year thereafter.

Any Fee remaining accrued at 31 December in each year will be paid to the Manager out of the Scheme Property of the Fund, and such Fee once paid will not be liable to repayment.

The Manager may waive its rights to the Fee in whole or in part, at its sole discretion. The Manager may in its absolute discretion, in relation to any Fee paid to it out of the Scheme Property, rebate all or any part of that Fee. The Fee arrangement may create an incentive for the Manager to make investments that are more speculative or subject to a greater risk of loss than would be the case if no such Fee arrangement existed.

Investors should note that the calculation of the Fee is based in part upon unrealised profits (as well as unrealised losses) and that such unrealised profits may never be realised by the Fund.

If there is any doubt as to the Fee, including but not limited to its amount, the matter shall be referred to the Auditors, whose decision shall be final.

d. Redemption Fee

The Manager is permitted upon the redemption of Units in a Fund to deduct from the redemption proceeds a Redemption Fee to the extent and at a percentage rate of such proceeds as set out in the Fund Characteristics.

Any increase in the current rate of the Redemption Fee for a particular Fund shall first be notified to Holders and an updated Prospectus issued detailing the new percentage rate.

e. Operating Expenses

All other fees and expenses including, but not limited to, legal and auditing fees, publication of the price of Units in various newspapers, brokerage, printing, taxes (whether corporate, withholding or otherwise), filing fees, the cost of a Fund maintaining a wholly owned investment Subsidiary to hold all or part of its Scheme Property (if applicable), and certain other administration costs and out-of-pocket expenses of the Manager, the Administrator, the Trustee and the Investment Adviser are payable at cost out of the Scheme Property of each Fund, it being specifically noted that the costs of risk aggregation and of enhanced FX Hedging services are out of pocket expenses of the Investment Adviser to be payable at cost out of Scheme Property. In the case of any liability which the Manager does not consider is attributable to a particular Fund, the Manager has a discretion to determine, after consultation with the Trustee, the basis upon which any such liability shall be allocated or reallocated between the Funds.

f. Set-up Costs

The initial organisational expenses incurred by the Manager in the creation of Uni-Folio and the establishment of each Fund and Unit class will first be paid by the Manager and then, unless otherwise stated in the Fund Section, apportioned between the respective Funds or Unit classes so that the maximum amount that may be apportioned to any one Fund or Unit class does not exceed USD25,000 or currency equivalent in respect of a Fund and USD5,000 or currency equivalent in respect of a Unit class. Any amount so apportioned to a Fund or Unit class may be charged to that Fund or Unit class and paid out of its assets and then be amortised for accounting purposes within that Fund or Unit class over a period not exceeding five years in respect of a Fund and one year in respect of a Unit class. Alternatively, the Manager may continue to bear the original cost of such expenses and, over a period not exceeding five years in respect of a Fund and one year in respect of a Unit class, levy a charge against the Fund or Unit class on a pro rata basis each week provided that the annual amount of such charge per Fund or Unit class does not exceed USD5,000 per annum or currency equivalent in respect of a Fund or USD1,000 per annum or currency equivalent in respect of a Unit class. From time to time (a) further expenses of a particular nature may be incurred which, in the opinion of the Manager, have a long lasting benefit and/or relate to one or more of the Funds or Unit classes, and (b) new Funds or Unit classes may be created whereby current set-up costs can be shared, and (c) an existing Fund or Unit class may be terminated in respect of which previously charged expenses remain yet to be amortised. In all of such cases the Manager, with the prior approval of the Trustee, is permitted to adjust the amount to be so amortised or to reduce the period of amortisation to less than five years in respect of a Fund and less than one year in respect of a Unit class provided that the total in any Fund or Unit class of the pre-payment of expenses made and remaining to be amortised does not at any one time exceed USD25,000 or currency equivalent in respect of a Fund and USD5,000 or currency equivalent in respect of a Unit class, and provided further that the annual amount of amortisation in, or charge levied by the Manager to, any Fund or Unit class does not exceed USD5,000 per annum or currency equivalent in respect of a Fund or USD1,000 per annum or currency equivalent in respect of a Unit class.

g. Distributions of Income

The distribution date for each Fund is as set out in the Fund Deed (if applicable).

The Manager may upon prior notice to the Trustee alter the distribution dates for any Fund or increase the number of distributions and interim Accounting Periods in any one Accounting Period.

In a Fund which only has Accumulation Units in issue the Manager may arrange the affairs of that Fund so that all monies available for investment by that Fund are first loaned to a Subsidiary. Such an arrangement may, or may not, have a tax benefit for certain Holders and all investors contemplating the acquisition of Accumulation Units in such a Fund are advised to seek appropriate tax advice as to their own liability (if any) to taxation arising from the acquisition, holding and disposal of such Accumulation Units. Funds to which such an income policy applies are indicated in the Fund Section as having a dividend policy of "rolled-up".

h. Fair Treatment of Investors

To ensure fair treatment, all investors invest on the terms of the Trust Instrument and accompanying Fund Deed, which are in substantially similar terms for all Funds, subject to the differences in Investment Objectives, Fund Characteristics and other arrangements set out in the relevant Fund Section for each Fund.

The rights of Holders in any Fund may also differ according to the class of Unit in which Holders invest, in particular with respect to liquidity and redemption arrangements, Minimum Holdings and fees.

Historically, certain Holders (both connected and not connected with the Manager) were granted preferential treatment (in the form of a rebate of management fees payable with respect to a Fund) as an incentive to invest in a Fund. The form of this preferential treatment was (and in certain circumstances still is) a rebate received by the Holder, payable by the Manager out of its own remuneration.

Any new rebate arrangements granted to new investors into any of the Funds will be disclosed under section 15.22(b) above.

In addition, the distributors who may receive fees from the Manager, payable by the Manager out of its own remuneration, for distributing the Funds, may share these fees with Holders.

Certain distributors may impose a sales fee (or equivalent) on their underlying clients in connection with an investment into any of the Funds.

15.23. Application, Redemption and Transfer of Units

a. Eligible Investor

A person making an application for Units in a Fund must ensure that he is an Eligible Investor. An Eligible Investor is defined as being a person who: (i) is over eighteen years of age; and (ii) is not a US Person; and (iii) is entitled to be a Holder of Units in the relevant Fund in accordance with all laws, fiscal requirements and exchange control restrictions of any country or governmental authority which may affect him; and (iv) by being a Holder will not cause Uni-Folio, any Fund or any other Holder to incur any liability to taxation or suffer any other pecuniary, fiscal, regulatory or other disadvantage which it or they might not otherwise incur or suffer; and (v) will not result in Uni-Folio or any Fund being required to register under the United States Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.

The acquisition and holding of Units constitutes a continuing representation and warranty by an investor that he is an Eligible Investor. Any Holder who becomes aware that he is no longer an Eligible Investor must either transfer his Units to an Eligible Investor or request the redemption of such Units. Any Holder who, in the opinion of the Manager or the Transfer Agent, is not an Eligible Investor may be compulsory redeemed. See information below under the heading "Compulsory Redemption".

In addition, the Manager and the Transfer Agent reserve the right to reject any application for Units from any person who is a fund with shareholders (or the equivalent thereof) who are US Persons.

b. Money Laundering Regulations

The Manager and the Transfer Agent are subject to both internal and external anti money laundering and counter terrorism regulations, including, without limitation, the Criminal Justice (Proceeds of Crime) (Bailiwick of Guernsey) law, 1999 (as amended), and the Commission's Handbook on Countering Financial Crime and Terrorist Financing in the case of the Manager, and the Irish Criminal Justice (Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing) Act, 2010 in the case of the Transfer Agent (the "Applicable AML Laws"). The Applicable AML Laws require the Manager and the Transfer Agent to apply due diligence upon the receipt of applications for Units and the receipt of money. Such regulations may require the Manager and/or the Transfer Agent to make investigations and report both internally and externally its findings and circumstances known to it.

The Transfer Agent requires verification of the identity of an investor applying for Units. Applicants for Units should therefore ensure that the relevant sections of Appendix A to the Application Form are completed, and the requisite accompanying documentation supplied, when an initial application for Units is made. If there is any delay or failure in producing any information required for verification purposes, the Transfer Agent may refuse to accept the application and subscription monies or, in respect of any information requested after subscription, refuse to pay any redemption proceeds until such information is provided.

c. Money Laundering and Countering Terrorist Financing Measures

Measures aimed at the prevention of money laundering and terrorist financing will require a detailed verification of the investor's identity, address and source of funds and where applicable the beneficial owner on a risk sensitive basis and the ongoing monitoring of the business relationship with Uni-Folio.

By way of example, individuals will be required to produce identification data which includes: (i) legal name, any former names (such as maiden name) and any other names used; (ii) principal residential address; (iii) date and

place of birth; (iv) nationality; (v) any occupation, public position held and, where appropriate, the name of the employer; and (vi) an official personal identification number or other unique identifier contained in an unexpired official document (for example, passport, identification card, residence permit, social security records, driving licence) that bears a photograph of the individual.

By way of example, in the case of an investor which is a body corporate, this may require production of the following to verify the legal status of the legal body: (i) certificate of incorporation (or equivalent) if applicable; (ii) a company registry search including confirmation that the legal body has not been, and is not in the process of being, dissolved, struck off, wound up or terminated; (iii) a copy of the latest audited annual financial statements; (iv) a copy of the memorandum and articles of association or equivalent constitutional documentation; (v) a copy of the directors' register; (vi) a copy of the shareholders' register; (vii) independent information sources, including electronic sources, for example, business information services; (viii) a copy of the board resolution authorizing the opening of the account and recording account signatories.

Politically exposed persons ("**PEPs**") must also be identified. PEP means: (A) a person who has, or has had at any time, a prominent public function or who has been elected or appointed to such a function in a country or territory other than the Bailiwick of Guernsey including, without limitation: (i) heads of state or of government; (ii) senior politicians and other important officials of political parties; (iii) senior government officials; (iv) senior members of the judiciary; (v) senior military officers; and (vi) senior executives of state owned body corporates; (B) an immediate family member of such a person including, without limitation, a spouse, partner (as considered a "partner" by the law of the country or territory in which the public function is being held as being equivalent to a spouse), parent, child, sibling, parent-in-law or grandchild of such a person; or (C) a close associate of such a person, including, without limitation: (i) a person who is widely known to maintain a close business relationship with such a person, or (ii) a person who is in a position to conduct substantial financial transaction on behalf of such a person.

Understanding the investor's source of funds and source of wealth are important aspects of customer due diligence, especially in relationships with PEPs. The source of funds refers to the activity which generates the funds for a business relationship or occasional transaction. Source of wealth is distinct from source of funds, and describes the activities which have generated the total net worth of a person both within and outside a business relationship, i.e. those activities which have generated a customer's net assets and property. In establishing the source of any funds or wealth, the risk implications of the source of funds and wealth and the geographical sphere of the activities that have generated an applicant's source of funds and/or wealth must be considered and documented.

The Administrator, the Manager and the Transfer Agent each reserves the right to request such information as is necessary to verify the identity, address and source of funds of an investor. In the event of delay or failure by an investor or applicant to produce any information required for verification purposes, the Manager, the Transfer Agent may refuse to accept the application and subscription monies. The Manager or the Transfer Agent may also refuse to process redemption requests or pay redemption proceeds in such circumstances. Applicants should note that redemption proceeds will only be made to the account of record.

Each applicant for Units acknowledges that the Administrator, the Manager, the Transfer Agent and the Fund shall be indemnified and held harmless against any loss arising as result of a failure to process his/her application for Units or redemption request, if such information and documentation has been requested and has not been provided by the applicant. Furthermore the Manager or the Transfer Agent also reserve the right to refuse to make any redemption payment or distribution to a Holder if any of the Manager, Transfer Agent or the Administrator suspects or is advised that the payment of any redemption or distribution moneys to such Holder might result in a breach or violation of any applicable anti-money laundering or other laws or regulations by any person in any relevant jurisdiction, or such refusal is considered necessary or appropriate to ensure the compliance by the Fund, the Manager, the Administrator or the Transfer Agent with any such laws or regulations in any relevant jurisdiction.

d. Know Your Customer Regulations

The HSBC Group operates a strict Know Your Customer policy and the Manager, Trustee and the Transfer Agent are each subject to such policy with regard to the services they provide to Uni-Folio.

e. Contract Notes

A contract note will be issued within two Business Days of effecting a transaction. Transactions cannot be effected until the applicable net asset value is available (reference should be made to the section headed "Valuation of a Fund" for further information). The contract note will be sent by the Transfer Agent to an

applicant for Units or a Holder redeeming Units detailing, where applicable, the number and type of Units in the Fund concerned, the price, the total consideration or redemption amount payable, the date of the Dealing Day, the amount of any Initial Charge or Redemption Fee levied and the registration details as will be inscribed in the Register of Holders.

f. Applications for Units

Before Units in a Fund will be issued, the Transfer Agent must be in possession of an Application Form completed to the satisfaction of the Manager.

Applications for an initial purchase of Units in a Fund must be for a value not less than the Minimum Holding for the relevant Fund as stated in the Fund Characteristics unless the Manager, in its absolute discretion, agrees to accept a lesser value. In addition, for subscription in an unfunded Unit class, it is expected that aggregate subscriptions of USD2,500,000 or more should be received in respect of that Unit class on the relevant Dealing Day for the Transfer Agent to accept such subscriptions, unless the Manager in its absolute discretion decides otherwise and informs the Transfer Agent accordingly

Where the Manager receives subscriptions for Units in a Fund and the Manager is of the opinion that the Fund would not be able to utilize the subscriptions because of the lack of appropriate investment opportunities, the Manager may scale back some or all of the subscriptions in such proportions as the Manager may determine.

Cleared cash in the currency of the relevant Unit class must be received by the Transfer Agent by 11:59 p.m. (Guernsey time) on the fourth Business Day before the relevant Dealing Day. Cleared cash not received by the times outlined above may result in the application being cancelled and processed on the next available Dealing Day.

Application monies received in a currency other than the Base Currency of the Fund concerned may be converted to the required currency by the Manager or a designated agent and such rate of conversion will be at the discretion of the Manager. As Units will be in registered form, no certificate of ownership of such Units will be issued. Fractional Units will be issued to two decimal places. After deducting the Initial Charge (if any) from the monies subscribed the Transfer Agent will divide the resultant amount by the Net Asset Value Per Unit of the Units concerned to determine the number of Units to be issued.

Following initial subscription, subsequent subscriptions may also be accepted electronically (in such format or method as shall be agreed in advance with the Transfer Agent and subject to and in accordance with the requirements of the Transfer Agent).

At the absolute discretion of the Manager and in accordance with the Trust Instrument, applications in specie for Units may be accepted provided that the applicant elects and expressly consents to the issue of Units, the assets offered by the applicant are of an equivalent value to the Units to be issued, the assets comply with the Investment Objective and the Investment Limits applicable to the relevant Fund, the number of Units to be issued do not exceed the amount that would be issued for the cash equivalent and the Manager is of the opinion that the terms of subscription would not likely prejudice the existing Holders of the relevant Fund.

g. Redemption of Units

Please refer to the relevant Fund Sections for details regarding the redemption of specific Units.

Redemption requests must be for value not less than the minimum transaction size for the relevant Fund as stated in the Fund Characteristics unless the Manager, in its absolute discretion, agrees to accept a lesser value. If a redemption request is received which applies to only part of a holding of Units so that the remaining holding would have a value of less than the relevant Minimum Holding, the Manager may, in its absolute discretion, consider such notice to apply to the entire holding of Units.

Redemption requests may be made by facsimile, electronic or written request to the Transfer Agent. Any one of joint Holders of Units may request redemption when the redemption proceeds are to be paid into a predesignated bank account. The Manager, the Distributor, the Transfer Agent and the Trustee are absolved from liability for any loss suffered by a Holder if a redemption request is acted upon but later found to be fraudulent.

In respect of Units in all Unit classes redeemed on a particular Dealing Day, the redemption proceeds will be paid as soon as practicable and usually in accordance with the Holder's instructions given to the Transfer Agent, on or around the fourth Business Day following the price of a Unit being determined. In certain circumstances redemption proceeds may take longer to be paid. All such payments will be made in the Reference Currency of the relevant Fund.

The redemption price per Unit will be the Net Asset Value Per Unit determined in accordance with the Trust Instrument (in relation to any particular Fund, subject to the relevant Fund Deed).

No payment of redemption proceeds will be made in any period when the calculation of Net Asset Value of the relevant Fund is suspended.

Redemption requests may also be accepted electronically (in such format or method as shall be agreed in advance with the Transfer Agent) and subject to and in accordance with the requirements of the Transfer Agent. Redemption requests sent by fax or electronically may only be processed where payment is made to the account of record.

At the absolute discretion of the Manager and in accordance with the Trust Instrument, Units may be redeemed in specie provided that the Holder has elected and expressly consented to receive Scheme Property instead of cash upon redeeming their Units, the Scheme Property to be transferred to the Holder is of an equivalent value to the value of the Units to be redeemed and the Manager is of the opinion that the terms of redemption would not likely prejudice the remaining Holders of the relevant Fund.

h. Acceptance of late application, subscription and redemption requests and late receipt of subscription monies

For any Fund the Manager may in its absolute discretion accept application, subscription and redemption requests and receipt of subscription monies received after the cut-off point, as stated in the Fund Characteristics, but before the Valuation Point on the relevant Dealing Day.

i. Mandate instructions for the payment of redemption proceeds

All Holders are invited to mandate a bank account to which redemption proceeds shall be paid and facility to do this is contained in the Application Form. Instructions to the Transfer Agent to alter the bank account to which redemption proceeds will be paid, or otherwise instructing the Transfer Agent to make payment in some other manner, must be received in writing and signed by all Holders in the case of joint Holders. A facsimile message or electronic instruction will not suffice.

j. Restriction on the number of Units in a Fund to be redeemed on any one Dealing Day

The Manager may limit the number of Units in a Fund which may be redeemed on any Dealing Day to not more than five per cent, or such greater percentage as specified in the Fund Section of any Fund, of the total number of such Units in issue immediately before such date. Any such Units failing to be redeemed upon the exercise of this discretion by the Manager will be carried forward to the next Dealing Day and shall be redeemed pro rata in priority to any other Units in respect of which a Redemption Notice has subsequently been received.

k. Compulsory Redemption

Units will be compulsorily redeemed by the Transfer Agent if the relevant Fund is to be terminated as described under "Termination of Uni-Folio or a Fund" above.

If the Manager or the Transfer Agent becomes aware that a Holder is not an Eligible Investor the Manager may effect a redemption of Units held by such person on the next Dealing Day at the redemption price determined in respect of such day and remit the proceeds to such person. In addition, the Transfer Agent acting on behalf of the Manager or the Trustee may also compulsorily redeem any Units held by any person if either the Manager or the Trustee in their absolute discretion determine that such redemption is in the best interests of Uni-Folio or of a Fund or of any Holder or otherwise and notify the Transfer Agent of such a determination and upon such determination neither the Manager nor the Trustee need disclose to any party including the relevant Holder the reason for such determination.

I. Transfer of Units

Units will not be transferred except with the prior approval of the Manager or the Transfer Agent on completion of a transfer form in a form acceptable to the Transfer Agent. If a transferee is not an existing Holder, he will be required to complete and lodge an Application Form with, or otherwise provide the equivalent information, representations and undertakings, in writing to the Transfer Agent including verification of identity documentation where applicable, before the relevant transfer is effected. A transfer of Units shall only be effected on the Dealing Day next following the day upon which the foregoing requirements have been met.

m. Conversion of Units

A Holder of Units in a Fund of a Unit class (the "**Held Units**") may request the Transfer Agent to convert all or part of their holding of Held Units into Units of another unit class in that Fund (the "**New Units**"). Such a request

must be received by the Transfer Agent before 11:59 p.m. (Guernsey time) on a Dealing Day (subject to any notice period for redemption and subscriptions as specified in the Fund Characteristics for the Held Units and New Units respectively) for such a request to be effected in respect of such Dealing Day. If as a result of such a request the Holder would become the Holder of Units less than the Minimum Holding, the Transfer Agent may elect, in its sole discretion, to either refuse or allow the request. Before the Transfer Agent shall effect such a request for the conversion of Units the Holder concerned must also qualify as an Eligible Investor in respect of the New Units and may be required to provide to the Transfer Agent such additional information as either the Manager, the Transfer Agent or the Trustee shall require.

A conversion from Held Units to New Units shall be calculated by multiplying the number of Held Units to be converted by the Net Asset Value Per Unit of New Units applicable on the relevant Dealing Day subject to any adjustment for monies transferred to the distribution account of such Fund and not yet distributed, and if the resultant amount is in a currency other than the Base Currency of the New Units the Transfer Agent shall convert such currency into the required currency on like terms as set out above for an application for New Units. Subject to any currency conversion as may be required, the Transfer Agent will then divide the resultant amount by the relevant Net Asset Value Per Unit of the New Units provided that, should the Dealing Days for Held Units and for New Units be different then the Net Asset Value Per Unit of the New Units shall be that which is calculated in respect of the next following Dealing Day for the New Units.

15.24. Information to Holders

a. Publication of the Unit Price

The price of Units in the AdvantEdge Fund is always available from the Manager and may also be published in The Wall Street Journal Europe, International Herald Tribune (European edition) and such other newspapers as the Manager may from time to time determine, and all costs so incurred will be borne by the Fund concerned. Whilst the Manager will make every effort to ensure that prices of Units published in newspapers are accurate the Manager does not accept any liability for any errors that might occur.

b. Reports and Accounts

Each Fund's financial year (an "Accounting Period") ends on an Accounting Date which is the last Valuation Point in the respective month for each Fund as given in the Fund Characteristics. The first Accounting Period for a Fund shall be not less than six months and will commence on the day upon which Units in that Fund are first issued. Audited financial statements in respect of a Fund's Accounting Period will be prepared in its Base Currency and in accordance with UK Accounting Standards. Statements will be made available to all Holders of that Fund within six months of the relevant Accounting Date. The Manager also expects to make available to Holders unaudited interim reports when required in relevant jurisdictions. Annual Reports of each Fund may be inspected at, and copies obtained from, the offices of either the Manager or the Administrator. Copies of the statements will also be sent to registered Holders.

c. Notices to Holders

Notices or other documents required to be sent to or served upon a Holder in a particular Fund shall, if sent by post, be deemed to have been duly given or served if sent to his address appearing in the Register of Holders for that Fund and if sent by post shall be deemed to have been served or received on the fifth day after posting. In the case of joint Holders such notice or document shall be sent to the address of the first named.

15.25. Tax Considerations

a. Tax Information Requests

In order to comply with any request for information ("Tax Information Request") made by any local or foreign regulatory or tax authority ("Tax Authority") in accordance with any local or foreign law, legislation or regulation and/or to satisfy the Fund's Tax Reporting and Accounting Obligations, the Manager and/or the Trustee may gather, store, use, process, disclose and report to any such Tax Authority any entity status information, personal tax information, financial information or additional information relating to the investor that is specified by any Tax Authority in any Tax Information Request made of the Trustee or the Manager and that the Manager and/or the Trustee holds or that such investor provides to the Manager or the Trustee.

Various countries are in the process of adopting tax legislation concerning the reporting of information. Uni-Folio and the Funds intend to comply with such tax legislation that may apply to them, although the exact parameters of such requirements are not yet fully known. As a result, Uni-Folio and the Funds may need to seek information about the tax status of investors under such country's laws and each investor for disclosure to the relevant governmental authority.

b. FATCA and the Common Reporting Standard

FATCA stands for the Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act. It is a piece of legislation to help counter tax evasion in the US.

Introduced by the United States Department of Treasury ("**Treasury**") and the US Internal Revenue Service ("**IRS**"), the purpose of FATCA is to encourage better tax compliance by preventing US Persons from using banks and other financial organisations to avoid US taxation on their income and assets.

A significant number of countries worldwide have signed Inter-Governmental Agreements ("**IGAs**") with the United States government to improve international tax compliance and to implement FATCA. These IGAs will result in the FATCA legislation becoming part of these countries' local laws.

Sections 1471 through 1474 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code ("**FATCA**") impose a 30% withholding tax on certain payments to a foreign financial institution as defined in section 1471(d)(4) of FATCA ("**FFI**") if that FFI is not compliant with FATCA. Uni-Folio is a FFI and thus, subject to FATCA.

Beginning 1 July 2014, this withholding tax applies to payments to Uni-Folio and Funds which constitute interest, dividends and certain other types of income from U.S. sources. From no earlier than two years after the date of publication of certain final regulations defining "foreign passthru payments", this withholding tax will extend to a portion of non-U.S. source payments from certain non-U.S. financial institutions to the extent attributable to U.S. source payments.

These FATCA withholding taxes may be imposed on payments to the Funds unless (i) the Funds become FATCA compliant pursuant to the provisions of FATCA and the relevant regulations, notices and announcements issued thereunder, or (ii) the Funds are subject to an appropriate IGA.

Guernsey has signed an IGA with the U.S. The Funds are resident in Guernsey for FATCA purposes and therefore are not required to comply with FATCA but rather the local regulations that bring the IGA provisions into Guernsey law. Under Guernsey law, provided the Funds make the appropriate information returns, no withholding tax will be deducted from payments to investors.

Other countries have adopted or are in the process of adopting tax legislation concerning the reporting of information. Guernsey, along with approximately 100 jurisdictions, has implemented the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development's "Common Reporting Standard" and will automatically exchange tax information with other adopting jurisdictions. Other jurisdictions are expected to adopt the Common Reporting Standard in the future. Uni-Folio also intends to comply with the Common Reporting Standard and local implementing regulations. As a result, Uni-Folio will need to seek information about the tax status of investors (and in some cases the beneficial owners and/or controllers of investors) under such laws and each investor for disclosure to the Guernsey tax authorities.

In order to comply with its FATCA/ Common Reporting Standard obligations, Uni-Folio and Funds will be required to obtain certain information from their investors so as to ascertain their tax/residence status. If the investor is a specified U.S. person (for the purposes of FATCA), a Reportable Person (for the purposes of the Common Reporting Standard), an entity that is ultimately owned or controlled by one or more natural persons who are residents/citizens of the US or residents of a jurisdiction that has adopted the Common Reporting Standard, non-participating FFI ("NPFFI") or does not provide the requisite documentation, Uni-Folio and Funds may need to report information on these investors to the Guernsey tax authorities for onward transmission to the appropriate tax authority, as far as legally permitted.

If an investor or an intermediary through which it holds its interest in Uni-Folio and Funds either fails to provide Uni-Folio and Funds, their agents or authorised representatives with any correct, complete and accurate information that may be required for Uni-Folio and Funds to comply with FATCA or the Common Reporting Standard (or any analogous legislation) or is a NPFFI, the investor may be subject to withholding on amounts otherwise distributable to the investor, and (i) may be compelled to sell its interest in Uni-Folio and Funds or, (ii) in certain situations, the investor's interest in Uni-Folio and Funds may be sold involuntarily. Uni-Folio and Funds may at their discretion enter into any supplemental agreement without the consent of investors to provide for any measures that Uni-Folio and Funds deem appropriate or necessary to comply with FATCA or the Common Reporting Standard (or measures similar to FATCA or the Common Reporting Standard).

Investors should consult their own tax advisors regarding the FATCA requirements or the Common Reporting Standard (or the requirements of measures similar to FATCA or the Common Reporting Standard) with respect to their own situation. In particular, investors who hold their Units through intermediaries should confirm the FATCA compliance status of those intermediaries to ensure that they do not suffer FATCA withholding tax on their investment returns.

c. The Funds

It is not anticipated that Uni-Folio or any Fund will deliberately incur any liability to taxation in any country either on the receipt of income or on the realisation of capital or trading gains where it is possible or desirable that such taxation may be mitigated. Furthermore, the Manager does not expect any Fund to acquire an investment where the payment of income thereon is subject to any form of withholding tax at source unless the total return (after taking into account such a tax deduction) still makes the investment appear attractive. Where a Fund does incur taxation, the Manager may deem any such tax to be of such a nature that the investment decision had been made taking into account any potential tax consequences.

Prospective investors are strongly recommended to seek their own advice as to the tax consequences which may apply to them in their own countries or any country with which they have a present or former connection (including the use of custodian or nominee in that country) in relation to their purchase, holding or disposal of Units in a Fund or Funds.

The Fund invests through an underlying investment holding company registered in Guernsey for that purpose (an SPV, as defined above).

The Director of the Revenue Service of the States of Guernsey has confirmed that in their opinion Uni-Folio is eligible for exemption from income tax in Guernsey under the Income Tax (Exempt Bodies) (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Ordinance 1989, as amended. Uni-Folio is currently exempt from Income Tax in Guernsey and intends to continue to apply for and obtain such exemption and to sustain this exemption each Fund will share the cost of the annual fee payable by Uni-Folio which is currently £1,200 per annum. It is the intention of the Manager to conduct the affairs of Uni-Folio and each Fund so as to ensure that Uni-Folio retains such exempt status which is granted on an annual basis.

Guernsey does not levy taxes upon capital inheritance, capital gains on securities, gifts, sales or turnover, nor are there any estate duties. No stamp duty is chargeable in Guernsey on the issue, transfer, conversion or redemption of Units.

d. Tax Treatment

Investors are responsible for fulfilling any obligation that they may have with respect to the filing of returns or other required documentation in respect of the Units they hold and the payment of all relevant taxes, including, without limitation, all income, capital gains, wealth and estate taxes. The holding or disposal of investments or assets, as well as any income, distributions or losses realized may expose investors to tax consequences depending on a number of factors including, but not limited to, the Investors' applicable domicile, place of residence, citizenship or the type of assets they hold. Certain countries may have tax legislation with extraterritorial effect regardless of the investors' place of domicile, residence or citizenship. The Manager does not provide any legal or tax advice and investors should seek legal and/or tax advice from an independent legal and/or tax adviser. By subscribing to Uni-Folio, investors acknowledge and agree that none of the Manager, the Trustee, the Investment Adviser or the Distributors have any liability in respect of any of the investors' tax obligations and/or any legal and/or tax advice provided to them by third parties. In the absence of tax-exempt status, the Fund would be Guernsey tax resident and taxable at the Guernsey standard rate of company income tax of 0%, which would create an annual tax filing obligation.

e. Economic Substance

With effect from 1st January 2019, Guernsey has been implementing new substance requirements. This is in response to work by the EU Code of Conduct on Business Taxation Group on third countries.

Following introduction of the Income Tax (Substance Requirements) (Guernsey) (Amendment) Ordinance, 2018, the substance requirements will apply to funds such as Uni-Folio.

In addition, providing Uni-Folio continues to claim exempt company status then it would not be treated as tax resident in Guernsey; therefore, should regulations change the position with respect to the treatment of funds for substance purposes, on the basis that the fund would not be tax resident then the substance requirements should not apply.

f. Holders of Units

All income distributed in respect of Units in a Fund will be made free of the deduction of any form of Guernsey income tax provided the Holder of such Units is not deemed a resident of Guernsey, Alderney or Herm for the purposes of Guernsey income tax or acting as nominee for some other person deemed so resident. In a case where the Holder is so resident, then provided that Uni-Folio maintains exemption from income tax, income distributed in respect of Units in a Fund will be made free of the deduction of any form of Guernsey income tax, however the Trustee will be required to provide to the Director of the Revenue Service in Guernsey details of distributions made to Holders resident in Guernsey, Alderney or Herm.

Prospective investors are strongly recommended to take their own advice as to the tax consequences which may apply to them in their own countries in relation to their purchase, holding or disposal of Units in a Fund.

g. Mandatory Disclosure Rules

Guernsey has committed to introduce Mandatory Disclosure Rules for the common reporting standard avoidance arrangements and opaque offshore structures ("MDR"). MDR would require promoters of avoidance arrangements and service providers to disclose information on the arrangement or structure to the Director of Revenue Service of the States of Guernsey. Such information would include the identity of any user or beneficial owner and would then be exchanged with the tax authorities of the jurisdiction in which the users and/or beneficial owners are resident, where there is a relevant information exchange agreement.

15.26. Data Protection

By agreeing to invest in a Fund, Holders on their own behalf and on behalf of any beneficial owner acknowledge that the Manager and the Trustee and the Administrator may hold and process personal data to properly record the Holder's interest in a Fund in accordance with the Data Protection (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 2017, as amended (the "Data Protection Law"), and relevant laws and regulations and to advise the Holder of matters relative to his investment in the Fund, including current values and changes to Fund documentation and the Manager, Trustee and/or Administrator may in order to fulfil its duties and to comply with the data protection principles set out in the Data Protection Law.

Further, by agreeing to invest in a Fund, Holders on their own behalf and on behalf of any beneficial owner acknowledge that any personal information will be handled by the Transfer Agent (as Data Processor (on behalf of the Fund) in accordance with the Irish Data Protection Acts 1988 and 2003, EU Data Protection Directive 95/46/EC and the EU Privacy & Electronic Communications Directive 2002/58/EC, any relevant amendments any replacement legislation including the EU General Data Protection Regulation (EU) 2016/679, European Commission decisions, binding EU and national guidance and all national implementing legislation. The information of Holders will be processed for the purposes of carrying out the services of Transfer Agent of the Fund and to comply with legal obligations, including legal obligations under company law, anti-money laundering and counter terrorist financing legislation. The Transfer Agent will disclose the Holder's information to third parties where necessary for legal or regulatory reasons. This may include disclosure to third parties such as auditors, the Irish Revenue Authorities, the Central Bank of Ireland, the Data Protection Commissioner or a court properly constituted under and in accordance with the Bailiwick of Guernsey. By investing in the fund, the Holders acknowledge receipt of the data privacy statement, a copy of which is available at http://www.global.assetmanagement.hsbc.com/privacy-notices.

15.27. General Information

a. General provisions

The following is a summary of some of the material provisions of the Trust Instrument not previously mentioned: (a) the Trustee is entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of a Fund against any actions, costs, claims, damages, expenses or demands to which it may be put as Trustee of that Fund; (b) certain powers of delegation are conferred on the Manager and the Trustee; (c) the Manager and Trustee shall at all times comply with and perform the obligations imposed and enjoy the powers and discretions conferred upon them by the Class B Rules; (d) the Trustee is not entitled to retire voluntarily except upon the appointment of a new trustee; (e) the Manager may be removed by the Trustee if an order is made or a resolution is passed for the winding up of the Manager or a receiver is appointed (except a voluntary liquidation for the purpose of reconstruction or amalgamation on terms approved by the Trustee) or, if the Trustee believes a change of

Manager is desirable in the interests of Holders and states in writing to the Holders setting out such reasons, or Holders by means of a resolution (being a resolution passed by a simple majority of Holders) resolve that the Manager be removed, or Holders of three quarters of the Units in issue (excluding those held by the Manager) sign a request to the Trustee that the Manager be removed, or the Manager ceases to be licensed under the Law.

b. Modification of the Trust Instrument

The Trustee and Manager may by deed modify, alter, or add to the provisions of the Trust Instrument and the Fund Deeds in such manner and to such extent as they may consider expedient, unless such modification, alteration, or addition does not materially prejudice the interests of Holders generally or of any particular Fund and does not operate to release to any material extent the Trustee or any delegate of the Trustee or the Manager from any liability to such Holders, no such modification, alteration or addition shall be made without the sanction of a resolution of a meeting of such Holders of the relevant Fund or Uni-Folio as the case may be. No such modification, alteration or addition shall impose upon any Holder any obligation to make any further payments in respect of his Units or to accept any further liability in respect thereof.

c. Hurdle Rate

Reference in each Fund's Fund Section to "hurdle rate" does not constitute any representation or assurance that any "hurdle rate" can or will be achieved.

d. Documents for Inspection

Copies of the Trust Instrument, each Fund Deed, this Prospectus, a list of the current and past directorships of each director of the Manager, other relevant documents and the latest audited and interim reports and accounts for each Fund are available for inspection at the offices of the Manager during usual business hours on any weekday (public holidays excepted) and a copy thereof may be obtained from the Manager.

15.28. The Commission

The Guernsey Financial Services Commission is the regulatory body for the finance sector in the Bailiwick of Guernsey. The Commission's offices are located at Glategny Court, Glategny Esplanade, St Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 1WR. The Commission's telephone number is +44 (0) 1481 712706.

16. AIFMD Investor Disclosure Statement

This disclosure statement ("**AIFMD Investor Disclosure Statement**") is being provided on a confidential basis to prospective investors in Uni-Folio in compliance with the Manager's disclosure obligations under Articles 23 and 42 of the EU Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive ("**AIFMD**").

The contents of this AIFMD Investor Disclosure Statement are summary in nature and are qualified in their entirety by the detailed provisions of the Trust Instrument and the rest of this Prospectus.

In the event that this AIFMD Investor Disclosure Statement is inconsistent with or contrary to the description in, or terms of, the Trust Instrument, this Prospectus or related documents (including the subscription agreement), the terms of the Trust Instrument, this Prospectus and the related documents will prevail.

In this AIFMD Investor Disclosure Statement, "AIF" and "AIFM" have the meanings given in the AIFMD. Other capitalised terms have the same meaning as in this Prospectus.

INVESTMENT STRATEGY AND POLICY

A description of the investment strategy and objectives of the AIF.

(Article 23(1)(a))

Uni-Folio is a fund of hedge funds formed in order to invest in Portfolio Funds and is currently comprised of one sub-fund created pursuant to the Trust Instrument (each such sub-fund being referred to as a "Fund" and the sub-funds being collectively referred to as "Funds")

Other Funds may hereafter be created in accordance with the Trust Instrument.

Each Fund will pursue its own investment objective by distributing its assets among the Portfolio Funds chosen by the Manager or the Investment Adviser for the Manager.

The specific investment objective and strategy for each Fund is set out in the relevant Fund Section of this Prospectus.

A description of the types of assets in which the AIF may invest, the techniques it may employ and all associated risks.

(Article 23(1)(a))

The assets of a Fund may be invested in Portfolio Funds in the form of joint stock companies, limited liability companies, trusts, contractual collective investment vehicles or other legal entities organised or constituted according to the laws of any jurisdiction. Two factors shall be decisive in the Manager's evaluation of a Portfolio Fund, whether with fixed or variable capital: (1) the Fund's capacity to redeem, transfer or otherwise dispose of holdings in any such Portfolio Funds in the context of the Fund's overall portfolio and (2) the possibility of evaluating the holdings in such Portfolio Funds at regular intervals as required by the liquidity characteristics of the Fund investing in the Portfolio Fund.

The transferable securities and instruments in which Portfolio Funds may invest include, but are not limited to, equities and fixed income securities; futures contracts and options; OTC currency contracts; miscellaneous financial instruments and securities; swaps; debt securities; property investments; mortgages; emerging market debt instruments; private investment securities and traditional or basic commodities traded on spot, term, futures, options or swap markets. The Funds' assets may be invested in managed accounts, provided such investments are managed exclusively through wholly-owned subsidiaries of such Fund (each, a "Subsidiary" and together, the "Subsidiaries").

Investment in transferable securities and instruments of the types described above may involve a high degree of business and financial risk that can result in substantial losses. The Funds' investment performance may be volatile, and investors could potentially lose all amounts invested.

The main risks associated with an investment in the Funds are described in the section of this Prospectus headed "Risk Warnings and Disclosures" and the section of this Prospectus headed "Additional Risk Factors Applicable to Swiss Registered Funds".

The particular types of asset in which each Fund may invest and the investment techniques that each Fund may employ are more particularly described in the relevant Fund Section of this Prospectus.

Any applicable investment restrictions.

(Article 23(1)(a))

The Manager is required to invest each Fund's assets in accordance with the Investment Limitations and Restrictions of each Fund, as set out in the relevant Fund Section of this Prospectus. Examples of investment restrictions relate to portfolio diversification and concentration, currency hedging, minimum liquidity requirements for Portfolio Funds and prohibited investment types. Any Investment Limits are to be calculated by reference to the Net

Asset Value of the Fund at each Valuation Point, taking account of all accepted subscriptions and redemptions at the relevant Valuation Point.

A description of the procedures by which the AIF may change its investment strategy or investment policy, or both.

Any changes in the Investment Objective, Investment Restrictions and Borrowing Limits of a Fund or of Uni-Folio would require approval by Extraordinary Resolution of a meeting of the Holders of the relevant Fund (being a resolution passed by a majority of seventy five per cent or more of the total number of votes cast).

(Article 23(1)(b))

LEVERAGE

The circumstances in which the AIF may use leverage, the types and sources of leverage permitted and the associated risks.

(Article 23(1)(a))

General

Subject always to the Borrowing Limits applicable to each Fund (described below), the Manager may at any time arrange borrowings on behalf of a Fund in the name of the Trustee on such terms and subject to the payment of such fees and assumption of such liabilities as the Manager may determine and may request the Trustee to pledge or charge all or any part of the Scheme Property of the relevant Fund. Generally, any borrowings on behalf of a Fund are put in place at the level of the Subsidiary, through which the relevant Fund invests in the Portfolio Funds. All references to leverage and borrowing limits look at the relevant Fund and its Subsidiary in aggregate.

At the Manager's discretion and subject to the Restrictions on derivative transactions applicable to each Fund, a Fund may, from time to time, enter into derivative transactions for the purposes of hedging. The hedging transactions may cover any aspect of risk control, reduction or elimination. Consequently, the Manager may determine that any transaction(s) (that has a relationship with any other transaction(s) in the portfolio that is capable of identification) may be considered a hedge, provided that the intentions on entering the transaction(s) were: (i) not overtly speculative in nature; and (ii) to control, reduce or eliminate some element(s) of risk in the portfolio.

Where a Fund permits leverage, the underlying volatility of the Fund will be significantly greater than would otherwise have been the case without the permitted leverage. Whilst this gives a Fund the ability to participate in higher returns associated with greater exposure, it also gives a Fund exposure to increased losses where markets in general (and a Fund in particular) invest in assets where prices suffer declines.

Leverage at Portfolio Fund level

Certain Portfolio Funds in which a Fund may invest use material levels of leverage and are not limited in either their borrowing capacity nor in their level of margin commitment. The total value of positions held by these funds may exceed their net asset values. The leverage utilised offers the possibility of achieving a much greater overall return, but also increases the Fund's volatility and carries the risk of total loss of the amount invested.

Any restrictions on the use of leverage and the maximum level of leverage which the AIFM is entitled to employ on behalf of the AIF

(Article 23(1)(a))

Borrowing Limits

The applicable Borrowing Limits for each Fund and the purposes for which borrowings are permitted are set according to a percentage of the Net Asset Value of the Fund and are described in each case in the Relevant Fund Section of this Prospectus. The Borrowing Limits for each Fund are to be calculated by reference to the Net Asset Value of the Fund at each Valuation Point, taking account of all accepted subscriptions and redemptions at the relevant Valuation Point.

Restrictions on derivative transactions

Each Fund may utilise derivative transactions for the purposes of hedging only. No Fund shall invest in derivative instruments for speculative purposes. Where a Fund utilises derivatives, it may cause the Fund to become leveraged; however, no more than 15% of the Fund's Net Asset Value may be used as margin or premium to effect these transactions. It may not cause the Fund to be leveraged more than 25% in total of the Net Asset Value of the Fund (including all other types of borrowing).

Periodic disclosures.

(Article 23(1)(p))

It is currently anticipated that, during the life of Uni-Folio, there will be no changes to the maximum level of leverage that may be employed by any existing Fund. In the event of any change, this will be notified to investors without undue delay.

The total amount of leverage employed by each Fund (calculated in accordance with the gross and commitment methods) will be disclosed in each annual report provided to Holders pursuant to the Trust Instrument.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

A description of the main legal implications of the contractual relationship entered into for the purpose of investment, including information on:

- jurisdiction;
- applicable law; and
- the existence or not of any legal instruments providing for the recognition and enforcement of judgments in the territory where the AIF is established.

(Article 23(1)(c))

Investors in Uni-Folio will become Holders of Units in a Guernsey umbrella Unit Trust with the rights, duties and obligations as set out in the Trust Instrument and under the relevant law, as amended.

The Uni-Folio documents (including the Trust Instrument and investor subscription documents) are governed by the laws of Guernsey and any dispute (whether contractual or non-contractual in nature) arising out of the Uni-Folio documents is subject to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the Courts of Guernsey.

A final and conclusive judgment in respect of a payable sum of money, not being a sum payable in respect of taxes or other charges of a like nature or in respect of a fine or other penalty, which falls within the scope of the requirements of the Judgments (Reciprocal Enforcement) (Guernsey) Law, 1957 (the "Reciprocal Enforcement Law"), would be recognized and enforced by the Royal Court of Guernsey without re-examination of the merits of that case unless (i) it is not a judgement to which the Reciprocal Enforcement Law applies or was registered in contravention of the Reciprocal Enforcement Law; (ii) the courts of the country of the original court had no jurisdiction in the circumstances of the case; or (iii) the judgment debtor, being the defendant in the proceedings in the original court, did not (notwithstanding that process may have been duly served on him in accordance with the law of the country of the original court) receive notice of those proceedings in sufficient time to enable him to defend the proceedings and did not appear; (iv) that judgment was obtained by fraud; (v) the enforcement of the judgment would be contrary to public policy in Guernsey, (vi) the rights under the judgment are not vested in the person by whom the application for registration was made; (vii) the judgment has already been wholly satisfied or (viii) the judgment could not be enforced by execution in the country of origin. Reciprocating countries for the purposes of the Reciprocal Enforcement Law include, but are not limited to, England and Wales, the Isle of Man, Jersey, Israel, Scotland, the Kingdom of the Netherlands, the Netherland Antilles, the Republic of Italy, Surinam and Northern Ireland.

Where a final and conclusive judgment has been obtained in a court of a country where the Reciprocal Enforcement Law does not apply, a judgment creditor for a fixed or ascertainable sum of money would be entitled to sue on that foreign judgment itself by commencing an action in Guernsey and, if the matter were placed on the pleading list in Guernsey, by applying for summary judgment. Broadly, a judgment creditor relying on this enforcement procedure would be prevented from suing on its foreign judgment in Guernsey if any of the above grounds listed at (i) to (viii) applied.

SERVICE PROVIDERS

AIFM

(Article 23(1)(d))

The Manager of Uni-Folio is HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited. The Manager is responsible for portfolio management and risk management for Uni-Folio. The duties of the Manager are set out more fully in the Trust Instrument.

Depositary

(Articles 23(1)(d)and 23(1)(f))

As a non-EEA AIFM, the Manager is not authorised under AIFMD and as a non-EEA AIF, Uni-Folio is not required to have a depository.

No depositary has been appointed as at the date of this Prospectus. However, the Manager may appoint a depositary to the HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund in its discretion to comply with specific requirements in certain EEA jurisdictions.

Auditors

(Article 23(1)(d))

The Auditor of each Fund is PricewaterhouseCoopers CI LLP, PO Box 321, 1st Floor, Royal Bank Place, 1 Glategny Esplanade, St Peter Port, Guernsey GY1 4ND, Channel Islands. The Auditor shall be appointed and removed by the Manager with the approval of the Trustee. The Auditor is responsible for auditing each Fund's annual financial statements.

Other Service Providers

(Article 23(1)(d))

The Trustee

The Trustee of Uni-Folio is HSBC Custody Services (Guernsey) Limited ("HCS"). HCS was incorporated with limited liability in Guernsey on 25 August 1992 and its registered office is at Arnold House, St Julian's Avenue, St Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 3NF, Channel Islands. For the purpose of the Law and the Class B Rules the Trustee is the designated trustee of Uni-Folio. Under the terms of the Trust Instrument, the Trustee, with the prior consent of the Manager and Commission, has the power to appoint another body corporate to be a trustee of a particular Fund so as to act jointly and severally as a co-trustee with the Trustee in respect of such Fund.

The Investment Adviser

The Manager has appointed HSBC Alternative Investments Limited to act as Investment Adviser to each Fund. The Investment Adviser is a company incorporated with limited liability in the United Kingdom, which is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority in the conduct of designated investment business and having its principal place of business at 8 Canada Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 5HQ. The Investment Adviser is wholly owned by parties that are affiliated with the Manager and the Trustee.

The Administrator

The Manager has entered into an administration agreement with HSBC Securities Services (Guernsey) Limited (the "Administrator") and delegates administration functions to the Administrator. For the purposes of the Law and the Class B Rules, the Administrator is the designated administrator of Uni-Folio.

The Custodians

All existing SPVs have entered into custodian agreements with HSBC Continental Europe and HSBC Bank Plc, Guernsey Branch (the "Custodians") and have delegated certain custody functions to the Custodians. The Custodians are authorised, at their own discretion, to further delegate such of the custody functions as defined therein to third party custody services providers as they deem appropriate.

HSBC Bank Plc, Guernsey Branch has entered into the HSBC Guernsey Sub-Custodian Agreement with HSBC Private Bank (Suisse) SA pursuant to which HSBC Bank Plc, Guernsey Branch sub-delegates custody functions to HSBC Private Bank (Suisse) SA. HSBC Private Bank (Suisse) SA is authorised, at its own discretion, to further delegate such of the custody functions as defined therein to other third party custody services providers as it deems appropriate.

The Transfer Agent

The Manager has delegated transfer agency functions to HSBC Securities Services (Ireland) DAC, of 1 Grand Canal Square, Grand Canal Harbour, Dublin 2, Ireland, as Transfer Agent. The Transfer Agent is responsible for providing all necessary transfer agency functions, including application and transaction processing and services related to these functions.

The Distributors

The Manager has appointed various distributors as non-exclusive distributors of the Units in each of the Funds. Each distributor shall use reasonable endeavours to procure subscribers of the Units in accordance with the terms and conditions of their respective distribution agreement and in accordance with the laws and the Fund documents and subject always to the overall policies, orders, instructions, direction and control of the Manager until its appointment shall be terminated pursuant to the terms of the distribution agreement. Under the terms of its appointment the distributor may be entitled to receive fees from the Manager, payable by the Manager out of its own remuneration.

The Swiss Representative

The Swiss representative is HSBC Global Asset Management (Switzerland) AG.

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY RISKS

A description of how the AIFM covers potential professional liability risks by either:

- having additional own funds which are appropriate to cover potential liability risks arising from professional negligence; or
- holding a professional indemnity insurance against liability arising from professional negligence which is appropriate to the risks covered.

(Article 23(1)(e))

As a non-EEA AIFM, the Manager is not authorised under AIFMD and consequently is not subject to the AIFMD requirements to hold additional capital or professional indemnity insurance against potential liability arising from professional negligence.

The Manager has the benefit of professional indemnity insurance cover maintained by the HSBC group.

RISK PROFILE AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The current risk profile of the AIF.

(Article 23(1)(e))

Investors should be aware that there are certain risks associated with investing in Hedge Fund strategies. For example, some strategies may utilise leverage and other speculative investment practices that may increase the risk of investment loss, may be less liquid than for example equities, may not be required to provide immediate or on demand pricing or valuation information to investors, may involve complex tax structures, are not subject to the same regulatory requirements as mutual funds, and often charge high fees.

Uni-Folio may be subject to valuation risk due to the manner in which Uni-Folio Portfolio Funds are valued. Some of these underlying funds may be valued by fund administrators affiliated to fund managers, or by the fund managers themselves, resulting in valuations which are not verified by an independent third party on a regular or timely basis.

Certain Portfolio Funds within Uni-Folio's underlying portfolio may be based on an estimate of the net asset value provided by the manager or adviser of the Portfolio Fund. Accordingly, the net asset value of a share which is applicable to subscription and redemption requests may reflect an element of estimated pricing.

Where a Fund or a Portfolio Fund permits leverage, the underlying volatility of the Fund will be significantly greater than would otherwise have been the case without the permitted leverage. The value of investments, as measured in the base currency of the investment, can be subject to both gains and/or losses arising from fluctuations in exchange rates. These fluctuations can lead to considerable losses being incurred by those exposed to currency markets. Instruments in which Portfolio Funds may invest include, but are not limited to, fixed income securities and fixed income derivatives, instruments involving currencies and related derivative instruments and equities and equity related derivative instruments are not always subject to governmental regulation or control. Trading counterparties may from time to time refrain from making a market in a particular contract or instrument, with the result that those persons already holding such a contract or instrument are unable to liquidate their exposure. Such characteristics can lead to considerable losses being incurred by those exposed to such instruments. The target investment schemes may at their discretion and subject to the consent of the relevant shareholders distribute such assets to shareholders pro-rata to their holding of shares.

Funds may be subject to risks associated with Portfolio Funds utilising side pockets to hold any illiquid investments. The use of side pockets by Portfolio Funds may restrict the ability of a Fund or its shareholders to fully redeem out of the Portfolio Funds until such investments have been removed from the side pocket.

The risk management systems employed by the AIFM to manage those risks.

(Article 23(1)(e))

Overall risk management responsibility for Uni-Folio is retained by the Manager.

The Manager takes a multi-tiered approach to risk management, with the understanding and management of risk embedded in the manager selection and portfolio management processes, together with portfolio oversight and monitoring of compliance with Fund investment restrictions, as listed in the relevant Fund Section.

In manager selection, Due Diligence revolves around understanding whether the risks a Hedge Fund manager takes in the pursuit of returns are appropriate and controlled. Complementing this investment focused due diligence, the operational due diligence team evaluates the business and operational (non-investment) risks of a Hedge Fund and seeks to avoid Hedge Funds where inadequate structure or process could compromise an investment. In portfolio management, ensuring that portfolios are appropriately diversified is paramount. In order to assess risk and portfolio diversification, both qualitative and quantitative techniques are used, including returns and exposure-based analysis.

The Manager regularly monitors each Fund's compliance with the investment restrictions detailed in this Prospectus, and retains oversight of all aspects of the risk management process.

Periodic disclosures

(Article 23(1)(p))

Any material changes to the risk profile of Uni-Folio or the risk management systems employed by the Manager to manage those risks will be disclosed to Unit Holders in the annual report provided to Unit Holders pursuant to the Trust Instrument.

DELEGATION

A description of any delegation of management function by the AIFM, including:

- the identity of the delegate; and
- any conflicts of interest that may arise.

(Article 23(1)(f))

Pursuant to the Investment Advisory Agreement entered into between the Manager, the Trustee and the Investment Adviser, the Manager has delegated certain portfolio management activities to the Investment Adviser, including the implementation and execution of the Funds' investments provided that such investments are in accordance with the Class B Rules and the other restrictions set out in the Investment Advisory Agreement and this Prospectus. The Manager may also consider amendments to the investment objective and investment policy of the Funds further to recommendations provided by the Investment Adviser. Overall portfolio management and risk management responsibility for the Funds is retained by the Manager. The Manager has also delegated certain other ancillary functions as specified to the other parties listed above under "Other Service Providers".

Conflicts of interest may occur between a Fund and the persons or companies involved as advisers in the management of the Fund and/or the fund managers of the Portfolio Funds used by the Fund. The fund managers of Portfolio Funds normally manage the assets of other clients, who make investments similar to those made on behalf of funds in which a Fund has invested. These clients could therefore be in competition for the same contracts or investments, and although the investments or available opportunities for each client are normally allocated in an equitable fashion, certain allocation procedures can produce a negative effect on the price paid or obtained for investments bought or sold or on the volume of positions obtained or sold. In addition, the other services offered by the HSBC Group, which is authorised to provide advisory, custodial and other services to the Funds, to other clients and to a number of Portfolio Funds in which a Fund may invest, may themselves represent a source of conflicts of interest. In the same vein, certain fund managers have holdings in the capital of their own investment funds. Ipso facto, conflicts of interest in Portfolio Funds cannot be excluded.

VALUATION

A description of:

- the AIF's valuation procedure; and
- the pricing methodology for valuing assets, including the methods used in valuing hard-tovalue assets.

(Article 23(1)(g))

The section of this Prospectus headed "Valuation of a Fund" gives details of the procedures and the pricing methodology for valuing assets

LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT

A description of the AIF's liquidity risk management, including:

- the redemption rights both in normal and in exceptional circumstances; and
- any existing redemption arrangements with investors.

(Article 23(1)(h))

Periodic disclosures (Article 23(1)(p))

The redemption arrangements for Units of each Fund are set out in the relevant Fund Sections of this Prospectus.

Any changes to Uni-Folio's liquidity profile or liquidity management arrangements during the life of Uni-Folio shall be notified to Holders at the time of the change

SFDR AND SUSTAINABILITY RISK

SFDR disclosure

Pursuant to SFDR, the Manager (in its capacity as AIFM) is required to disclose the manner in which Sustainability Risks are integrated into the investment process and the results of the assessment of the likely impacts of Sustainability Risks on the investment returns.

The Manager, together with the Investment Advisor, believes that Sustainability Risks can materialise in various forms for companies or governments including (but not limited to) (i) reduced revenue due to shifts in customer preferences, negative impacts on the workforce, social unrest and decreased production capacity; (ii) increased operating/capital costs; (iii) write-off and early retirement of existing assets; (iv) loss of reputation due to fines and judgements and loss of license to operate; (v) the risk score (and market for) government bonds.

As the Fund will not generally invest directly into company and government issued securities and instead will invest into a diverse portfolio of Portfolio Funds utilising a range of different alternative strategies, including, without limitation, long/short equity on a regional, global or sectoral basis, global macro, arbitrage and event driven strategies these Sustainability Risks will be harder to factor due to a number of factors, principally a lack of consistent relevant data.

As a result, the investments underlying this financial product do not take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities.

Furthermore, at the date of this Prospectus, the Manager together with the Investment Advisor, cannot consider Principal Adverse Impacts ("PAI") as defined within SFDR on the basis that, in the context of the Initial Portfolio, it is not possible to gather consistent PAI data.

The Manager, together with the Investment Advisor, is committed to responsible investing and the protection of the investors' interests and therefore continues to develop and improve its own proprietary ESG risk management tools that will be used in the management of the Fund.

MANAGEMENT FEES

A description of all fees, charges and expenses and of the maximum amounts thereof which are directly or indirectly borne by investors

The section of this Prospectus headed "Fees and Expenses" gives details of all fees and expenses to be borne by Holders of Units. Reference to the fees and expenses chargeable in relation to particular Funds is also made in this section, which should be read in conjunction with the "Fund Characteristics" in each Fund Section.

(Article 23(1)(i))

Preferential treatment for non-affiliated investors

PREFERENTIAL TREATMENT OF INVESTORS

(Article 23(1)(j))

Certain historic and current distributors may share the fees they receive as distribution fees from the Manager with other intermediaries and/or their clients who may be direct or indirect Holders of Units in the Funds.

Under the terms of certain historic side arrangements, approximately 2 Holders have been granted the right to receive a rebate of up to 100% of the management fees they pay with respect to a Fund in which they invest. This is payable by the Manager out of its own remuneration.

Preferential treatment for affiliated investors

(Article 23(1)(j))

Certain historic and current distributors may share the fees they receive as distribution fees from the Manager with other intermediaries and/or their clients who may be direct or indirect Holders of Units in the Funds.

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION		
Annual fund report (Article 23(1)(k))	Each Fund's Accounting Period ends on an Accounting Date which is the last Valuation Point in the respective month for each Fund as given in the Fund Characteristics. Audited financial statements in respect of a Fund's Accounting Period will be prepared in its Base Currency and made available to all Holders of that Fund within six months of the relevant Accounting Date. The Manager also expects to make available to Holders unaudited interim reports. Annual Reports of each Fund may be inspected at, and copies obtained from, the offices of the Manager.	
Latest net asset value (Article 23(1)(m))	Please refer to the latest Fund Factsheets and Bloomberg for the latest Net Asset Value of a Fund.	
Historical performance of the AIF (Article 23(1)(n))	Please refer to the latest Fund Factsheets and Bloomberg for the historical performance of the Fund.	
SUBSCRIPTION FOR FUND	INTERESTS	
Procedure and conditions (Article 23(1)(I))	Distribution of Uni-Folio interests is restricted by applicable securities laws. Uni-Folio is being offered on a private placement basis to a select number of investors, and subscriptions for Uni-Folio interests may be accepted or refused in the Manager's sole discretion. The Minimum Holdings for each class of Units of each Fund are set out in the relevant Fund Section of this Prospectus, although the Manager, in its absolute discretion, reserves the right to accept a lesser value. To invest in a Fund, each prospective Holder of Units will be required to complete an Application Form (in such form as the Manager may from time to time determine) which shall bind the prospective Holder to the provisions of the Trust Instrument and the applicable Fund Deed. Please see the specific Fund Section for the application procedure and requirements for the subscription of Units.	
DEPOSITARY LIABILITY		
Any arrangement made by the depositary to contractually discharge	As a non-EEA AIFM, the Manager is not authorised under AIFMD and as a non-EEA AIF, Uni-Folio is not required to have a depository.	
itself of liability. (Article 23(2))	No depositary has been appointed as at the date of this Prospectus. However, the Manager may appoint a depositary to the HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund in its discretion, to comply with specific requirements in certain EEA jurisdictions.	

Application Form 3 September 2021

To: **HSBC Securities Services (Ireland) DAC**, 1 Grand Canal Square, Grand Canal Harbour, Dublin 2, Ireland (the **"Transfer Agent"**) Tel: +353 1 635 6799 (queries only - no telephone dealing) **Fax**: +353 1 649 7560 **Email**: DUBAFSINVESTOR@hsbc.com.

I/We hereby irrevocably apply to invest in HSBC Uni-Folio as noted below:

Fund	Amount
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund – US Dollar Class	USD
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund – Euro Hedged Class	EURO
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund – R Class (US Dollar)	USD
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund – R Class (Sterling Hedged)	GBP
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund – S Class (US Dollar)	USD
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund – S Class (Euro Hedged)	EURO
HSBC Trading AdvantEdge Fund – S Class (Sterling Hedged)	GBP

Please note that restrictions apply to each of the S and R Classes. Details of these restrictions can be found in the Fund Section.

Declarations:

In accordance with the terms set out in Uni-Folio's latest Prospectus; the relevant Fund(s) latest audited annual and subsequent unaudited interim Report & Accounts (if any), copies of which have been offered to me/us free of charge; the Trust Instrument and the Fund(s) Deed(s) (together, the "Fund Documents"), I/we represent and warrant to the Manager and the Transfer Agent that I/we:

- 1. have read and understand the Fund Documents, and acknowledge that I/we are bound by their terms;
- 2. understand that any change to the Redemption Payment Mandate must be given in writing to the Transfer Agent and signed by ALL Holders;
- 3. understand that the price of Units can go down as well as up and that I/we may not receive back the original amount invested;
- 4. have read and understood the risk warnings and disclosures and the definition of an Eligible Investor as set out in the Prospectus, and that I am/we are an Eligible Investor and, in particular that I am/we are not a US Person and that I/we will immediately redeem my/our Units should I/we no longer be an Eligible Investor;
- 5. understand that the Transfer Agent and the Manager reserve the right to reject any application for Units from any person who is not an Eligible Investor or a fund with shareholders (or the equivalent thereof) who are US Persons and I/we agree to advise the Manager and the Transfer Agent in writing immediately if I am/we are such a US Person;
- 6. am/are not a Benefit Plan Investor as defined under the U.S. Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974:
- 7. am/are a qualified purchaser, as such term is defined in section 2(a)(51) of the U.S. Investment Company Act of 1940 (as amended) and an accredited investor as such term is defined in Rule 501(a) of Regulation D promulgated under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended;
- 8. undertake to execute, deliver, acknowledge and file any and all further documents and provide any and all information promptly which the Transfer Agent may deem necessary or appropriate in its sole discretion: (a) in connection with the declarations made hereunder; and (b) in order for Uni-Folio to comply with applicable laws and regulations;
- 9. understand and agree that the Manager and the Trustee intend to take such steps as may be required to satisfy any obligations imposed by (i) the Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act ("FATCA") regulations (ii) any provisions imposed under Guernsey law arising from the inter-governmental agreement between the Government of the United States of America and the Government of Guernsey ("IGA") so as to ensure compliance or deemed compliance (as the case may be) with the FATCA regulations or the IGA from 1 July 2014 or (ii) the Common Reporting Standard ("CRS") and any provisions imposed under Guernsey law arising out of its automatic exchange of information obligations;
- 10. agree to provide to Uni-Folio, the Manager, the Transfer Agent and the Administrator the necessary FATCA and CRS declarations, confirmations and/or classifications at such times as each of them may request and furthermore provide any supporting certificates or documents as each of them may reasonably require in connection with this investment by reason of the FATCA regulations, the IGA and any other applicable automatic exchange of information provisions (e.g. CRS), as described above, or otherwise. Should any information furnished to any of them become inaccurate or incomplete in any way, I/we hereby agree to notify Uni-Folio, the Manager, the Transfer Agent and the Administrator immediately of any such change and further agree to immediately take such action as Uni-Folio, the Manager, the Transfer Agent and the Administrator may direct, including where appropriate, redemption of my/our Units in respect of which such confirmations have become incomplete or inaccurate where requested to do so by Uni-Folio, the Manager, the Transfer Agent and the Administrator (as applicable). If relevant, I/we agree to notify the Manager and the Administrator of any change to my/our tax residency status. I/we hereby also agree to indemnify and keep indemnified Uni-Folio, the Manager, the Transfer Agent and the Administrator against any loss, liability, cost or expense (including without limitation legal fees, taxes and penalties) which may result directly or indirectly as a result of a failure to meet my/our obligations pursuant to this section or failure to provide such information which has been requested by Uni-Folio, the Manager, the Transfer Agent and the Administrator and has not been provided by me/us, and from any misrepresentation or breach of any warranty, condition, covenant or agreement set forth herein or in any document delivered by me/us to Uni-Folio, the Manager, the Transfer Agent and the Administrator . I/We further acknowledge that a failure to comply with the foregoing obligations or failure to provide the necessary information required may result in the compulsory redemption of our entire holding in Uni-Folio, and that Uni-Folio and the Custodians are authorized to hold back from redemption proceeds or other distributions to me/us such amount as is sufficient after the deduction of any redemption charges to discharge any such liability and I/we shall indemnify and keep indemnified Uni-Folio and the Custodians against any loss suffered by them or other Unit Holders in Uni-Folio in connection with any obligation or liability to so deduct, withhold or account;

- 11. understand and agree that for the purposes of complying with its automatic exchange of information obligations under CRS Uni-Folio is required to collect certain information on an account holder and on certain controlling persons in the case of the account holder being an entity (e.g. name, address, jurisdiction of residence, TIN, date and place of birth (as appropriate), the account number and the account balance or notice at the end of each calendar year) to identify accounts which are repeatable to the Guernsey tax authorities under CRS and further acknowledge that such information may in turn be exchanged by the Guernsey tax authorities with other tax authorities;
- 12. The Restricted Classes are only available for investment by persons who can demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the Manager, that they meet the criteria set out on the Fund Section. If I/we am/are applying to invest in any of the Restricted Classes, I/we consider that I/we can demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the Manager and the Transfer Agent, that I/we am/are meet the requirements described in the Fund Section, and that I will provide such demonstration upon the Manager and Transfer Agent's request;
- 13. have completed (and will supply any further documentation and information as required in order to satisfy) the AML requirements in respect of this or a previous application; and
- 14. will notify the Manager without delay of any changes to my/our contact details.

Indemnity in Respect of Facsimile, Post and Electronic Dealing Instructions

I/We request the Transfer Agent and the Manager to execute upon receipt all instructions conveyed by facsimile or post that each of the present or future holders of the account, or any Attorneys or duly authorised representative shall give **individually** to the Transfer Agent and the Manager.

The Transfer Agent and the Manager shall be indemnified against all costs, expenses, liabilities and losses sustained or incurred as a result of, or in connection with, its performance of facsimile or post instruction(s).

I/We acknowledge and agree that we may, subject to the prior written consent of the Transfer Agent, submit subsequent applications, redemption and instruction requests electronically, and if so, I/We acknowledge and agree that:

- 1. electronic communications whether by email, swift or otherwise are an unsafe method of communication and emails and swift messages may be lost, subject to delays, interference by third parties, viruses and their confidentiality, security and integrity cannot be guaranteed. Further, I/we acknowledge that electronic communications cannot be guaranteed to be error-free;
- 2. I/we will not hold the Investment Adviser, the Manager, the Transfer Agent or any of their directors, officers, employees or agents liable now or at any time for any loss, damage, financial or otherwise which I/we may suffer as a result of any interception or breach of confidentiality or integrity or as a result of any delays, inaccuracy, imperfection, lack of quality, ineffective transmission, viruses, alteration or distortion howsoever arising affecting such electronic communication;
- 3. I/we, shall not send or transmit or arrange for any sending or transmitting on our behalf, any electronic communication which contains a virus or other media damaging to your property or computer systems or which may be defamatory, libelous, slanderous, obscene, abusive, offensive, menacing or immoral and will abide with all relevant laws and regulations and international conventions or treaties governing the content of and the transmission of such electronic communications;
- 4. in the event that I/We are unable to send instructions by electronic transmission due to either a failure in or shut-down of my/our or the Transfer Agents' or other relevant parties internet system whether temporary or otherwise, I/we will send instructions by facsimile;
- 5. the Investment Adviser, the Transfer Agent may rely conclusively upon and shall incur no liability in respect of any action taken upon any notice, consent, request, instruction, electronic instructions, electronic subscriptions and redemptions or other instrument believed, in good faith, to be genuine; and
- 6. the Transfer Agent and the Manager do not accept any liability in the case of misunderstanding or error in the identification of the person giving the instruction or other errors on its part related to any of the above methods of communication and which may involve losses or other inconveniences for me/us.

I/We further undertake to keep each of the Investment Adviser, the Manager and the Transfer Agent indemnified at all times against, and to save each of the Investment Adviser and the Transfer Agent harmless from, all actions, proceedings, claims, losses, damages, costs and expenses which may be brought against any of the Fund, the Manager, the Investment Adviser, the Transfer Agent or suffered or incurred by any of the Fund, the Manager, the Investment Adviser, the Transfer Agent and which shall have arisen either directly or indirectly out of or in connection with me /us sending electronic communications.

I/We acknowledge and agree that any subscription, redemption and instruction requests submitted electronically will be subject to the terms of this Application Form and to the Fund Documents (as amended from time to time) and that I/We will notify the Investment Adviser and the Transfer Agent if any of the representation, acknowledgement or confirmation given in this Application Form should cease to be true and accurate.

These arrangements shall be governed by the laws of the Island of Guernsey and I/we irrevocably submit to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the Royal Court of Guernsey.

Terms not defined herein shall have the meaning given to them in the Fund Documents.

Registration details:

Please register my/our holding as follows:

Name	
Country of Incorporation	
Address of Applicant	
Telephone Number (Including country code)	
Fax Number (Including country code)	
Email address	
Optional additional contact email address	
Optional additional contact email address	
Optional additional contact email address	
Distributor/Intermediary/Broker Details: Name of Distributor/Intermediary/Broker (if any):	
GIIN (Global Intermediary Identification Number) (if available):	
If GIIN is not available, please provide a reason and include any timeframes (e.g. applied for and pending receipt; or not yet applied for however expecting to etc.)	
Address of Distributor/Intermediary/ Broker:	
Telephone:	
Email:	
Distributor/Intermediary/Broker Identification Number:	

Entity Self-Certification

Section 1: Account Holder Identification

PART I: General

If any of the information below regarding your tax residence or AEOI classification changes in the future, please ensure you advise us of these changes promptly. If you have any questions about how to complete this form, please refer to

http://www.oecd.org/tax/automatic-exchange for completion or contact your tax advisor.

Legal Name of Entity/Branch		Country of incorporation/organisation
Current Residence or Registered Addr	ress:	
Number & Street	City/Town	
State/Province/County	Post Code	Country
Mailing address (if different from abov	re):	
Number & Street	City/Town	
State/Province/County Post Code	Country	

PART II: US IGA

2	ect	ion	2:	П	S	P۵	rso	ne
u	CUL			u.	u .	_	130	

Ple	ease tick and complete as appropriate.
a.	☐ The entity is a Specified U.S. Person and the entity's U.S. federal taxpayer identifying number (U.S. TIN) is as follows:
	b. ☐ The entity is a U.S. Person that is not a Specified U.S. Person. Indicate exemption ¹
lf t	he entity is not a U.S. person, please also complete Section 3.
Se	ection 3: US FATCA Classification for all Non United States Entities
Ple	ease complete this section if the entity is <u>not</u> a <i>U.S. Tax Resident</i>
3.1	If the entity is a Registered Financial Institution , please tick one of the below categories, and provide the entity's FATCA GIIN at 3.1.1.
a.	 □ IGA Partner Jurisdiction Financial Institution b. □ Registered Deemed Compliant Foreign Financial Institution c. □ Participating Foreign Financial Institution
	3.1.1 Please provide your Global Intermediary Identification number (GIIN):(if registration in progress indicate so)
3.2	If the entity is a Financial Institution but unable to provide a GIIN , please tick one of the below reasons:
a.	☐ The Entity is a Sponsored Financial Institution and has not yet obtained a GIIN but is sponsored by another entity that has registered as a Sponsoring Entity. Please provide the Sponsoring Entity's name and GIIN. Sponsoring Entity's Name: Sponsoring Entity's GIIN:
	b. ☐ The Entity is a Trustee Documented Trust. Please provide your Trustee's name and GIIN. Trustee's Name:
	c. ☐ The Entity is a Certified Deemed Compliant, or otherwise Non-Reporting, Foreign Financial Institution (including a Foreign Financial Institution deemed compliant under Annex II of an IGA, except for a Trustee Documented Trust or Sponsored Financial Institution). Indicate exemption:
	d. ☐ The Entity is a Non-Participating Foreign Financial Institution
3.3	If the entity is not a Foreign Financial Institution , please confirm the Entity's FATCA status below:
a.	 □ The Entity is an Exempt Beneficial Owner² Indicate status: b. □ The Entity is an Active Non-Financial Foreign Entity³ (including an Excepted NFFE) i. If the Entity is a Direct Reporting NFFE, please provide the Entity's GIIN: ii. If the Entity is a Sponsored Direct Reporting NFFE, please provide the Sponsoring Entity's name and GIIN Sponsoring Entity's Name: C. □ The Entity is a Passive Non-Financial Foreign Entity⁴

¹ Under the US IGA and in the U.S. Internal Revenue Code, Specified US Person does not include: An organization exempt from tax under section 501(a) or any individual retirement plan as defined in section 7701(a)(37); The United States or any of its agencies or instrumentalities; A state, the District of Columbia, a possession of the United States, or any of their political subdivisions, or instrumentalities; A corporation the stock of which is regularly traded on one or more established securities markets, as described in Reg. section 1.1472-1(c)(1)(i); A corporation that is a member of the same expanded affiliated group as a corporation described in Reg. section 1.1472-1(c)(1)(i); A dealer in securities, commodities, or derivative financial instruments (including notional principal contracts, futures, forwards, and options) that is registered as such under the laws of the United States or any state; A real estate investment trust; A regulated investment company as defined in section 851 or an entity registered at all times during the tax year under the Investment Company Act of 1940; A common trust fund as defined in section 581; A broker; A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or described in section 4947; or A tax-exempt trust under a section 403(b) plan or section 457(g) plan.

⁴⁰³⁽b) plan or section 457(g) plan.

2 "Exempt Beneficial Owner" means any of the entities listed as such in Annex II.I of the US IGA or section 1.1471-6 or 1.1471-6T of the U.S. Treasury Regulations. See additional notes in Exhibit A

³ See definition of Active Non-Financial Foreign Entity in Exhibit A

⁴ See definition of Passive Non-Financial Foreign Entity in Exhibit A

If you have ticked 3.3(c) (Passive Non-Financial Foreign Entity), please indicate the full name of any Controlling Person(s) ⁵ :			
Full Name of any Controlling Person(s)			

Please complete Part V below providing details of any ultimate Controlling Persons who are natural persons.

PA	ART III: UK IGA			
Se	ection 4: United Kingdom Persons			
a. ☐ The entity is a Specified United Kingdom Person and the entity's United Kingdom identifying tax not as follows:				
	b. The entity is a United Kingdom Person that is not a Specified United Kingdom Person. Indicate exemption ⁶			
lf t	he entity is not a U.K. person, please also complete Section 5.			
Se	ection 5: UK FATCA Classification for all Non United Kingdom Resident Entities			
Ple	ease complete this section if the entity is not a U.K. Tax Resident.			
5.1	☐ If you are a Financial Institution ⁷ , please tick this box.			
5.2	If you are not a Financial Institution, please confirm the entity's status below by ticking either (a), (b) or (c):			
a.	☐ The entity is an Exempt Beneficial Owner ⁸ . Indicate status:			
	b. ☐ The entity is an Active Non-Financial Foreign Entity ⁹ .			
	c. ☐ The entity is a Passive Non-Financial Foreign Entity ¹⁰ .			
	ou have ticked 5.2(c) (Passive Non-Financial Foreign Entity), please indicate the name of any Controlling rson(s)11:			
F	full Name of any Controlling Person(s)			

Please complete Part V below providing further details of any ultimate Controlling Persons who are natural persons

⁶ Under the UK IGA, Specified UK Person does not include: A corporation the stock of which is regularly traded on one or more established securities markets or a member of the same EAG; A depository Institution; A broker or dealer in securities, commodities, or derivative financial instruments that is registered as such under the laws of the United Kingdom; or a Non-Reportable United Kingdom Entity as defined in Annex II paragraph V.

⁷ See definition of Financial Institution in Exhibit B.

^{8 &}quot;Exempt Beneficial Owner" means any of the entities listed as such in Annex II.I of the UK IGA or section 1.1471-6 or 1.1471-6T of the U.S. Treasury Regulations. See additional notes in Exhibit B.

9 See definition of Active Non-Financial Foreign Entity in Exhibit B.

10 See definition of Passive Non-Financial Foreign Entity in Exhibit B.

¹¹ See definition of Controlling Person(s) in Exhibit B.

PART IV: Common Reporting Standard

Section 6: Declaration of All Tax Residency, repeat any residences indicated in Part II, Section 2 (US) and Part III, Section 4 (UK)

Please indicate the Entity's place of tax residence (if resident in more than one country please detail all countries and associated tax reference number type and number). Please indicate not applicable if jurisdiction does not issue or you are unable to procure a tax reference number or functional equivalent.

Country/countries of tax residency	Tax reference number type	Tax reference number (e.g. TIN)
If applicable, please specify the reas	son for non-availability of a tax re	eference number:
Section 7: CRS Classification		
Provide your CRS classification by che necessarily coincide with your classific		
7.1 \square If the entity is a Financial Institu	tion ¹² , please tick this box.	
Specify the type of Financial Instituti	on below:	
☐ Reporting Financial Institu	tion under CRS.	
OR		
☐ Non-Reporting Financial Ir	nstitution under CRS. Specify the type of	of Non-Reporting Financial Institution below:
☐ Governmental Entit	у	
☐ International Organ	ization	
☐ Central Bank		
☐ Broad Participation	Retirement Fund	
☐ Narrow Participatio	n Retirement Fund	
☐ Pension Fund of a	Governmental Entity, International Org	anization, or Central Bank
☐ Exempt Collective I	nvestment Vehicle	
☐ Trust whose trustee	e reports all required information with re	espect to all CRS Reportable Accounts
☐ Qualified Credit Ca	rd Issuer	
☐ Other Entity defined	d under the domestic law as low risk of	being used to evade tax.
	ded in the domestic law:	
☐ Qualified Credit Ca	rd Issuer	
•	d under the domestic law as low risk of	being used to evade tax.
Specify the type provi	ded in the domestic law:	

	ancial Institution resident in a Non-Participating Jurisdiction ¹³ under CRS. Specify the type of Financial ition resident in a Non-Participating Jurisdiction below:
	a. □ Investment Entity and managed by another Financial Institution ¹⁴
	If you have ticked this box please indicate the name of the Controlling Person(s). Please refer to the definition of Controlling Person in Exhibit C.
	Full Name of any Controlling Person(s) (must not be left blank)
	Please also complete Part V below providing further details of any ultimate Controlling Persons who are natural persons.
	b. □ Other Investment Entity
	c. ☐ Other Financial Institution, including a Depositary Financial Institution, Custodial Institution, or Specified Insurance Company.
□ Co Provid	ype of NFE below: rporation that is regularly traded or a related entity of a regularly traded corporation. de the name of the stock exchange where traded: are a related entity of a regularly traded corporation, provide the name of the regularly traded corporation:
the fo	vernmental Entity, International Organization, a Central Bank, or an Entity wholly owned by one or more of regoing ner Active Non-Financial Foreign Entity ¹⁵
If you have tid	v is a Passive Non-Financial Entity please tick this box. ¹⁶ cked this box please indicate the name of the Controlling Person(s). Please refer to the definition Person in Exhibit C.
Full Name o	f any Controlling Person(s) (must not be left blank)
Please complete	Part V below providing further details of any ultimate Controlling Persons who are natural

persons

¹³ See definition of Non-Participating Jurisdiction in Exhibit C.
14 The managing Financial Institution must be a Financial Institution other than an Investment Entity type b) defined within the definition of a Financial Institution in Exhibit C.
15 See definition of Active Non-Financial Entity in Exhibit C.
16 Please see the definition of Passive Non-Financial Entity in Exhibit C.

Entity Declaration and Undertakings

I/We declare (as an authorised signatory of the Entity) that the information provided in this form is, to the best of my/our knowledge and belief, accurate and complete. I/We undertake to advise the recipient promptly and provide an updated Self-Certification form within 30 days where any change in circumstances occurs, which causes any of the information contained in this form to be inaccurate or incomplete. Where legally obliged to do so, I/we hereby consent to the recipient sharing this information with the relevant tax information authorities.

PART V: Controlling Persons

(please complete for each Controlling Person)

Section 8: Identification of a Controlling Person

8.1 Name of Controlling Person:	
Family Name or Surname(s):	
First or Given Name:	
Middle Name(s):	
8.2 Current Residence Address:	
Line 1 (e.g. House/Apt/Suite Name, Number, Street):	
Line 2 (e.g. Town/City/Province/County/State):	
Country:	
Postal Code/ZIP Code:	
8.3 Mailing Address: (please complete if different fi	rom 8.2)
Line 1 (e.g. House/Apt/Suite Name, Number, Street):	
Line 2 (e.g. Town/City/Province/County/State):	
Country:	
Postal Code/ZIP Code:	
8.4 Date of birth (dd/mm/yyyy)	
8.5 Place of birth	
Town or City of Birth	
Country of Birth	
8.6 Please enter the legal name of the <u>relevant</u> er Person	ntity Account Holder(s) of which you are a Controlling
Legal name of Entity 1	
Legal name of Entity 2	
Legal name of Entity 3	

Section 9: Country of Residence for Tax Purposes and related Taxpayer Reference Number or functional equivalent ("TIN")

Please complete the following table indicating:

- 1. where the Controlling Person is tax resident;
- 2. the Controlling Person's TIN for each country indicated; and,
- 3. if the Controlling Person is a tax resident in a country that is a Reportable Jurisdiction(s) then please also complete Section 10 "Type of Controlling Person".

If the Controlling Person is tax resident in more than three countries please use a separate sheet

	Country/countries of tax residency	Tax reference number type	Tax reference number (e.g. TIN)
1			
2			
3			

		71.	(· 3 /	
1				
2				
3				
if applicable places and if the vaccon for non-availability of a tay vaforance number.				

ı	f applicabl	le, please	specify th	ne reason	for non-ava	ailability o	f a tax re	ference r	iumber:

Section 10: Type of Controlling Person

(Please only complete this section if you are tax resident in one or more Reportable Jurisdictions)

PI	ease provide the Controlling Person's Status by ticking the appropriate box.	Entity 1	Entity 2	Entity 3
a.	Controlling Person of a legal person – control by ownership			
b.	Controlling Person of a legal person – control by other means			
C.	Controlling Person of a legal person – senior managing official			
d.	Controlling Person of a trust – settlor			
e.	Controlling Person of a trust – trustee			
f.	Controlling Person of a trust – protector			
g.	Controlling Person of a trust – beneficiary			
h.	Controlling Person of a trust – other			
i.	Controlling Person of a legal arrangement (non-trust) – settlor-equivalent			
j.	Controlling Person of a legal arrangement (non-trust) – trustee-equivalent			
k.	Controlling Person of a legal arrangement (non-trust) – protector-equivalent			
l.	Controlling Person of a legal arrangement (non-trust) – beneficiary-equivalent			
m.	Controlling Person of a legal arrangement (non-trust) – other-equivalent			

Controlling Person Declaration and Undertakings

I acknowledge that the information contained in this form and information regarding the Controlling Person and any Reportable Account(s) may be reported to the tax authorities of the country in which this account(s) is/are maintained and exchanged with tax authorities of another country or countries in which [I/the Controlling Person] may be tax resident pursuant to international agreements to exchange financial account information.

I certify that I am the Controlling Person, or am authorised to sign for the Controlling Person, of all the account(s) held by the entity Account Holder to which this form relates.

I declare that all statements made in this declaration are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, correct and complete.

I undertake to advise the recipient within 30 days of any change in circumstances which affects the tax residency status of the individual identified in Part 1 of this form or causes the information contained herein to become incorrect, and to provide the recipient with a suitably updated self-certification and Declaration within 30 days of such change in circumstances.

Signature:		
Print name:		
Date:		
•	the Controlling Person please indicate the capacity in which torney please also attach a certified copy of the power of atto	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
Capacity:		

EXHIBIT A

US IGA DEFINITIONS

Account Holder means the person listed or identified as the holder of a Financial Account by the Financial Institution that maintains the account. A person, other than a Financial Institution, holding a Financial Account for the benefit or account of another person as agent, custodian, nominee, signatory, investment advisor, or intermediary, is not treated as holding the account for purposes of this Agreement, and such other person is treated as holding the account. For purposes of the immediately preceding sentence, the term "Financial Institution" does not include a Financial Institution organized or incorporated in a U.S. Territory. In the case of a Cash Value Insurance Contract or an Annuity Contract, the Account Holder is any person entitled to access the Cash Value or change the beneficiary of the contract. If no person can access the Cash Value or change the beneficiary, the Account Holder is any person named as the owner in the contract and any person with a vested entitlement to payment under the terms of the contract. Upon the maturity of a Cash Value Insurance Contract or an Annuity Contract, each person entitled to receive a payment under the contract is treated as an Account Holder.

Active Non-Financial Foreign Entity means any NFFE which is a Non U.S. entity that meets any of the following criteria:

- a. Less than 50 percent of the NFFE's gross income for the preceding calendar year or other appropriate reporting period is passive income and less than 50 percent of the assets held by the NFFE during the preceding calendar year or other appropriate reporting period are assets that produce or are held for the production of passive income;
 - **b.** The stock of the NFFE is regularly traded on an established securities market or the NFFE is a Related Entity of an Entity the stock of which is traded on an established securities market;
 - **c.** The NFFE is organized in a U.S. Territory and all of the owners of the payee are bona fide residents of that U.S. Territory;
 - **d.** The NFFE is a non-U.S. government, a government of a U.S. Territory, an international organization, a non-U.S. central bank of issue, or an Entity wholly owned by one or more of the foregoing;
 - e. substantially all of the activities of the NFFE consist of holding (in whole or in part) the outstanding stock of, and providing financing and services to, one or more subsidiaries that engage in trades or businesses other than the business of a Financial Institution, except that an NFFE shall not qualify for this status if the NFFE functions (or holds itself out) as an investment fund, such as a private equity fund, venture capital fund, leveraged buyout fund or any investment vehicle whose purpose is to acquire or fund companies and then hold interests in those companies as capital assets for investment purposes;
 - f. The NFFE is not yet operating a business and has no prior operating history, but is investing capital into assets with the intent to operate a business other than that of a Financial Institution; provided, that the NFFE shall not qualify for this exception after the date that is 24 months after the date of the initial organization of the NFFE;
 - **g.** The NFFE was not a Financial Institution in the past five years, and is in the process of liquidating its assets or is reorganizing with the intent to continue or recommence operations in a business other than that of a Financial Institution;
 - h. The NFFE primarily engages in financing and hedging transactions with or for Related Entities that are not Financial Institutions, and does not provide financing or hedging services to any Entity that is not a Related Entity, provided that the group of any such Related Entities is primarily engaged in a business other than that of a Financial Institution; or
 - The NFFE is an "excepted NFFE" as described in relevant U.S. Treasury Regulations; or
 - **j.** The NFFE meets all of the following requirements:
 - It is established and maintained in its country of residence exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific, artistic, cultural, athletic or educational purposes; or it is established and operated in its jurisdiction of residence and it is a professional organization, business league, chamber of commerce, labor organization, agricultural or horticultural organization, civic league or an organization operated exclusively for the promotion of social welfare;
 - ii. It is exempt from income tax in its country of residence;

- iii. It has no shareholders or members who have a proprietary or beneficial interest in its income or assets;
- iv. The applicable laws of the Entity's country of residence or the Entity's formation documents do not permit any income or assets of the Entity to be distributed to, or applied for the benefit of, a private person or non-charitable Entity other than pursuant to the conduct of the Entity's charitable activities, or as payment of reasonable compensation for services rendered, or as payment representing the fair market value of property which the Entity has purchased; and
- v. The applicable laws of the Entity's country of residence or the Entity's formation documents require that, upon the Entity's liquidation or dissolution, all of its assets be distributed to a governmental entity or other non-profit organization, or escheat to the government of the Entity's jurisdiction of residence or any political subdivision thereof.

Code means the U.S Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Controlling Person means the natural persons who exercise direct or indirect control over an entity. In the case of a trust, such term means the settlor, the trustees, the protector (if any), the beneficiaries or class of beneficiaries, and any other natural person exercising ultimate effective control over the trust, and in the case of a legal arrangement other than a trust, such term means persons in equivalent or similar positions. The term **"Controlling Persons"** shall be interpreted in a manner consistent with the Financial Action Task Force Recommendations (**"FATF"**).

FATF Recommendations on Controlling Persons:

Identify the beneficial owners of the customer and take reasonable measures to verify the identity of such persons, through the following information. For legal persons¹⁷

- **a.** The identity of the natural persons (if any as ownership interests can be so diversified that there are no natural persons (whether acting alone or together) exercising control of the legal person or arrangement through ownership) who ultimately have a controlling ownership interest¹⁸ in a legal person; and
 - **b.** to the extent that there is doubt under (a) as to whether the person(s) with the controlling ownership interest are the beneficial owner(s) or where no natural person exerts control through ownership interests, the identity of the natural persons (if any) exercising control of the legal person or arrangement through other means.
 - **c.** Where no natural person is identified under (a) or (b) above, financial institutions should identify and take reasonable measures to verify the identity of the relevant natural person who holds the position of senior managing official.

Entity means a legal person or a legal arrangement such as a trust.

Exempt Beneficial Owners under the US IGA include Government entities, International Organisations, Central Bank, Broad Participation Retirement Funds, Narrow Participation Retirement Funds, Pension Funds of an Exempt Beneficial Owner, and Investment Entities wholly owned by Exempt Beneficial Owners. Please refer to the IGA for detailed definitions.

Financial Institution means a Custodial Institution, a Depository Institution, an Investment Entity, or a Specified Insurance Company, where:

- **a.** Custodial Institution means any entity that holds, as a substantial portion of its business, financial assets for the account of others. An entity holds financial assets for the account of others as a substantial portion of its business if the entity's gross income attributable to the holding of financial assets and related financial services equals or exceeds 20 percent of the Entity's gross income during the shorter of: (i) the three-year period that ends on 31 December (or the final day of a non-calendar year accounting period) prior to the year in which the determination is being made; or (ii) the period during which the entity has been in existence;
 - **b.** Depository Institution means any entity that accepts deposits in the ordinary course of a banking or similar business:
 - **c.** Investment Entity means any entity that conducts as a business (or is managed by an entity that conducts as a business) one or more of the following activities or operations for or on behalf of a customer: (1) trading in money market instruments (cheques, bills, certificates of deposit, derivatives, etc.); foreign exchange; exchange, interest rate and index instruments; transferable securities; or commodity futures

¹⁷ Measures (a) to (b) are not alternative options, but are cascading measures, with each to be used where the previous measure has been applied and has not identified a beneficial owner.

¹⁸ A controlling ownership interest depends on the ownership structure of the company. It may be based on a threshold, e.g. any person owning more than a certain percentage of the company (e.g. 25%).

- trading; (2) individual and collective portfolio management; or (3) otherwise investing, administering, or managing funds or money on behalf of other persons. The term Investment entity shall be interpreted in a manner consistent with similar language set forth in the definition of "financial institution" in the Financial Action Task Force Recommendations; and
- **d.** Specified Insurance Company means any entity that is an insurance company (or the holding company of an insurance company) that issues, or is obligated to make payments with respect to, a Cash Value Insurance Contract or an Annuity Contract.

NFFE means any Non-U.S. Entity that is not a Financial Institution as defined in US FATCA.

Non-U.S. Entity means an Entity that is not a U.S. Person.

Passive Non-Financial Foreign Entity means any NFFE that is not an Active Non-Financial Foreign Entity.

Related Entity An entity is a Related Entity of another entity if either entity controls the other entity, or the two entities are under common control. For this purpose control includes direct or indirect ownership of more than 50 percent of the vote or value in an entity. Notwithstanding the foregoing, either Party may treat an entity as not a related entity if the two entities are not members of the same affiliated group, as defined in section 1471(e)(2) of the Code.

Specified U.S. Person means a U.S. Person other than:

- a. a corporation the stock of which is regularly traded on established securities markets;
 - b. any corporation that is a member of the same expanded affiliated group;
 - **c.** the United States or any wholly owned agency or instrumentality thereof;
 - **d.** any State of the United States, any U.S. Territory, any political subdivision or wholly owned agency or instrumentality of any one or more of the foregoing;
 - **e.** any organization exempt from taxation under section 501 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code (the "**Code**") or certain individual retirement plans defined in section 7701(a)(37) of the Code;
 - f. any bank as defined in section 581 of the Code;
 - g. any real estate investment trust as defined in section 856 of the Code;
 - **h.** any regulated investment company defined in section 851 of the Code or any entity registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission under the Investment Company Act of 1940;
 - i. any common trust fund as defined in section 584(a) of the Code;
 - j. any trust that is exempt from tax under section 664(c) of the Code or that is described in 4947(a)(1) of the Code:
 - **k.** a dealer in securities, commodities, or derivative financial instruments that is registered as such under the laws of the United States or any State;
 - I. a broker as defined in section 6045(c) of the Code; or
 - m. any tax-exempt trust under a plan that is described in section 403(b) or section 457(g) of the Code

U.S. Person means a U.S. citizen or resident individual, a partnership or corporation organized in the United States or under the laws of the United States or any State thereof, a trust if (i) a court within the United States would have authority under applicable law to render orders or judgments concerning substantially all issues regarding administration of the trust, and (ii) one or more U.S. persons have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust, or an estate of a decedent that is a citizen or resident of the United States. Refer to the U.S. Internal Revenue Code for further interpretation.

EXHIBIT B

UK IGA DEFINITIONS

Account Holder means the person listed or identified as the holder of a Financial Account by the Financial Institution that maintains the account. A person, other than a Financial Institution, holding a Financial Account for the benefit or account of another person as agent, custodian, nominee, signatory, investment adviser, or intermediary, is not treated as holding the account for the purposes of this Agreement, and such other person is treated as holding the account. In the case of a Cash Value Insurance Contract or an Annuity Contract, the Account Holder is any person entitled to access the Cash Value or change the beneficiary of the contract. If no person can access the Cash Value or change the beneficiary, the Account Holder is any person named as the owner in the contract and any person with a vested entitlement to payment under the terms of the contract. Upon the maturity of a Cash Value Insurance Contract or an Annuity Contract, each person entitled to receive a payment under the contract is treated as an Account Holder.

Active Non-Financial Foreign Entity means any NFFE that meets any of the following criteria:

- a. Less than 50 percent of the NFFE's gross income for the preceding calendar year or other appropriate reporting period is passive income and less than 50 percent of the assets held by the NFFE during the preceding calendar year or other appropriate reporting period are assets that produce or are held for the production of passive income;
 - **b.** The stock of the NFFE is regularly traded on an established securities market or the NFFE is a Related Entity of an entity the stock of which is traded on an established securities market;
 - **c.** The NFFE is a government, a political subdivision of such government or a public body performing a function of such government or a political subdivision thereof, or an entity wholly owned by one or more of the foregoing;
 - d. Substantially all of the activities of the NFFE consist of holding (in whole or in part) the outstanding stock of, or providing financing and services to, one or more subsidiaries that engage in trades or businesses other than the business of a Financial Institution, except that an NFFE shall not qualify for this status if the NFFE functions (or holds itself out) as an investment fund, such as a private equity fund, venture capital fund, leveraged buyout fund or any investment vehicle whose purpose is to acquire or fund companies and then hold interests in those companies as capital assets for investment purposes;
 - e. The NFFE is not yet operating a business and has no prior operating history, but is investing capital into assets with the intent to operate a business other than that of a Financial Institution; provided, that the NFFE shall not qualify for this exception after the date that is 24 months after the date of the initial organization of the NFFE;
 - **f.** The NFFE was not a Financial Institution in the past five years, and is in the process of liquidating its assets or is reorganizing with the intent to continue or recommence operations in a business other than that of a Financial Institution; or
 - **g.** The NFFE primarily engages in financing and hedging transactions with or for Related Entities that are not Financial Institutions, and does not provide financing or hedging services to any entity that is not a Related Entity, provided that the group of any such Related Entities is primarily engaged in a business other than that of a Financial Institution.

Code means the U.S Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Controlling Person means the natural persons who exercise direct or indirect control over an entity. In the case of a trust, such term means the settlor, the trustees, the protector (if any), the beneficiaries or class of beneficiaries, and any other natural person exercising ultimate effective control over the trust, and in the case of a legal arrangement other than a trust, such term means persons in equivalent or similar positions. The term "**Controlling Persons**" shall be interpreted in a manner consistent with the Financial Action Task Force Recommendations ("**FATF**").

FATF Recommendations on Controlling Persons:

Identify the beneficial owners of the customer and take reasonable measures to verify the identity of such persons, through the following information. For legal persons¹⁹:

- **a.** The identity of the natural persons (if any as ownership interests can be so diversified that there are no natural persons (whether acting alone or together) exercising control of the legal person or arrangement through ownership) who ultimately have a controlling ownership interest²⁰ in a legal person; and
 - **b.** to the extent that there is doubt under (a) as to whether the person(s) with the controlling ownership interest are the beneficial owner(s) or where no natural person exerts control through ownership interests, the identity of the natural persons (if any) exercising control of the legal person or arrangement through other means.
 - **c.** Where no natural person is identified under (a) or (b) above, financial institutions should identify and take reasonable measures to verify the identity of the relevant natural person who holds the position of senior managing official.

Exempt Beneficial Owners under the UK IGA include Government entities, International Organisations, Broad and Narrow Participation Retirement Funds, Pension Funds of an Exempt Beneficial Owner, Investment Entities wholly owned by Exempt Beneficial Owners, and Limited Capacity Exempt Beneficial Owners. Please refer to the IGA for detailed definitions.

Limited Capacity Exempt Beneficial Owners. The Controlling Persons of an NFFE that meets all of the following requirements shall be treated as an Exempt Beneficial Owner solely in their capacity as a Controlling Person of that NFFE:

- a. It is established and operated in its jurisdiction of residence exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific, artistic, cultural, athletic, or educational purposes; or it is established and operated in its jurisdiction of residence and it is a professional organisation, business league, chamber of commerce, labour organisation, agricultural or horticultural organization, civic league or an organisation operated exclusively for the promotion of social welfare:
 - **b.** It is exempt from income tax in its jurisdiction of residence;
 - c. It has no shareholders or members who have a proprietary or beneficial interest in its income or assets;
 - d. The applicable laws of the NFFE's jurisdiction of residence or the NFFE's formation documents do not permit any income or assets of the NFFE to be distributed to, or applied for the benefit of, a private person or non-charitable Entity other than pursuant to the conduct of the NFFE's charitable activities, or as payment of reasonable compensation for services rendered, or as payment representing the fair market value of property which the NFFE has purchased; and
 - e. The applicable laws of the NFFE's jurisdiction of residence or the NFFE's formation documents require that, upon the NFFE's liquidation or dissolution, all of its assets be distributed to a governmental entity or other non-profit organisation, or escheat to the government of the NFFE's jurisdiction of residence or any political subdivision thereof.

Financial Institution means a Custodial Institution, a Depository Institution, an Investment Entity, or a Specified Insurance Company, where:

- **a.** Custodial Institution means any entity that holds, as a substantial portion of its business, financial assets for the account of others. An entity holds financial assets for the account of others as a substantial portion of its business if the entity's gross income attributable to the holding of financial assets and related financial services equals or exceeds 20 percent of the Entity's gross income during the shorter of: (i) the three-year period that ends on 31 December (or the final day of a non-calendar year accounting period) prior to the year in which the determination is being made; or (ii) the period during which the entity has been in existence;
 - **b.** Depository Institution means any entity that accepts deposits in the ordinary course of a banking or similar business:
 - c. Investment Entity means any entity that conducts as a business (or is managed by an entity that conducts as a business) one or more of the following activities or operations for or on behalf of a customer: (1) trading in money market instruments (cheques, bills, certificates of deposit, derivatives, etc.); foreign exchange; exchange, interest rate and index instruments; transferable securities; or commodity futures

¹⁹ Measures (a) to (b) are not alternative options, but are cascading measures, with each to be used where the previous measure has been applied and has not identified a beneficial owner.

²⁰ A controlling ownership interest depends on the ownership structure of the company. It may be based on a threshold, e.g. any person owning more than a certain percentage of the company (e.g. 25%).

- trading; (2) individual and collective portfolio management; or (3) otherwise investing, administering, or managing funds or money on behalf of other persons. The term Investment entity shall be interpreted in a manner consistent with similar language set forth in the definition of "financial institution" in the Financial Action Task Force Recommendations; and
- **d.** Specified Insurance Company means any entity that is an insurance company (or the holding company of an insurance company) that issues, or is obligated to make payments with respect to, a Cash Value Insurance Contract or an Annuity Contract.

Non-Financial Foreign Entity or **NFFE** means any Non-United Kingdom Resident Entity that is not a Financial Institution as defined in UK FATCA.

Non-United Kingdom Resident Entity means an entity that is not resident in the United Kingdom for the purposes of UK FATCA.

Passive Non-Financial Foreign Entity means any NFFE that is not an Active Non-Financial Foreign Entity.

Related Entity An entity is a Related Entity of another entity if either entity controls the other entity, or the two entities are under common control. For this purpose, control includes direct or indirect ownership of more than 50 percent of the vote or value in an entity. Notwithstanding the foregoing, either Party may treat an entity as not a related entity if the two entities are not members of the same affiliated group, as defined in section 1471(e)(2) of the Code.

Specified United Kingdom Person means a person who is resident in the United Kingdom for tax purposes, other than:

- a. a corporation the stock of which is regularly traded on one or more established securities markets;
 - **b.** a corporation that is a member of the same affiliated group, as defined in section 1471(e)(2) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code, as a corporation described in (a) above;
 - c. a Depository Institution;
 - **d.** a broker or dealer in securities, commodities, or derivative financial instruments (including notional principle contracts, futures, forwards, and options) that is registered as such under the laws of the United Kingdom; or
 - **e.** a Non-Reportable United Kingdom Entity as defined in Annex II paragraph V of UK FATCA (referring to certain UK governmental organizations, international organizations, central bank and UK retirement funds).

U.K. Tax Resident means a resident in the United Kingdom for tax purposes (including where a person or entity is resident in United Kingdom and in any other jurisdiction under the respective domestic laws of the United Kingdom and such other jurisdiction).

EXHIBIT C

CRS DEFINITIONS

Account Holder means the person listed or identified as the holder of a Financial Account by the Financial Institution that maintains the account. A person, other than a Financial Institution, holding a Financial Account for the benefit or account of another person as agent, custodian, nominee, signatory, investment advisor, or intermediary, is not treated as holding the account for purposes of the Common Reporting Standard, and such other person is treated as holding the account. In the case of a Cash Value Insurance Contract or an Annuity Contract, the Account Holder is any person entitled to access the Cash Value or change the beneficiary of the contract. If no person can access the Cash Value or change the beneficiary, the Account Holder is any person named as the owner in the contract and any person with a vested entitlement to payment under the terms of the contract. Upon the maturity of a Cash Value Insurance Contract or an Annuity Contract, each person entitled to receive a payment under the contract is treated as an Account Holder.

Active Non-Financial Entity means any NFE that meets any of the following criteria:

- **a.** less than 50% of the NFE's gross income for the preceding calendar year or other appropriate reporting period is passive income and less than 50% of the assets held by the NFE during the preceding calendar year or other appropriate reporting period are assets that produce or are held for the production of passive income;
 - **b.** the stock of the NFE is regularly traded on an established securities market or the NFE is a Related Entity of an Entity the stock of which is regularly traded on an established securities market;
 - **c.** the NFE is a Governmental Entity, an International Organisation, a Central Bank, or an Entity wholly owned by one or more of the foregoing;
 - d. substantially all of the activities of the NFE consist of holding (in whole or in part) the outstanding stock of, or providing financing and services to, one or more subsidiaries that engage in trades or businesses other than the business of a Financial Institution, except that an Entity does not qualify for this status if the Entity functions (or holds itself out) as an investment fund, such as a private equity fund, venture capital fund, leveraged buyout fund, or any investment vehicle whose purpose is to acquire or fund companies and then hold interests in those companies as capital assets for investment purposes;
 - **e.** the NFE is not yet operating a business and has no prior operating history, but is investing capital into assets with the intent to operate a business other than that of a Financial Institution, provided that the NFE does not qualify for this exception after the date that is 24 months after the date of the initial organisation of the NFE;
 - f. the NFE was not a Financial Institution in the past five years, and is in the process of liquidating its assets or is reorganising with the intent to continue or recommence operations in a business other than that of a Financial Institution:
 - g. the NFE primarily engages in financing and hedging transactions with, or for, Related Entities that are not Financial Institutions, and does not provide financing or hedging services to any Entity that is not a Related Entity, provided that the group of any such Related Entities is primarily engaged in a business other than that of a Financial Institution; or
 - **h.** the NFE meets all of the following requirements:
 - it is established and operated in its jurisdiction of residence exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific, artistic, cultural, athletic, or educational purposes; or it is established and operated in its jurisdiction of residence and it is a professional organisation, business league, chamber of commerce, labour organisation, agricultural or horticultural organisation, civic league or an organisation operated exclusively for the promotion of social welfare;
 - ii. it is exempt from income tax in its jurisdiction of residence;
 - iii. it has no shareholders or members who have a proprietary or beneficial interest in its income or assets;
 - iv. the applicable laws of the NFE's jurisdiction of residence or the NFE's formation documents do not permit any income or assets of the NFE to be distributed to, or applied for the benefit of, a private person or non-charitable Entity other than pursuant to the conduct of the NFE's charitable activities, or as payment of reasonable compensation for services rendered, or as payment representing the fair market value of property which the NFE has purchased; and

v. the applicable laws of the NFE's jurisdiction of residence or the NFE's formation documents require that, upon the NFE's liquidation or dissolution, all of its assets be distributed to a Governmental Entity or other non-profit organisation, or escheat to the government of the NFE's jurisdiction of residence or any political subdivision thereof.

Controlling Person means the natural persons who exercise direct or indirect control over an entity. In the case of a trust, such term means the settlor(s), the trustees(s), the protector(s) (if any), the beneficiary(ies) or class(es) of beneficiaries, and any other natural person(s) exercising ultimate effective control over the trust, and in the case of a legal arrangement other than a trust, such term means persons in equivalent or similar positions. The term "**Controlling Persons**" shall be interpreted in a manner consistent with the Financial Action Task Force Recommendations ("**FATF**").

FATF Recommendations on Controlling Persons:

Identify the beneficial owners of the customer and take reasonable measures to verify the identity of such persons, through the following information. For legal persons²¹:

- **a.** The identity of the natural persons (if any as ownership interests can be so diversified that there are no natural persons (whether acting alone or together) exercising control of the legal person or arrangement through ownership) who ultimately have a controlling ownership interest²² in a legal person; and
 - **b.** to the extent that there is doubt under (a) as to whether the person(s) with the controlling ownership interest are the beneficial owner(s) or where no natural person exerts control through ownership interests, the identity of the natural persons (if any) exercising control of the legal person or arrangement through other means.
 - **c.** Where no natural person is identified under (a) or (b) above, financial institutions should identify and take reasonable measures to verify the identity of the relevant natural person who holds the position of senior managing official.

Financial Institution means a Custodial Institution, a Depository Institution, an Investment Entity, or a Specified Insurance Company, where:

- a. Custodial Institution means any entity that holds, as a substantial portion of its business, financial assets for the account of others. An entity holds financial assets for the account of others as a substantial portion of its business if the entity's gross income attributable to the holding of financial assets and related financial services equals or exceeds 20 percent of the Entity's gross income during the shorter of: (i) the three-year period that ends on 31 December (or the final day of a non-calendar year accounting period) prior to the year in which the determination is being made; or (ii) the period during which the entity has been in existence;
 - **b. Depository Institution** means any entity that accepts deposits in the ordinary course of a banking or similar business;
 - **c. Investment Entity** means any entity:
 - A. that primarily conducts as a business one or more of the following activities or operations for or on behalf of a customer:
 - i. trading in money market instruments (cheques, bills, certificates of deposit, derivatives, etc.); foreign exchange; exchange, interest rate and index instruments; transferable securities; or commodity futures trading;
 - ii. individual and collective portfolio management; or
 - iii. otherwise investing, administering, or managing Financial Assets or money on behalf of other persons; or
 - B. the gross income of which is primarily attributable to investing, reinvesting, or trading in Financial Assets, if the entity is managed by another entity that is a Depository Institution, a Custodial Institution, a Specified Insurance Company, or an Investment Entity described in limb (A) of this definition.

An entity is treated as primarily conducting as a business one or more of the activities described in limb (A), or an entity's gross income is primarily attributable to investing, reinvesting, or trading in Financial Assets for purposes of limb (B) if the entity's gross income attributable to the relevant activities equals or exceeds 50% of the entity's gross income during the shorter of: (i) the three-year period ending on 31 December of the year preceding the year in which the determination is made; or (ii) the period during which the entity has been in

²¹ Measures (a) to (b) are not alternative options, but are cascading measures, with each to be used where the previous measure has been applied and has not identified a beneficial owner.

²² A controlling ownership interest depends on the ownership structure of the company. It may be based on a threshold, e.g. any person owning more than a certain percentage of the company (e.g. 25%).

existence. The term "**Investment Entity**" does not include an entity that is an Active Non-Financial Foreign Entity because it meets any of the criteria in subparagraphs d) through (g) of the definition of Active NFE.

The preceding paragraph shall be interpreted in a manner consistent with similar language set forth in the definition of "financial institution" in the Financial Action Task Force Recommendations; and

d. Specified Insurance Company means any entity that is an insurance company (or the holding company of an insurance company) that issues, or is obligated to make payments with respect to, a Cash Value Insurance Contract or an Annuity Contract.

Non-Financial Entity or NFE means any Entity that is not a Financial Institution.

Non-Participating Jurisdiction means a jurisdiction that is not a Participating Jurisdiction.

Non-Reporting Financial Institution means any Financial Institution that is:

- a Governmental Entity, International Organisation or Central Bank, other than with respect to a payment that is derived from an obligation held in connection with a commercial financial activity of a type engaged in by a Specified Insurance Company, Custodial Institution, or Depository Institution;
 - **b.** a Broad Participation Retirement Fund; a Narrow Participation Retirement Fund; a Pension Fund of a Governmental Entity, International Organisation or Central Bank; or a Qualified Credit Card Issuer;
 - **c.** any other Entity that presents a low risk of being used to evade tax, has substantially similar characteristics to any of the Entities described in subparagraphs B(1)(a) and (b), and is defined in domestic law as a Non-Reporting Financial Institution, provided that the status of such Entity as a Non-Reporting Financial Institution does not frustrate the purposes of the Common Reporting Standard;
 - d. an Exempt Collective Investment Vehicle; or
 - **e.** a trust to the extent that the trustee of the trust is a Reporting Financial Institution and reports all information required to be reported pursuant to Section I with respect to all Reportable Accounts of the trust.

Participating Jurisdiction means a jurisdiction (i) with which an agreement is in place pursuant to which it will provide the information specified in Section I (of the CRS), and (ii) which is identified in a published list.

Participating Jurisdiction Financial Institution means (i) any Financial Institution that is resident in a Participating Jurisdiction, but excludes any branch of that Financial Institution that is located outside such Participating Jurisdiction, and (ii) any branch of a Financial Institution that is not resident in a Participating Jurisdiction, if that branch is located in such Participating Jurisdiction.

Passive Non-Financial Entity means any: (i) Non-Financial Entity that is not an Active Non-Financial Entity; or (ii) an Investment Entity described in limb B (or subparagraph A(6)(b) of the Standard) of the definition of Investment Entity that is not a Participating Jurisdiction Financial Institution.

Related Entity means an entity related to another entity because (i) either entity controls the other entity; (ii) the two entities are under common control; or (iii) the two entities are Investment Entities described limb B of the definition of Investment Entity, are under common management, and such management fulfils the due diligence obligations of such Investment Entities. For this purpose control includes direct or indirect ownership of more than 50 % of the vote and value in an Entity.

Individual Self-Certification

If any of the information below regarding your tax residence or AEOI classification changes in the future, please ensure you advise us of these changes promptly. If you have any questions about how to complete this form, please refer to

http://www.oecd.org/tax/automatic-exchange/ for guidelines for completion or contact your tax advisor.

Please note that where there are joint account holders each investor is required to complete a separate Self-Certification form.

Section 1: Account Holder Identification

Complete section 3 if you have non-U.S. tax residences.

Account Holder Name	Date of Birth (dd/mm/yyyy)	Place and Country of Birth
Permanent Residence A	ddress:		
Number & Street	City/Town		
State/Province/County	Post Code	Country	
Mailing address (if different	from above):		
Number & Street	City/Town		
State/Province/County	Post Code	Country	
Section 2: Declaration	of U.S. Citizenship or	U.S. Residence fo	or Tax purposes
	S. citizen and/or resident in	the U.S. for tax purpos	ses (green card holder or resident g number (U.S. TIN) is as follows:
	l my citizenship as evidenc	ed by the attached doo	

Section 3: Declaration of Tax Residency (other than U.S.)

I hereby confirm that I am, for tax purposes, resident in the following countries (indicate the tax reference number type and number applicable in each country).

	Country/countries of tax residency	Tax reference number type	Tax reference number (e.g. TIN)
1			
2			
3			

Please indicate not applicable if jurisdiction does not issue or you are unable to procure a tax reference number or functional equivalent. If applicable, please specify the reason for non-availability of a tax reference number:

Section 4: Declaration and Undertakings

I declare that the information provided in this form is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, accurate and complete. I undertake to advise the recipient promptly and provide an updated Self-Certification form within 30 days where any change in circumstances occurs which causes any of the information contained in this form to be inaccurate or incomplete. Where legally obliged to do so, I hereby consent to the recipient sharing this information with the relevant tax information authorities.

Signature:					
Date: (dd/mm/yyyy):					

Redemption Payment Mandate	
Currency	
Account Name	
Account Number	
Beneficiary Bank	
Swift	
ABA	
Intermediary Bank	
Swift	
ABA	
provided where you have requested pay payment in our best endeavour. Neither	o enable timely and accurate payment. BIC and IBAN codes must be yment in Euro/GBP. In the case of incomplete information, we shall effect the Fund, the Manager or HSBC Group accept any responsibility for any mplete/incorrect bank account details provided.
The bank account name and number M	UST be an account in the name of the Registered Holder.
Signature:	
Date: (dd/mm/yyyy):	Dealing date:

Subscrip	tion Payment Details					
	Payment in respect of an application for Units should be made to the following accounts, dependent on the currency of the subscription monies:					
EUR						
	Beneficiary Bank:	HSBC Bank Plc, London				
	Swift:	MIDLGB22				
	Sort Code:	40-05-15				
	Beneficiary A/C Num:	73763943				
	Beneficiary Name:	HSSI fbo HMG Collection Account a/c EUR				
	IBAN:	GB42MIDL40051573763943				
GBP						
	Beneficiary Bank:	HSBC Bank Plc, London				
	Swift:	MIDLGB22				
	Sort Code:	40-05-15				
	Beneficiary A/C Num:	73763951				
	Beneficiary Name:	HSSI fbo HMG Collection Account a/c GBP				
	IBAN:	GB20MIDL40051573763951				

USD

Correspondent Bank:	HSBC Bank USA Inc.
Swift:	MRMDUS33
ABA Code:	021001088
Beneficiary Bank:	HSBC Bank Plc, London
Swift:	MIDLGB22
Sort Code:	40-05-15
Bene Bank A/C Num:	000023868
Beneficiary A/C Num:	73764000
Beneficiary Name:	HSSI fbo HMG Collection Account a/c USD
IBAN:	GB55MIDL40051573764000

Appendix A

Anti-Money Laundering Declarations

- 1. I/We acknowledge that measures aimed at the prevention of money laundering and terrorist financing will require verification of my/our identity, address and source of funds and source of wealth and other persons including but not limited to any beneficial owner²³ on a risk sensitive based approach and the ongoing monitoring of my/our business relationship with the Fund. I/We further acknowledge that the Manager and/or the Transfer Agent reserves the right not to issue Units until such time as the Manager and/or the Transfer Agent has received and is satisfied with all the information and documentation requested to verify my/our identity, address and source of funds and where applicable other persons including but not limited to any beneficial owner. I/We acknowledge that the Manager and/or the Transfer Agent shall be indemnified and held harmless by me/us against any loss arising as a result of a failure to process my/our application for Units if such information and documentation as has been requested by the Manager and/or the Transfer Agent has not been provided by me/us.
- 2. I/We acknowledge that the Manager and/or the Transfer Agent also reserves the right to refuse to make any redemption payment or distribution to a Holder if either of the Manager or the Transfer Agent suspects or is advised that the payment of any redemption or distribution moneys to such Holder might result in a breach or violation of any applicable anti-money laundering or other laws or regulations by any person in any relevant jurisdiction, or such refusal is considered necessary or appropriate to ensure the compliance by the Fund, the Manager or the Transfer Agent, with any such laws or regulations in any relevant jurisdiction.
- 3. I/We understand and agree that the Fund prohibits the investment of funds by any persons or entities that are acting, directly or indirectly, (i) in contravention of any applicable laws and regulations, including anti-money laundering regulations or conventions, (ii) on behalf of terrorists or terrorist organisations, including those persons or entities that are included on the List of Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons maintained by the U.S. Treasury Department's Office of Foreign Assets Control ("OFAC"), as such list may be amended from time to time or named on any list of prohibited countries, territories, entities and individuals by the European Union, United Nations, Her Majesty Treasury, the States of Guernsey Policy and Resources Committee or any competent authority whose laws and/or regulations are applicable to HSBC (such persons or entities in (i) (iii) are collectively referred to as "Prohibited Persons").
- 4. I/We represent, warrant and covenant that: (i) I/we am/are not, nor is any person or entity controlling, controlled by or under common control with me/us, a Prohibited Person, and (ii) to the extent I/we have any beneficial owners and (iii) in respect of any underlying client / investor and the ultimate beneficial owner(s) for whom we are acting, (a) I/we have carried out thorough due diligence to establish the identities of such ultimate beneficial owners, underlying clients and investors, (b) based on such due diligence, I/we reasonably believe that no such ultimate beneficial owners, underlying clients or investors are Prohibited Persons, (c) I/we hold the evidence of such identities and status and will maintain all such evidence for a minimum of 5 years from the date of my/our complete redemption from the Fund and (d) I/we will make available such information and any additional information that the Fund and/or Transfer Agent may require upon request.
- 5. If any of the foregoing representations, warranties or covenants ceases to be true or if the Manager and /or Transfer Agent no longer reasonably believes that it has satisfactory evidence as to their truth, notwithstanding any other agreement to the contrary, the Manager and/or Transfer Agent may be obligated to freeze my/our investment, either by prohibiting additional investments, declining or suspending any redemption requests and/or segregating the assets constituting the investment in accordance with applicable regulations, or my/our investment may immediately be redeemed by the Manager, and the Manager and/or the Transfer Agent may also be required to report such action and to disclose my/our identity to OFAC or other authorities. In the event that the Manager and /or the Transfer Agent is required to take any of the foregoing actions, I/we understand and agree that I/we shall have no claim against the Manager, the Transfer Agent, and their respective affiliates, directors, members, partners, shareholders, officers, employees and agents for any form of damages as a result of any of the aforementioned actions.

²³ A beneficial owner means: (A) the natural person who ultimately owns or controls .the Holder; and (B) a person on whose behalf the business relationship or occasional transaction is to be or is being conducted; (C) in the case of a foundation or trust or other legal arrangement: (i) any beneficiary in whom an interest has vested, and (ii) any other person who benefits from that foundation or trust or other legal arrangement.

- 6. I/We understand and agree that any redemption proceeds paid to me/us will only be paid to the account of record. Furthermore, I/we understand and agree that any redemption proceeds paid to me/us will only be paid to a bank account in my/our name and with a recognised financial institution.
- 7. I/We agree to indemnify and hold harmless the Manager, the Transfer Agent, and their respective affiliates, directors, members, partners, shareholders, officers, employees and agents from and against any and all losses, liabilities, damages, penalties, costs, fees and expenses (including legal fees and disbursements) which may result, directly or indirectly, from any inaccuracy in or breach of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement set forth in this section.
- 8. I/We acknowledge that the Transfer Agent in its absolute discretion reserves the right to request from the applicant any such other or additional documentation from that outlined below when it deems it appropriate to do so to enable the Transfer Agent to determine the applicant's compliance with applicable regulatory requirements or the applicant's anti-money laundering and terrorist financing verification status on a risk sensitive basis and the applicant shall provide to the Transfer Agent from time to time such information as may reasonably be requested. Each person acquiring Units in the Fund must satisfy the foregoing both at the time of initial subscription and at all times thereafter until such person ceases to be a Holder. Accordingly, the applicant agrees to notify the Transfer Agent promptly if there is any change with respect to any of the foregoing and/or below information, declarations or representations and to provide the Transfer Agent with such further information as the Transfer Agent may reasonably require.

9.	1. REGULATED FINANCIAL SERVICES BUSINESSES investing in own name on behalf of our clients We confirm that we are formed under the laws of (country) ²⁴ and regulated						
	by and our business activities ²⁶ are	(regulatory body) and we are a	(country) ²⁴ and regulated (cting in capacity of ²⁵				
	and our business activities ²⁶ are						
	We attach independent verification of our licensed status. We have appropriate risk-grading procedures in place to differentiate between the Customer Due Diligence (CDD) requirements for high and low risk relationships. We conduct appropriate and effective CDD procedures in respect of all our clients and account holders, including enhanced CDD measures for politically exposed persons and other high risk clients/account holders. The account will only be operated by us and we will have ultimate, effective control over the account.						
	This application is made in our name on behalf of my/our clients whose identity has been properly verified by me/us in accordance with our regulatory requirements (which are of at least the standard determined by Financial Action Task Force (FATF) recommendation). Evidence of such verification will be retained for a period of five years post cessation of relationship and for longer if subject to a longer retention period and we confirm that all employees, directors and other officers have received the appropriate level of training. We further confirm we will provide the Administrator, the Manager and/or the Transfer Agent with a letter of assurance in connection with these matters.						
10.	2. NOMINEE COMPANIES (Where the Parent is R clients	egulated) investing in own nar	ne on behalf of our				
	We confirm that (the '	'Parent Company") is formed ur	nder the laws of				
	(country) 27 and regulated	l by (regula	atory body) as a				
	We attach independ	dent verification of our licensed s	tatus. We hereby confirm				
	that (the "Nominee Investor") is a wholly owned subsidiary of						
	, who invest on a nominee basis on behalf of its customers. We						
	confirm that the business activities of Parent Company and Nominee Investor are						
	We have appropriate risk-grading procedures in place ("CDD") requirements for high and low risk relational procedures in respect of all of our clients and account	nips. We conduct appropriate an	d effective CDD				

²⁴ The financial services business must be domiciled in a country included in Appendix 'C' to the current version of the Handbook on Countering Financial Crime and Terrorist Financing, issued by the Guernsey Financial Services Commission (www.gfsc.gg). If the country of domicile is non-Appendix 'C', then full customer due diligence information will be required for you and your client(s). A financial services business excludes a trust and corporate service provider, other than a person licensed under the Regulation of Fiduciaries, Administration Businesses and Company Directors, etc. (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 2000, as amended 25 E.g. nominee, Discretionary, Custodian, Distributor

²⁶ E.g. Banking, Investment management, Asset Management, Insurance

²⁷ The financial services business must be domiciled in a country included in Appendix 'C' to the current version of the Handbook on Countering Financial Crime and Terrorist Financing, issued by the Guernsey Financial Services Commission (www.gfsc.gg). If the country of domicile is non-Appendix 'C', then full customer due diligence information will be required for you and your client(s). A financial services business excludes a trust and corporate service provider, other than a person licensed under the Regulation of Fiduciaries, Administration Businesses and Company Directors, etc. (Bailiwick of Guernsey) Law, 2000, as amended

exposed persons and other high risk clients/account holders. The account will only be operated by us and we will have ultimate, effective control over the account.

This application is made in the Nominee Investor's name on behalf of my/our clients whose identity has been properly verified by me/us in accordance with our regulatory requirements (which are of at least the standard determined by FATF recommendations). Evidence of such verification will be retained for a period of five years post cessation of relationship and for longer if subject to a longer retention period and we confirm that all employees, directors and other officers have received the appropriate level of training. We further confirm we will provide the Administrator, the Manager, and/or the Transfer Agent with a letter of assurance in connection with these matters in a form acceptable to the Administrator.

Data Protection Declarations

We acknowledge that for the purposes of this application:

- 1 By submitting personal data to the Manager, Trustee, Administrator or Registrar:
- 1.1 in the case of a Holder, where (a) the Holder is a natural person or (b) where the Holder is not a natural person, he/she/it (as the case may be) represents and warrants that he/she/it (as applicable):
- (a) has read and understood the terms of the Privacy Notice, a copy of which is available at http://www.global.assetmanagement.hsbc.com/privacy-notices; and/or
- (b) has brought the Privacy Notice to the attention of any underlying data subjects on whose behalf or account the Holder may act or whose personal data will be disclosed to the Manager, Trustee, Administrator or Registrar as a result of the Holder entering into this application; and
- (c) the Holder has complied in all other respects with Data Protection Laws in respect of disclosure and provision of personal data to the Manager, Trustee, Administrator or Registrar.
- Where the Holder acts for or on account of an underlying data subject, he/she/it shall, in respect of the personal data it processes in relation to or arising out of this application:
- 2.1 comply with all applicable Data Protection Laws;
- 2.2 take appropriate technical and organizational measures against unauthorized or unlawful processing of the personal data and against accidental loss or destruction of, or damage to the personal data;
- 2.3 if required, agree with the Manager, Trustee, Administrator or Registrar the responsibilities of each such entity as regards relevant data subjects' rights and notice requirements; and
- 2.4 immediately on demand, fully indemnify the Manager, Trustee, Administrator or Registrar and keep them fully and effectively indemnified against all costs, demands, claims, expenses (including legal costs and disbursements on a full indemnity basis), losses (including indirect losses and loss of profits, business and reputation), actions, proceedings and liabilities of whatsoever nature arising from or incurred by the Manager, Trustee, Administrator or Registrar in connection with any failure by the Holder to comply with the provisions of this clause 2.

Appendix B

DETAILS OF UNDERLYING INVESTORS

(to be completed by all Nominees)

Account	Type of entity Amount of (e.g., natural Nominee		If EEA: Jurisdiction of domicile ²⁸ or	Mark if Applicable		
Number/or similar unique identifier	person, limited company, limited partnership)	subscription attributable to Underlying Investor	registered office of Underlying Investor	UK Resident & Domiciled	UK Resident Non-Domiciled	

Application Form – Signature Page

PLEASE SIGN BELOW

Please select execution clause A or B, as appropriate, or insert your own execution clause in box C.

. Individual (including where acting as trustee of a trust)					
Signed:					
	(Signature)				
Name:					
	(Please print in block capitals)				
Date:					
	(Please write date of signature)				
h Cornoration - signir	ng by (i) two directors, (ii) a single director, or (iii) authorised signatory(ies)				
Name of Corporation:					
Name of Corporation.	(Please print in block capitals)				
Signed:					
	(Signature of signatory)				
Name and title:					
	(Please print name and title of signatory in block capitals)				
Date:					
	(Please write date of signature)				
Signed:					
	(Signature of second signatory) (if required)				
Name and title:					
	(Please print name and title of second signatory in block capitals) (if required)				
Date:					
	(Please write date of signature)				

c. If neither A nor B above is applicable

If neither of execution clause A or B above applies, please use your own signature clause.